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DREAM BUILDING FUTURE ACHIEVING

Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (0337.HK) is a subsidiary of Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited
["Greenland Holdings”, stock code: 600606.5H), one of the top 500 companies in the world.

Established on 18 July 1992, Greenland Holdings is a large enterprise of mixed ownership supervised by the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shanghai Municipal Government headquartered in Shanghai, the

PRC.

Ever since its establishment 24 years ago, Greenland Holdings has created a diversified development pattemn of “focusing
on the development of real estate market and placing equal siress on emerging sectors like Big Infrasfructure, Big Finance
and Big Consumption” with a global presence. By adhering to the development sfrategies of capitalization, popularization
and internationalization, Greenland Holdings has secured its market presence in more than 80 cities in China, including
Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, as well as across 13 cities of nine countries including the United States, Britain,
Cermany, Australia, Canada, South Korea, Thailand and Malaysia. By listing entire group on China's Ashare market
[600606.5H) and on Hong Kong's H-share market (00337.HK), Greenland has established a capital platform integrating
its domestic and overseas resources, realizing the transformation from “China’s Greenland” into “Global Greenland”.
Since being recognized as one of Fortune Global 500 in 2012, Greenland Holdings has been on the list for five
consecutive years, and is sfill the No. 1 Chinese real estate company on the Fortune Global 500.

By capitalizing on the listing opportunity with the aid of the capital market, Greenland Holdings will speed up its
innovative transformation and build info a local multinational company with prominent principal business, diversified
development, global presence and infegration of real esfate and financial business with leading edges in the sectors of
real estates, finance, subway and other industries.

As the only overseaslisted real estate platform and brand display window of Greenland Holdings, Greenland Hong Kong
strove fo realize the parallel development of three major businesses of real estate development, intemet finance and real
esfate fund and fo esfablish a comprehensive industry group with business presence in more than 10 cities in 8 provinces,
by materializing the overall strategy of Greenland Holdings and innovating, transforming and upgrading its capital
platform and industrial sector.

While further exploring ifs principal operation of real estate development, Greenland Hong Kong spares no effort to
push forward the “Big Finance” strategy by establishing Greenland Financial Information Services Co., ltd “Greenland
Financial Services”) in Shanghai. By leveraging big data, cloud platform and mobile internet, Greenland Financial
Services focuses on the verlical real eslate market. With service and product innovation as the guiding principle and
focusing on the three core businesses of “online wealth management, asset management and technological data services”,
Greenland Financial Services endeavors to build an internet platform covering wealth management and investment, social
finance and community finance in order to help Greenland Holdings create a robust property-based internet financial
ecosystem.

leveraging Greenland Heldings' mature brand image, rich resources, large scale and system, advanced

management and passionate corperate culture, Greenland Hong Kong will comprehensively consolidate
the existing assefs and fully ufilize the advantages of the capital platform in Hong Kong fo maintain
sustainable and ropid growth with high guality, thus creating a comprehensive industrial
group and eslablishing itself as a benchmark in the Hong Kong capital
market for mainland China real estate players.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS %4&5HE

2016 2015
ZB—-RF —T-RF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
AREEERT AREBET g
Revenue Yz 16,919 5,688 +11,231
Gross Profit 7 2,828 1,041 +1,787
Results from Operating Activities 28 B A& & /& BRI 48 1,267 (417) +1,684
Profit for the year £ i F) 1,241 32 +1,209
Attributable to: LATR A &S :
— Owners of the Company — AR A FIHEA A 1,113 220 +893
— Non-controlling interests — 3F#E RS 128 (189) +317
Earnings Per Ordinary Share (RMB) &A% & imAR & F| (A R T)
- Basic —&A 0.39 0.08 +0.31
— Diluted —#5% 0.39 0.08 +0.31
M Milor dr. . o
ARBHAT 2015 2016
18,000 16,919
16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
5,688
6,000
4,000
1,113
PTG XY 290
) A -
Revenue Profit for the year Net Profit attributable to
Wz SERERSF Owners of the Company

AT R AR FiEF



FINANCIAL HIGHLGHTS (Confinved)
R EE)

ZE—REFR

BEEBERERAA 3

2016 2015
—ET-RE —T—RHF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBEET ARBEET B
Total Assets & E 4858 54,105 49,986 +4,119
Total liabilities B AR %R 44,381 42,298 +2,083
Total Equity 54248 9,724 7,688 +2,036
REVENUE ANALYSIS Wiz 97
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
AREEEAET ARBEST B
Sales of properties #1258 & 16,431 5,290 +11,141
Property management income & other related service
MR E WA R HE A AR ARTS 270 159 +111
Hotel and related services 8 J& K 48 B8 AR 765 177 179 2
lease of properties #12EFA & 41 60 -19
Total 425t 16,919 5,688 +11,231

1.6%

A

MEIHE

Sales of Properties

lease of properties

WERE

Property management income &

other related service

YR ER WA KRB A BRE R

Hotel and related services

B IE R AR RS
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KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEASEMOEE

Completion of disposal of Shanghai Sipo Education in March 2016

Acquisition of a piece of land in Wujiang Economic and

Technological Development Zone of Suzhou City in May 2016

Set up an equity investment partnership (limited partnership) as co-
general partners jointly with Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited
in May 2016

lssue of US$120 million of senior perpetual capital securities and
US$450 million of 3.875% notes due 2019 in July 2016

Signed strategic cooperation agreement with Guangxi Railway
Investment (Group) Co., Limited to establish city development fund in

August 2016

Acquisition of a project on Dongge Road in Nanning in November

2016

Established a strategic cooperation agreement with Ctrip fo jointly
launch the first ever selfservice hotel apartment series brand, “G-Hotel”
in November 2016

“TE-RFZATREE LEREHE

ZE-RNFRARGEHEMNT R
M —IE L

—E-RERARFEFATRARARME
REESHEEIEA - HEBRLRIIBE
KREGRELE(ERER)

T —REFA HE1TT 120,000,000 TH)
=K A B RTE % K 450,000,000 TR =
T NFRHN3.875% R

T-NFN\AREAEHKREE (RE)AR
RIBE THEAFERE - I HERE

>IN

“E-RFr-AURB AR EERER
HIE H

ZE—REF+—R  BERRITAR R
o AEFAAIFEEEENNBEEAE R
h2 —G-Hotel & &



AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
18 N IR ER

SHANGHAI - GREENLAND HUANGPU
CENTER

Awarded the “Most influential Property Project” by the “Win-win 2016
China Real Estate Shanghai Property Agents Annual Meeting” co-organized
by Orienfal Morning Post and the Paper

Awarded the “Annual Project — The Outstanding Mansion Award” by

“Clobal Chinese Real Estate Summit 2016 organized by ifeng.com

WUXI - GREENLAND XI SHUI DONG

Awarded the “Annual Potential” by Wuxi Real Estate Association and

house.sina.com.cn

Awarded the “Top 10 Superior Mansion in China” by China Real Estote
Appraisal

NANNING-GREENLAND CENTRAL PLAZA

Awarded the “2016 Property Project with the most Commercial Value™ by
Nanning branch of House.QQ.com

Awarded the “Top 10 Commodity Housing Sales Value™ of Nanning Real
Estate Official Ranking 2016 by the Entertaining Channel of Guangxi TV

Station, Nanning Real Estate Association and www.nnfexx.com

Awarded the “The Outstanding Composite Project” by Nanning Evening
Post and Guangxi Radio FM@50

Awarded the “Top 5 of Guangxi Composite Project” by “Perfect Property”
of Guangxi Science & Education Channel, Leju (China) Enterprise Group-
CRIC

ZE-AFFN BSMEBERERAS

i - gt EiEEL

RERTT W AR 20
EEEEAFE N HAZENER]

016 Bl E

LERBEBERN 20165 BERIREAMEIR
M FEIAR « XTHAFRE

) — BTk R
BRI N RAFR LB R ¢ EE N 1)

PEEMERFP ORENPETATERE]

— &P RES
WM AT RS 201 6 SR AT EES
%)

ERERELABINE MEDFBEXBEMBE
BEEBMN2010FHERFETR I EEEEN
I AmESRIEE TR

REMERRK  EA
#
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AWARDS AND ACCOILADES (Continved)
RIAN IR (#)

KUNMING-GREENLAND HAI PO LAN TING

Awarded the “2016 Property Project with Kunming New City Image” by
Sohu Focus Net

XUZHOU-CHINA RESOURCES GREENLAND
TRIUMPH ARCH

Awarded the “2016 Star Residence” by leju.com of Xuzhou

GREENLAND FINANCIAL SERVICES

Awarded the “2016 Outstanding Brand Award in Inclusive Financial
Services “in the “2016 Shanghai Financial Services Forum” co-organized
by the People’s Government of Huangpu District and Shanghai Modemn

Services Industry Federation

Awarded the “2016 Top China Inclusive Finance Enterprise Award™ by
the 2016 China Inclusive Financial Service Innovation Forum & the Second

Session of “Golden Bee Award” ceremony

Awarded the “2016 Top 10 Enterprises in Real Estate, Finance and
Technology” by the Internet Weekly Magazine

Shanghai Daokun Assets Management Company Limited under the
Greenland Financial Services was awarded the “2016 Top 10 Growth

Rate of China’s Real Estate Fund Management”

R BA — &5t i3I0 RE
EERR TN 201 SRS 1B

R — B2 R g b S e P

RN ERBEEN2016FZREEA ]

G &Rk

HEBRARBA - DERARGERS
A

[2016 LB RARSwIE 5L 2016
= Mg 82 ]

EES Y
EE2RER

2016 B EEERRBAFHEEE Bl
82 RRHAREE 201 6P ESSRBELFEE]

WCEBARETDIE R 2016+ K ES BB
S

FRWERET LBEHEETRERRAARE
(2016 BE ER S ERARIELRETOP10]
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

Jun Chen ¢ Executive Director, Chairman and CEO

PRE o HTEF  TERITKAAZ
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continved)
FERE®)

2016 is not only the beginning year of the “13th Five-Year Plan”, but also
a milestone year for Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited ("Greenland
Hong Kong" or "Company’| and its subsidiaries [the "Group’). In
2016, China’s economy remained on a stable and positive path while
maintaining reasonable economic growfh rafe. During the first half year,
the real estate market continued to recover. However, in the second half
year, various cifies continued to show differentiated development due to
the cooling effect of regulatory policies. Notwithstanding the tremendous
challenges, the overall performance of the Group met expectation and

delivered fruitful results.

With the strong support of the parent company, Greenland Holdings
Corporation Limited ("Greenland Holdings"), the Group established
the development mode of developing the three major businesses, namely
"real estate development, internet finance and real estate funds”, in a
simultaneous manner. In 2016, the Group focused on ifs principal real estate
business and attached great importance on key areas, key cities and key
products, establishing an impressive and sfrong brand image; the internet
finance segment continued to develop at a rapid pace and the finance
business reported first year of profit; the Group actively explored the light-
asset transformation model and launched several strategic cooperative

projects.

STABLE GROWTH OF CONTRACTED SALES
In 2016, building on the growing brand influence of Greenland, the Group

precisely defined ifs project positioning and pricing sfrategies, confinuously
and actively launched high-end projects and focused on product quality as
well as services. | am pleased to announce that our fotal contracted sales

reached approximately RMB 18,219 million.

Yangtze River Delta Region remained as the Group’s major source of
confracted sales, with Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai confributing 29%,
12% and 12% of contracted sales respectively. Guangxi market saw
substantial development with projects therein contributing 18% of contracted
sales while other core projects in ferms of contracted sales also include
Hainan project (12%). During the year, the overall average price was
RMB12,450 per square meter.

“E-RETMERERIt=RFERRZE ¥
Rt EEZERAR AR ([ GEE [ FAF )
REFRR(FEEDMEERAEEREREEN
—F o ZT-RFPELEETRTER - BPA
i REFAEMNEEILE - FXFRMETISIES
TEEMED - BT FAERELERRR - %
PHEREEZR O - BEEBELE - AEEE
BRAMTAEY  BUSSBEKRR -

ASDALRREEARA T ([GRER]) A
NERT  AEERT T EHERE THEe
B EHEES | SARBATOERESER < —F
XN AEEBEEBETYE  WIENE -
ST - EHES - BIRAROHPIETE
@ REAREER SREBEREFAR
Fl BERRBEESNER  BESERES
ff o

SHHEHERLER

SERE ERRERENEERL - AEE
DA R IRIE B i R (R - D)
BIWIEE EEERRERE - AARAES
RIEA D E RO ARR 182,108 -

RZAREESNEEANHERNTIENER
TE IR EBERDREBT29% « 12% 1
12%MAHHER - RETSREREER - EA
THEER T 18%MAKHER - HtbANHERDN
ZORBERESEEE(12%) FRARRTHE
EREGFIIAARK12,4507T -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Confinved)
FERE®)

NEWLY ADDED QUALITY PROJECTS

Up to the date of the annual report, the Group added four quality projects.
In May 2016, the Group successfully bid a new land plot in Wujiang,
Suzhou, which the Group intends to develop info a high-quality residential
community. In November 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of the
project located in the extended section of Dongge Road and close to the
intersection of Dongge Road, Binhu Road and Jinhu Road (N). In January
2017, the Group successfully entered into an equity transfer agreement
fo acquire a Q0% inferest of a development project in respect of a piece
of land in the Wuxi Guang Cheng sectfion connected tfo the entrance of
Subway Line T in Wuxi. In the same month, the Group acquired a piece
of land in Gaoxin disfrict in Nanning. The new move not only signifies the
Group's confidence towards the prospects of in the Pan-Pearl River Delta
regions and its regional market penetfration strategy, but also injects new
momentum to Greenland’s longferm development in premium regions in

core cities.

As of the date of the annual report, the Group had a land bank of
approximately 14 million square meters, strategically locates in prime
precincts of Yangtze River Delia and Pan-Pearl River Delia Regions. We will
confinue to leverage on the strong brand influence of Greenland to identify

high-quality land projects with promising development potential.

RAPID DEVELOPMENT OF INTERNET
FINANCE BUSINESS

After one year of effort, the Group's internet finance business has achieved
substantial development — Shanghai Greenland Financial Information
Services Co., ltd ("Greenland Financial Services’) has established a
development model based on the three major businesses of “online wealth
management, asset management and data information services” and

recorded first year of profit.

| am pleased to announce that as at the end of 2016, our subsidiary Dao
Kun Asset Management Company ("Dao Kun Asset’] accumulated
a management scale of RMB7,288 million and its existing assets
management scale amounted to RMB6,034 million. In 20106, "Greenland
Guangcai” launched products with a total amount of RMB10,060
million, broke the one million mark in platform registered customers and
accumulated transaction of RMB137 million in the secondary market.
Greenland Financial Services actively explored external cooperative
partners and besides cooperating with over 40 instfitutions encompassing
banks, funds, frusts, securities, insurance and payment, it has also embarked

on cross-secfor cooperation with several parters such as G-super.

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

HEEgEIEe

BEEANFHAY  AEEHETOEEDER o1
“E-RFRA AEBERYBEEHEMNRITHMT
B BRBIKETERAEmEEEME - R=F
—RNF+—H AEETREERERTHER - it
BRER - AUBLSBILERZIRNIER - R -F
—tF— A AEBERINET ISR i AR
R REXEHPERITR/AD  BREH
JERCER AR RO EEIE B Q0% - R A - K&
B E-BURNEESTRN L o EREAKE
2 IR= AR T 5 AT R SO R R IFR RS -
REMAEROETHEZRENEMERBRD ) -

REHEH - NREBPEA LHFHFH4914,000,000
FIK - RO HERT =AMZR=ANM
Mol E BT RS - HAIKERREB) R
AR RIERIE - THSHARRENNED L0A
B o

HERAESRmEHIREER

AEEEBMESREBLBT —FE0MR 28
BTRENER  LEFHERESRBERA
A& ER DT T AR EMEERE BEE
B BEREERE I ZXEBARLNERRS -
WEREFERM -

RARARE  BE-T—RFK BN BEZEE
ZEEEREBARK72.88BL - FEEETIEMR
BREARKOO.IMETT - R —RF[ A& |
EmBITRELT ARKI100.6ET - FAME
FRB 1008  —HmGRAKIARE .37
TC o AR RIBEBARINDAIERH - BATER
7 E£% GFF #FF KR XAFHEBI0R
HWEAE  FEOEESRAFRERSE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continved)
FERE®)

LIGHT-ASSET TRANSFORMATION
STRATEGIC COOPERATION

In 2016, the Group actively explored lightasset fransformation model and
achieved numerous breakthroughs in the real estate fund area. In particular,
the Group successively established the Silk Road Integrated Real Estate Fund
with Kuwait Strategic Investor, a real estate fund with Cinda (HK) Holdings
Company Limited and a city development fund with Guangxi Railway

Investment (Group] Co., lid.

In addition, the Group created a strong alliance with Ctrip and jointly
pioneered China's first self-service hotel apartment series brand, "G-series
hotel apartments”, infroducing a brand-new model for infernetbased hotel
apartment. Such strategic cooperation shows that while further developing
our principal real estate business, the Group also actively explores
and leverages the supplementary strength of our principal business and

innovative development model with preliminary success.

OUTLOOK

The Group believes that in 2017, the Chinese government will confinue
fo push forward supply-side structural reform and implement active fiscal
policies and solid monetary policies fo promote stable economic growth.
The Group expects that China’s property market will continue to show
differentiated performance in 2017; however, the property prices in core
quality cities will remain stable while third and fourth-ier cities will continue

fo focus on trimming inventory.

The Group will continue to further develop its principal real estate business
through product innovation and service upgrade. The Group will continue
fo make all-out efforts fo build business presence in regions such as Yangize
River Della and Pan-Pearl River Delta as well as focus on the development
of key products in key cities. With respect fo infernet finance and real esfate
funds, the Group will establish positive interaction with principal business to
develop a complementary development model characterized by "one body

with two wings” and endeavour to enhance core competitiveness.

T A ERRET RIS E

—ERE AEEREBERREEESIEN - £
FHERESBHIG SRR - STERER S BER
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LB -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Confinved)
FERE®)

It has been three years since Greenland Hong Kong listed on the Hong
Kong capital markef; during such period, it has accomplished the tough
task of overcoming numerous difficulties and achieving today’s success.
Now standing on a new height, we will define our positioning precisely in
accordance with the top-level design of the parent company, Greenland
Holdings, and take the Group to a new height leveraging on international

finance platform.

APPRECIATION

Thanks fo the unremitiing efforts and loyal service of our employees of dll
ranks, we achieved several breakthroughs and fruitful results in 2016.
We strongly believe that by working together with unity, passion and
commitment, we shall be able o achieve higher and greater goals and get
outstanding results. | also express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
fellow board members, and all business partners for their support and frust.
We will use our every endeavour to promote sustainable development of

the Group and generate substantial reward for our shareholders.

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Jun Chen
Executive Director, Chairman of the Board and CEO

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
YIZEIE B AN

THE MAP BELOW SHOWS THE GEOGRAPHICAL
COVERAGE OF OUR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS.

TEINLEFMEERIEEMIEEEHE -

Wuxi
L\

XUZHOU h -
CHANGSHU

=

HAIKOU

7§III| f
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOUO (Continued)

ESEVSYLPING 2
SHANGHAI e Cambridge Forest New Town B+ &
L e Orienfal Garden (Cambridge VWatertown) 5 75 EEB (BERG 7K 45 )

e Tiffany (Cambridge Waters) &i%& (EEE 7K #B)

® Holiday Inn Shanghai Pudong Kanggico _E/5EER Ak BB
e Greenland Seaside City 4k30/8 =3

e Greenland Xin Du Hui #3702

® Greenland Huangpu Center 4% 2 8 /& )T

e Greenland Yunxiang Tower &%ith 2K =

i
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBEB BN #)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

1. CAMBRIDGE FOREST NEW TOWN

RBEE

Brief Introduction IEH & :
Site area [sq.m) HRERE (FEHK) - 1,584,334 —  One of the largest low-density residential
GFA [squm) @sEIE (F5%) ¢ 1,150,697 ceveopmens)inlSianghal

PESRMEREEEER 2 —

- Within 25 minutes’ driving distance to
the city center

PERET RO 259 EHIE

2., ORIENTAL GARDEN (CAMBRIDGE WATERTOWN)

R REPR (BRTRKAD)

Brief Introduction BB 4t :
Site area [sq.m) #RERE(EHK) : 304,001 —  The Chinesesiyle, lakeside villa development
GFA [sq.m] @REER(THK) 202,629 el

—  The project has approximately 700 houses;
Located in Qingpu District; 25km from
Honggico Airport
IR EEBRE - BAY7006REEARR -
PEREITBHIZ 25N E

- Adjacent fo ancient water town Zhuijiajico;
1,700-ear history and a famous fourist site;
excellent ecological area
HWERARRAEESHEERA - RXAR
BB, 7005FFE L HKE R - AEEE
BB R T 5t
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
YEBB BN @)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

3.

TIFFANY (CAMBRIDGE WATERS)

FRE(RIBKEB)

Brief Introduction IEH &4t :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FFK) - 439;667 —  Alargescale property development
GFA (sq.m| BREERE(FHK) 579,696 comprising mainly residential properties

targeted at middle class customers
HEEMESBERNN ALY X RIA
B UAHERERIZEERER

- Within 5 minutes fo the nearest Mefro
station and within 20 minufes fo the city
center by the subway
FREE AR EIIA A S DI TIE » 209768
P R 350 AT T R

jEEEEREs

==
=
-

HOLIDAY INN SHANGHAI PUDONG KANGQIAO

LiEERGREEE : :

Site area (sq.m) A EE(EHXK) : 42,750 —  The project is located close to the Pudong
GFA [sq.m| B SEEME (FITK) - 59,630 airport, the 2010 World Expo site and the

Shanghai Disneyland
ZBBAGLERES - 2010 FitiEg
B K Eat R

—  The hotel has 400 guest rooms. This project
also consists of apariments, refail space and
conference facilities
BEHA0EBEERME - A8 - TEZEM
K& FERN
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS L;8I&H

5. GREENLAND SEASIDE CITY
s Y

Brief Introduction IHHE :

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(CFHK) 691172
GFA (sq.m) gszsemis(Fk) 153,273

6. GREENLAND XIN DU HUI
A EE

Site area (sq.m| HBREE(FHK) : /479
GFA (sq.m) BEZSEER(EHK) : 22,438

J

e [T .,

- A mixed development of commercial and
office

BEMR DGR ERIER

- located in Heqging Town, within Shanghai
Free Trade Zone, Pudong New Areq,
Shanghai, 24km fo People’s square and
1 1km to Pudong airport
R EERRTREEEE  BLEAE
EIREE - EREARES2ARE - HRHE
HBIRE

Brief Introduction JEE &4t :

— A mixed development of commercial and

office

BEMRRERABRIAR

- located in Hongkou District, Shanghai,
close to Baoshan District and Zhabei
District, about 1.3km fo Jiangwang Station
of Metro Line 3
IR BB AE - #E LR REIL
& - PERESSRAR BB 3RE



ZE-AFER BMBEBZERARAITY 17

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
YEBB BN @)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

7. GREENLAND HUANGPU CENTER

ML

Brief Introduction IEHE &4 :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FFK) - 647980 — A mixed development of residential,
GFA [sq.m) BBREER(FHK) 245,550 commercial and ofice

EFE BEMIAGAERER

- To be developed info a new landmark in
Shanghai
TR R LR 2T

B

Il ,HI,— : K 3

iy
i

2 LY

iy

8. GREENLAND YUNXIANG TOWER

GHWERKE

Brief Introduction IEH &4} :
Site area (sq.m) #RERE(EHK) : 11,229 — A mixed development of commercial and
GFA [sq.m) e saEm(F k) : 28,072 office

BEIPREEEERIAR

—  located at east of Cha Xi Road and south of
Jin Mai Road
AR AR « 2B AR
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

SUZHOU PROJECTS EFIEH

1. GLOBAL 188

IR¥k188

Brief Introduction IEHE :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(CFHK) 147896 —  located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park,
GFA (sq.m] EEER(EHK) 1497308 near Jinji Lake, underground connected fo the

subway
Rz R AR HE WA RN T35 [E R T [
A - MR

2. TRIUMPH RESIDENCE

sl e & BB

Brief Introduction IHB 4t :
Site area (sq.m| HARERE(FEHHK) 158,825 - A mixed development of residential and
GFA [sq.m) BRSEER(FIK) : 557,269 CEsiEETe)

EERBFGAERIAR

- located in the center of Taihu Lake New
Town in Wujiang District, Suzhou, south of
Kaiping Road, west of Jiangcheng Boulevard
ASE BRI T SR [ AR A% OB —
FTEE AR - TIIAE AR




PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Continued)
YEBB BN @)

SUZHOU PROJECTS &I H

3. GREENLAND JIANGNAN HUAFU

i IR AT

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FHAK) 2047981
GFA (sq.m) s SEEE(FHK) 490,000

1

LI ’"I‘ ll'“‘iulrJ ||

m |'i|ir | ul 'II’.

i f‘Il”' ”"F jl' .wM“u

4. SUZHOU ONE
XM ONE

Site area (sq.m) HAREAE (FFK) - 697217
GFA (sq.m) #sEmiE(FEk) 172,000

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

Brief Introduction IEH & :

A residential development {FE 3£ R 18 B

Located at Chengnan, Wujiang Disfrict,
Suzhou City, which is the core and political
center of Wujiang, as well as a highend new
CBD integrated with financial, commercial
and residential functions
ASERERN DA EIREE - ZIREEARRIT
ZOE - BERRIIHEUA D © thE
SOR - T - BE— B =RIEICBD
i

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

Located in the economic and technological
development zone in Wuijiang, north of
Jiangling Dong Road and east of Pang Bei
Road

SRR TR BRI FIZER - TTREERERIA
1t - BEALERIATR

Developed info a highquality residential
community

REREEEELEE
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

WUXI PROJECTS fE£518 H

1. GREENLAND Xl SHUI DONG
3 T IK R

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEFK) - 248,800
GFA (sq.m) BREEE(FEH*) : 695,400

2. SKY TREE
X 2= i

Brief Introduction IEBET :

Located in the heart of Wuxi and in close
proximity fo the central commercial and
business district. Currently the largest city-core
development project in VWuxi, fo be a muli-
phase and largescale citycentre infegrated
development comprising residential and
commercial compound

A THL - BAPREERER - &
# B pTsAMEm R ORERIAR - K
RESETMEETRAAL - ZHFE
B4R & B8IR B

Brief Introduction IEB G :

Site area (sq.m) HAREAE (FFK) - 164,624
GFA [sq.m) REER(TH%K) 338,000

—  located above the No. 1 subway of Wuxi
Guang Cheng Subway Property Development
Project in Wuxi
RIPNESH RS | SRAR BRI
FEIER

—  located in Tai Hu New Town with convenient
fransportation, good landscape and mature
infrastructure
RAABF - 2BAE - BREx - B
#HE TS E R

— A mixed development of residential,
commercial and office

EFE  BERRRFAERE



ZE-AFFN BSMEBERERAS

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
YEBB BN @)

CHANGSHU PROJECTS #ZRIEH

1. GREENLAND LA CASA

“iig = e
Brief Introduction IEHE 4} :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FFK) - 1581 825 - Situated at the foot of Yu Mountain, facing the
GFA [sq.m) iR SSEE(EHK) - 86,728 national park and with established amenities
and infrastructures
N . 7 RIREILIT - EESERFAAE - 55

TEE N LR & EHE R I

— A prestigious project in the area consisting of
fownhouses and duplexes units
AmEEERIE M BN BIZ AR EE
THE

2, GREENLAND EMERALD BAY

G e Re 2R
Brief Introduction IEH &4} :

Site area (sq.m) HEEEE(FHK) - 107,391 —  Siftuated at the unique location and adjoins
GFA [sq.m) fgssms (%) : 121,325 the scenic Shang lake fo the north along with

impressive landscape
ZHEB MR ESEERNEAREF - YR
SAERBMILIKSE
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

NINGBO PROJECT Z=;%1EH

1. GREENLAND BIHU INTERNATIONAL

&3t A E PR
Brief Introduction IEH & :
Site area (sq.m) HAZEE(FH3K) : 90,974 —  Excellent location af the enfrance fo

_ Hangzhou Bay Bridge linking Shanghai fo its
125 ’691 southwest, City Express Ring Road fo ifs east,
Yubei Expressway fo its north and is adjacent
fo Xiaoyong Railroad

LS EWEIIRAE - FEE AN
BEEDE  REEESEHEEARE - 1t
EAAL RN - WAL A&

GFA (sq.m) #83EEEE (¥ 77K)

—  Astategic move to mark the Group's
expansion into Zhejiang province, and
establish a more comprehensive coverage of
the Yangtze River Delia
B EE FNT A B SR B T
EAMBEN—F - #HEAEEER=A
HofE A 5 PR BV R R T




ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLQO (Continved)
YEBB BN @)

HUANGSHAN PROJECT =LUIEH

1. GREENLAND TAIPING LAKE RESORT PROJECT
G KEHEREREE

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FHAK) 272831733 —  located in the northern part of Huangshan,
GFA (sq.m| @BEEE(THK) 1,141,867 close to the legendary scenic Taiping lake
X EILITIEES - B BRI AR B E

AT

- Muliphase resort development comprising
fivesstar hotels, golf course, resort villas and
apartments
REHERNERRIAR - BELERB
JE - mRRHS - ERIERAS

- A gdlf practicing facility designed by world-
renowned Gary Player
Bt RTER = BRERE TR Gary Player 2851
B = RIS

—  Crowne Plaza Huangshan Taiping Loke, a
standard fivesstar resort hotel with a GFA of
42,092 square meters and a fofal of 247
rooms
=LA Az 2B R B EE R ZEE
ER42,002F 5K » BHA247KE
BN E REREDAE

23
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

HANGZHOU PROJECT #iiI5H

1. GREENLAND CIFI CITY
& NB KE

Brief Introduction IEBET :

Site area (sq.m) HAEFE(FHHK) - 587798
GFA (sq.m) R EEH(EAK) : 204,551

TAIYUAN PROJECT KI/RIEH

1. GREENLAND SHANDING PARK
b L R E

— A mixed development of residential and
commercial

EFERBFGAERIEAR

- located at Hangzhou Olympic and
International Expo Center, Binjiang District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province
AT T AN TR BN REEE

Brief Introduction IEHE T :

Site area (sq.m) HARMEE(FITK) : 429,000
GFA [sq.m) #2sEmiE(F k) : 352,900

—  located in Xiaodian District, southeast of
Taiyuan City, the capital of Shanxi Province,
an area with enormous potential as the local
government infends fo develop the area into
a multifunctional residential, commercial and
leisure new town center
LTS S ARRE A/ VER o 52308
EEEEET  REMBITSERNS
TIREET ~ B RIREFT T



ZE-RFEFH BMEBZRERAT 20

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLQO (Continved)
YEBB BN @)

HAIKOU PROJECTS i&#OI8H

1. GREENLAND THE FLOREA

£ 3 58 35

Brief Introduction IEH S :
Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FHAK) 202,174 —  located at the firsttier waterfront in the
GFA (sq.m| BREERE(FHK) 252,759 eastemn part of Haikou, the Florea enjoys

an unobstructed ocean view, comprising
Spanish-siyle residential development
RIFSEOTERER - SR AL P — PR AR
B RERFAETEA

2. GREENLAND HAI CHANG LIU

HBRA
Brief Introduction IEB G :

Site area (sq.m) HEEEFE (FTK) - 339,720 — located at the core area of New CBD, just
GFA (sq.m) BRSEER(FHK) 170007652 close to the New administration Center of
Haikou
RzpA/8 A TR Az O R (CBD) - 2245
EAREGEE ey GRUN

—  The land connects the Coast Avenue from
North, and faces the International Exhibition
Cenfre
ZARI SO E EREFE2 ——
BENE  EEERERgRRO
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

HAIKOU PROJECTS i&#OI8H

3.

GREENLAND CITY

“ihing

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(CFHK) 2;5247679 - Alorgesscale mixed development of
GFA (sq.m) SR SE (T HK) - 4’396,600 residential, commercial and office

REWEE - BENMAGRARRIAR

—  located in Meilan District, east of Haiwen
‘ Highway, south of Meilan Airport and west
d | of Nandu River
URERER  BXERAKEAR « XHH
HUAR © R LLATR

GREENLAND CENTRAL CULTURE CENTER

gkt s 3R ST{LIE , :

Site area [sq.m) HAREE(FFHK) - 975,717 - Alargescale mixed development of
GFA (sq.m) 2 sEmEm (F %) 3,273,100 residential, commercial and office

REER  BERRAGEERIAR

—  located in Xivying District, west of Chang
Bin Road, east of VWuyuan Lake, north of
Changliu No. 3 Road, south of Haiyu West
line
IR FEE - RBEAF - RIRALAR -
RmM=5RE& AL - /B TaAE AR




PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLQO (Continved)
YEBB BN @)

KUNMING PROJECTS EBRIEH

1. THE METROPOLITAN
B K

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FHAK) 1707806 =

GFA [sq.m) BREEE(FHkK) : 614,994

Fpogx N

i T

2. GREENLAND HAI PO LAN TING
HHhiBInRE

Site area (sq.m) HARERE(FFTK) : 155,549 -
GFA [sq.m| 48 5EETE (T 75K)

. 241,656

located along Dianchi Road in the
mefropolitan area of Kunming, where the
Provincial Central Administration Offices

are located, is a high quality multi-phase
residential and commercial project

R ERTHROREELEED - TAER
BRRITEHRE - B HEROAEE
ZRERSIVEHESON=PElE

Brief Introduction IEB Gt :

A mixed development of residential and

commercial

FERERFARRIAR

Located at the south west side of Er Huan
Road, the east coast of Caohai, the north of
Dianchi and west of Xi Fu Road in Kunming
City

A B BATE ZIRFE PR Al - JEILED -
B8R F - FOEEAT

27
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

KUNMING PROJECTS EEAIEH

3. GREENLAND XIANG SHU HUA CHENG

5 it B Hf TE , .

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(CFHK) 70, 800 - A mixed development of residential, office
GFA (sq.m) RSEEM(FHK) 235,223 and commercicl

FE BRAREEGARRIER

—  located at west of Jinchuan Road, east of

‘ Guihua Road, north of Chen Jia Ying Road

‘ and south of Guihua Road, the Pan-Asia
Technological New Zone, northwest side of
Wuhua Disfrict in Kunming City
P B BAT R EE R PRt @2 SR RH T
& RED)IE  AEHREE - BERK
- L ER B

4. GREENLAND YUNDUHUI SQUARE

G EBEEIS
Brief Introduction IEH 4T :

Site area [sq.m) HAREE(FFHK) - 59,355 — A mixed development of residential, office

CFA (sq.m) S SEM(EH¥K) : 237,418 and commercicl
% WAREEEAREER

—  located at west of connecting railway of Kun
Wu expressway, east of extension of Ke Pu
Lu, north of Wang Qiong Gong Road and
south of Chen Jia Ying Road, the PanAsia
Technological New Zone, northwest side of
Wuhua Disfrict in Kunming City
R EIAM AR IR Bz R
& - REERSEBRAE - AERIEKIE
REE - BEEHRE - EERKREEK




ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLQO (Continved)
YEBB BN @)

XUZHOU PROJECTS #&MI=H

1. CHINA RESOURCES * GREENLAND TRIUMPH ARCH

3 e 45 b S e P

Brief Introduction IEHE &4 :
Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FHAK) 861971 — A mixed development of residential and
GFA [sq.m) #2525 mEE (oK) - 327,284 commercic

EERAFEFAERER

—  located in Gulou District, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu
Province, west of Zhong Shan Road (N and
north of Tong Pei Road
SIPOTEFBRMTSER - A LdEE LA
7 - SRPMES SALL

2. GREENLAND LAKESIDE VILLA
G EAEEE

Brief Introduction IEB G :

Site area [sq.m) HAEE(FITK) : 356:629 — A mixed development of residential and
GFA [sq.m) s EE (F %) : 342,337 commercial

FERERFARRIAR

—  Located in the south west of Tongshancheng
Disfrict, south of Fenghuang Mountina and
north of Yin Mountain, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu
Province
RIFSTERE RN TR L= R AL - BE
ILILARS - #RILBADE

29
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
MEEEEN (#®)

GUANGXI PROJECTS FEfaIEH

1. NANNING GREENLAND CENTER
Eipil

Brief Introduction IEHET :

Site area (sq.m) HAEFE(FHHK) - 3561629 -
GFA (sq.m) gzssmis (k) : 314,875

2. GREENLAND INTERNATIONAL HUADU

A mixed development of office and

commercial

MANREFEFAERIER

Located south of VWuxiang Avenue, VWuxiang
New Disfrict of Nanning City, Guangxi
Autonomous Region

R ER R AREEDHNEARAEIAR

ax B PRIEE
ORI

Site area (sq.m) HEAREFE(FHK) 981600 -
GFA [sq.m) 2SEEE(F k)  : 345,000

A mixed development of residential and
commercial

EERBEFAERIAR

Located on Pingle Boulevard, VWuxiang New
District, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous
Region

IR EPS BAE M E D ARHER FLERE



ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLQO (Continved)
YEBB BN @)

GUANGXI PROJECTS EfIEH

3. WUXIANG GREENLAND CENTER

ARG

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FHAK) 23,479 — A mixed development of commercial and

GFA [sq.m) BREEE(FHK)  : 117,396 office
HERB A AFRIER

—  located east of Pingle Boulevard, Wuxiang
New District, Nanning City, Guangxi
Autonomous Region
BT R R A ET ARITE TEEE
A

GREENLAND CENTRAL PLAZA
# it h REEIS

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FFAK) 821640 — located in the extended secfion of Dongge
GFA (sq.m) BREER(EHK) 2837600 Road and close fo the intersection of Dongge
Road, Binhu Road and Jinhu N. Road.

The project has topHier urban facilities and
convenient fransport infrasfructure

IR R BIEIERER ~ AR BE% - B
KWL SR o T8 B R TAR T AR
RAEMZmEE

— A mixed development of residential,
commercial and office with foptier urban
facilities and convenient transport infrasfructure
EE  AXEREPRGAER - WRATER
ST R b Sk (R | S AL 122
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBEB BN #)

GUANGXI PROJECTS FEfaIEH

5. GREENLAND WEST TOWN INTERNATIONAL HUADU

£ P Yk B PR TE B

Site area (sq.m) MASEE(EHK) : 74,000 —  located in Xiangsihu subdistrict in Nanning,
6 west of Luowen Avenue and east of Luoxian
GFA (sq.m| sz sEmEE(F7K) : 290,200 Avenue
UREERBNDE - BXCREAARE

BREAR

— located in the Nanning's center of culture,
education and scientific research development

IREEXL - HE RMFERND.L

- A mixed development of Residential and
Commercial

EFERBFGAER

JIANGXI PROJECT ;IFHIEH

1. GREENLAND CHAOYANG CENTER

LR EARE Pl

Brief Introduction IEBET :
Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FITK) 110,189 - A mixed development of residential,
GFA sq.m) BREER(FFK) - 495,800 commercial and ofice

EFE  BERRRGFAERIER

—  Situated af the intersection of the old town
of Xihu District and the new town area in
Chaoyang Disfrict, Nanchang
NIFFE & PO 2 4 & B R RS ST S L

—  Planned fo be developed info a landmark
fo showcase Nanchang's urban renewal
achievements and represent the imporfant
provincial capital in the middle of Nanchang
City
REIFTIER A —(ERE R & B ECERK
R RERBETMHREREGUTIZR
KR




—AEFH BMEBERERAT

PROPERTY INVESTMENT
MERE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND HEFXFERHNFIEERRFE
SALE BY THIS REPORT ME

Name of property and location Group's interest % Property Status Scheduled completion
MEEWRIE FRENERT R AR BEERAH

(1) Cambridge Forest Newiown 98.24% Apor ment AF Complefed Completed
Xlu%(m Rg , Pudong New Areq, Shanghi Commercial 7% AR DER
Limfrﬁi%ﬁ[%/uﬁﬂ

[2)  Tifany (Cambridge Waters| 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Shuichan Rd., Baoshon Distiict, Shanghai Commercial B BEK BEK
ERE (FELD)

HENEILEER

(3] Oriental Garden (Carmbridge Wateriown] 100%  Vila B2 Completed Completed
Fuing Rd,, Gingpu Distict, Shongfoi BEK BER
255 (3 g
fu:i) ﬁfﬁ[@@

[4) Holiday I Shanghai Pudong Kanggjoo 100%  Hotel JEfE Completed Completed
Kiuyan Rd., Pudong New Areq, Shanghi Senvice apariment BEK BEN
b@ﬁﬁﬁiﬂf&ﬁ/@ﬁ RBEARE
DETRERRENE Commercial 7%

(5] Greenlond Seaside City 50%  Office AR Supersiructure 2017

ing Town, Pudong New Areq, Shonghai Commerciol F% work in progress —2tF
i bEmsRI
tﬁm/ﬁ*ﬁ@?fé

6)  Greenland Xin Du Hui 50%  Office HAZ Completed Completed
Jiangwan Town, Hongkou District, Shanghai Commercial 5% DIER [Rh:0
e

LEMIARTER

[7) Greenland Huangpu Center 100%  Apariment A% Superstructure 2020
Wligioo Area, Huangpu District, Shanghai Office FAE work in progress —2o%F
BREBET Commerciol 5 TERSET
LETERRLERE

(8] Greenland Yunxiang Tower 100%  Office HAZE Comp\e fed Completed
Nanxiang Town, Commercial 5% DR DR
Jioding District Shongho\
ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁg
LT REEREAE

(9 Global 188 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
No. 88, Suhui Rd., Suzhou Industry Park, Office HAZE 2K =23
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Commercial g%

RIK188
THEFMNTERM LEERFSHR8H

(10]  Triumph Residence 50%  Apariment AE Phase Il - superstruciure work 2017
Taihu Lake New Town, Wujiang district, Suzhou City, Commerciol in progress —T—+tF
Jiangsu Province EH- FEREHTH
fizm
ITHREHMNTRITE AN

[11)  Greenland Jiangnan Huafu 100%  Apariment AB Phase | = superstructure work 2017
Chengnan, Wojiong District, Suzhou City Vilo HIE in progress —2tF
i TRER H- LEREH T

FNRIRRERA

(12) Suzhou ONE 100%  Residential £ Preliminary stage 2018
North of Jiangling Dong Rd and east of Pang Bei Road Commercial 72 MEBEE —E-N\E
Wupong Disfrict, Suzhou City Office AR
FNDRTRTRERAL - BT

[13] Greenland Xi Shui Dong 100%  Apariment A% Phase IIl - supersiruciure work 2019
No. 122, Jiankang Rd., Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province Commerciol 7% in progress —Z-NE
BT FoH-LEREHRID
ITHREESTRER1225

(14)  SkyTree Q0%  Residential £ Preliminary stoge 2019
Tai Hu New Town, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province Commercial F5E NEBEE —E-hE
THE BRI Office HAE

[15] Greenland la Caso 100%  Apariment A% Complefed Completed
No. 688, Yushan Rd (N)., Changshu City, Jiangsu Province 25374 Bk
ipptase
TR R RS

[16]  Greenland Emerald Bay 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Huanhu Rd (5., Changshu City, Jiangsu Province Vilo IE B BEK
SEES
IHAR ﬂmﬁﬁﬂﬁ%

[17) Greenland Bihu Infemational 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Cicheng Town, Jiangbei District, Vilo IE BIAK BIAK
Ningbo C\Iy Zheuong Province Commercial 7%

2 e
WIBE /ﬁﬂi/lit[nﬁfﬁ

(18 Greenland Shanding Park 100%  Apariment A% Phase Il - superstructure work 2017
No. 86, Dongfeng Rd., Xiaodian Distict, Taiyuan City Vilo 52 in progress —T+F
i\ BT H- LERER T

AR/ NEBRIEF 865
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT (Confinved)
MERE ®)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND HEFXFERHNFIEERRFTE
SALE BY THIS REPORT (Continued) Y (48)

Name of property and location Group's interest %  Type Property Status Scheduled completion
MELZRRIE FREREZES by MERR EEER A
(19) Green\ond Tai m? lake Resort Project 100%  Hotel /B Phase IV - supersiruciure work -~ 2017
No. 1, Binh gou evard, Taiping Lake Town, Apoﬂmen AE in progress —E4E
Huangshan District, Huongshon Cily, Anhui Province Golf mRAIS FME- FEREHTR

AT HEBRER
ZRARUT AR THEENAE 1R

[20)  Greenland The Florea 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
231;0 3, i;wdm 6 East Road, Haikou City, Hainan Province Vu\lo plE BN BERK
BEEEAMEAREKIT

[21)  Greenland Hai Chang Liu 50.1%  Apariment A% Phase Ill - supersiructure work -~ 2017
No. 319, Binhai Bou?evard, Xiuying Distrct, Haikou Cily, Commerciol 7% in progress —EtF
Hainan Province FoH- LEREHTH
WERR ‘

AREEOTARREGAE 0%

[22)  Greenland City 100% Aponmen I/N:S Phase Il - superstruciure work 2017
Jingxian Rd., Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province Office PAZE in progress —TtE
ity ) Commercial 7% ES LEREHTF
BEEEATEREMER

(23) Green\ond Central Culiure Center 100% Aponmen NS Phase Il - supersiruciure work 2017

von Rlver Areo Xivying District, Haikou City, Hainan Province Ofiice HAZE in progess —EtF
Ig Commercol EoH- LERERTT
iﬁé@um%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ

(24)  The Mefropoliton 100%  Apariment A% Phase IV - supersiruciure work 2017
No 77, Jinniu Rd., Xishan Disfrict, Kunming City, Yunnan Province Commercial 7% in progress —E—tF

BAH FME- FEREHTH
*@’éﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁlmzﬁﬁk%ﬁﬁ

[25)  Greenland Hai Po Lan Ting 55% Aponmen nNE Phase Il - supersiruciure work 2017
Xishan District, Kunming City, Yunnan Province Villo B2 in progress —T—+F
SHEHRE Commercial % H- LEREETS
ERERATALE

[26)  Greenland Xiang Shu Hua Cheng 55% Aponmen N Phase Il - supersiructure work 2017
Wouhua District Kunming City, Yunnan Province Office H#AZ in progress —T+tF
SIBEBITER Commercial 7% Fo ﬂg - LEREHTH
ERLERTIER

[27)  Greenland Yunduhui Square 55%  Apariment A Phase Il - superstruciure work 2017
Wuhua D\snc Kunmmg City, Yunnan Province Office #RZ in progress —T+tF
ZHeEs Commerciol #% FTH- LERERTT
EHERADIER

(28] Greenlond Cifi City 50%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Hangzhou Olympic and Intemational Expo Center, Commerciol 7% BEK &N

%n&on%ﬁ&snc Hangzhou City, Zhe“ang Province
WIEMNTEIERNRERE

[29)  China ResourceseGreenland Tﬂumph Arch 50%  Apariment AZ Phase Il - supersiructure work 2017

Bln Road, Xuzhou Cily, Jiangxi Province Commercial 7% in progess —T+tF
il o0 teemsTs
LiERImRTS

[30)  Greenland lokeside Villa 100%  Townhouse EtHER|ZE Phase Il - superstruciure work 2017
j\ooshan lake Aveq, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu Province Commercial 7% in progress —T—tF
RS FH-LEREHIH
Jﬁ%ﬁﬂmmmﬂm&

(31) Nanning Greenland Center 100%  Office AR Phase | = supersiiuciure work 2017
Wuxiang New Distrct, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous Region Commerciol 7% in progess 2%
HERPL FH-LEREHIT
ERRRRAETLSHE

(32)  Greenland Internafional Huadu 100%  Apariment A% Phase Il - superstruciure work 2017
Pingle Boulevard, Wuxiong New District, Nanning City, Commercial 7% in progress S
Guongyi Autonomous Region - FEREHETH
FRBIRIER
ERBRREEDLRHETERE

[33)  Wauxiang Greenland Center 100%  Office A= Phase Il - supersiruciure work 2017
Waxiang New District, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous Region Commerciol 7% in progress —EtE

it LT FH-LEREHIT
ERBRREETLEHE

[34)  Greenland Central Plaza 60%  Residential (£ Phase | - superstiucture work 2017
Dongge Rood Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous Region Commerciol 7% in progress —2—tF
iiﬂﬂ‘% Office H#AZ FH-LEREHIT
ERmES [ﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ“

(35)  Greelond West Town Infemational Huadu 18%  Residentiol {1 De5|gn Plonmng 2019
Xiangsihu subdistrct, west of Luowen Avenue and Commerciol 7% SEtHElR —E-NE
east of luoxian Avenue Nanning City, Autonomous Region
BT R
BERRREXAEAEREEABAREE D

(36 Greenlond Chaoyang Center 100%  Apariment A% Phase | - superstructure work 2018
Intersection of Xihu District and the new fown area Office AR in progress —F-N\F
L%Ch%og%!g Disfrict, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 7% E—H- FEREETH

1k

IR HEANR ARG AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE WK D

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results

2016 marked the beginning of China’s "13th Five-Year Plan”, during
which China’s economy slowly moved forward against a backdrop of
relative stability with yearly GDP growth of 6.7%. During the first three
quarters of 2016, China’s real estate market continued to build momentum
thanks to favorable policies rolled out in 2015; property markets in first
and secondHier cities saw increases in both volume and price, and “land
kings" emerged in numerous places. Subsequently, many cities infroduced
property control measures, and regulatory departments tightened the credit
requirements for real estate enterprises which dampened the overheated
property market. Despite fluctuation in China's property market during
the year, the overall performance of the Group met expectations. For
the year ended 31 December 2016 (“the year under review'),
total confracted sales amounted to approximately RMB18,219 million,

representing a yearon-year growth of approximately 5%.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a fotal revenue of
approximately RMB16,919 million, an increase of approximately 197%
from 2015, primarily as a result of the sharp increase in GFA sold and
delivered in 20106. Profit for the year was approximately RMB 1,241
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 3,820%. Basic and
diluted eamings per share atiributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to approximately RMBO.39 per Ordinary Share, compared with
approximately RMBO.08 per Ordinary Share in 2015.

FE¥5 LR

E 35

“E-RERTHEIT =R IRBARRZF  PEE
EETERTBIE  BYET  2FEANLEERE
(GDP)RFIERS.7% - HEEHETIH T —NF
BE=FEE T -RFMFBRERSE MHETER
— - ZHETHRIEEET ] ZHERMME] -
BER Z AT H BB ARG - SRR PIRERE
WELENRE - BHHRRR - BEPEFSLE
MSEFALRKE  AREEBRRANEEY - &
ECERFTZA=+—HIEFE(EEER])
MAEHNHERBENABARE8,219,000,0007T -
REFIBRLIS%

REBFR XEBHSRAKEZHVARE
16,019,000,000 & » 8 =T — A F MK
197%  TERAR-_F-R"FEHRIAME
EEREEEN  REEFEENOBARE
1,241,000,0007¢ * #FIHEN3,820% - A5 H
BEANBEBREARBERNOAEREBERA
R¥039T » —T—HFHREBROBARKE
0.087T °
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Results (Continued)

During the year under review, the fotal gross floor area ("GFA”) sold
and delivered amounted to 1,233,561 square meters, an increase of
approximately 99% from 618,616 square meters sold and delivered
during 2015. The average selling price ("ASP") was approximately
RMB 13,029 per square meter. Revenue derived from property sales was
approximately RMB16,431 million, an increase of approximately 211%
from approximately RMB5,290 million in 2015.

The key projects completed and delivered in 2016 are as follows:

Item City
I5H W
Greenland Cifi City Hangzhou
AR B BRI U
Greenland Xi Shui Dong Wuxi
PR R 52
Greenland Huangpu Center Shanghai
At AT L&
Greenland International Huadu Nanning
B BFRIEEB MmE
China Resources ® Greenland Triumph Arch  Xuzhou
eSS el R
Greenland Hai Chang Liu Haikou
HIERR pisqm
Wouxiang Greenland Center Nanning
FREEHFR M
Greenland Central Culture Center Haikou
AR A R ST B pisqm
Greenland City Haikou
AR pign|
Greenland Shanding Park Taiyuan
AR L KR
Greenland Hai Po lan Ting Kunming

KR InEE EH

ESENEE))

E 3¢

REEFEA  SELMRXNBEENGEETER
1,233,561 ¥ 75K R-ZE-—HFEEHRRN
K618,616F 7 KB INAIO9% - FHEBHAE
FIRARKE3,0207T - MEHEREHNA/AR
#16,431,000,0007t * |M-ZE—HFHARE
5,290,000,0007T3 i0%I211% °

REZB—RNFRTRRXMOEIRRELT

Approximate Approximate

sales GFA sold
recognized and delivered Average
in 2016 in 2016 selling price

—B-RE —F-RE

£7di) EH R
BMAOHESE BOBREER FEHEE
RMB'000 sg.m RMB/sq.m
AR¥ETT IR AR¥ET/
5,357,441 207,312 25,842
1,904,227 145,468 13,090
1,507,053 13,565 111,099
1,393,239 221,379 6,293
1,304,906 139,885 9,328
883,734 112,705 7,841
493,634 48,301 10,220
438,843 55,136 7,959
387,168 55,201 7,014
350,481 32,753 10,701
342,938 21,800 15,731



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)

EEEWmAR DN (#)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Results (Continued)

Item

I5H

The Metropolitan

R R

Greenland Taiping Lake Resort
=LA FHAERRR
Greenland Bihu International
AR 22 B PR

Greenland Yunduhui Square
s EHEES

Greenland Xiang Shu Hua Cheng
KRB TEM

Greenland Central Plaza
b R ES

Cambridge Forest New Town
Greenland Lakeside Villa
GRS EE

Clobal 188

IRIR188

Greenland Emerald Bay
Tiffany

Oriental Garden

Rk

Greenland The Florea
[SeiuESe

Sub-total
et

City
itk

Kunming
£
Huangshan
&Il
Ningbo
K
Kunming
B
Kunming
£
Nanning
Shanghai
s
Xuzhou
R
Suzhou
&N
Changshu
B
Shanghai
s}
Shanghai
=
Haikou
&0

ZE-REFH
EOREE(E)
E 3¢
Approximate Approximate
sales GFA sold
recognized and delivered
in 2016 in 2016
—E-RE —B-RE
[i0d:] El R
BOMEE | BOEEEE
RMB'000 sg.m
ARETFT FIK
310,769 29,598
304,185 36,777
268,546 24,288
222,854 33,421
171,035 26,882
144,360 7,990
135,972 8,170
45,507 6,072
36,726 1,925
22,885 1,977
20,000 1,399
18,241 1,049
7,801 508
16,072,545 1,233,561

BHhEBZRERATF

Average
selling price

FHEE
RMB/sq.m
AR¥T
FITR
10,500
8,271
11,057
6,668
6,362
18,068
16,643
7,495
19,078
11,576
14,296

17,389

15,356

13,029
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Confinued) L3 ERE(E)
Results (Continued) ES (¢ )]
Approximate
sales
recognized
in 2016
—T-RE
Item City TR
I5H W MHER
Carparking RMB'000
P ARMBF 5
Greenland Cifi City — carparking lot Hangzhou 148,556
AR TEIERL — =L BN
Greenland International Huadu — carparking lot Nanning 89,425
FAERRIEER — (=8 ME
China Resources ® Greenland Triumph Arch — carparking lot Xuzhou 64,778
FE RSP — (R EL M
Tiffany-carparking lot Shanghai 13,804
Bk —{=E b
Cambridge Forest New Town — carparking lot Shanghai 11,960
SRR Rl CE s =
Wouxiang Greenland Center — carparking lot Nanning 11,429
BRI D — R E MmE
Greenland Emerald Bay — carparking lof Changshu 6,000
AR IERRE — (= E L B
Greenland The Florea — carparking lot Haikou 5,309
AR SR — 1F 3
Greenland Xi Shui Dong — carparking lof Wouxi 3,491
AR PAKER — BB AL &5
Greenland Hai Chang Liv — carparking lot Haikou 3,398
KB RIR — R B 3
Sub-total 358,150
\Eiy
Total 16,430,695

A
(=)




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
EEEWmAR DN (#)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Contracted Sales

Leveraging the influence and brand reputation of its parent company,
Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited ("Greenland Holdings”,
600606.5H), the Group skillfully executed its project positioning and
pricing strategy, while ocﬁve\y promoting high-end deve|opmems, and
enhancing overall average selling prices through higher quality products.
In 2016, the Group achieved tofal contracted sales of approximately
RMB18,219 million, with a yearon-year growth of approximately RMB831
million, an increase of approximately 5%, while the Group recorded a total
confracted sales GFA of 1,463,411 square meters, with a year-on-year

decline of 107,325 square mefers, a decrease of approximately /%.

During the year under review, the bulk of contracted sales derived from
projects in the Yangtze River Delta region, including those in Jiangsu,
Zhejiang and Shanghai, accounted for 29%, 12% and 12% of total
contracted sales, respectively. The Guangxi market has made great
progress and projects there accounted for 18% of total confracted sales.

Other key projects included those in Hainan, which accounted for 12%.

Strategic Cooperation
During the year under review, Greenland Hong Kong actively explored light
assef transformations and conducted strategic cooperation with partners

with respect to real estate funds and self-service hotel apartments.

During the year, the Group and Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited
("Cinda’) jointly sef up an equity investment pariership (limited partnership)
(the "Fund") as cogeneral partners. The Group and Cinda will carry out
the joint investment real estate projects by means of asset restructuring,
mergers and acquisitions and efc. The Group believe that the Fund was
conducive to further expanding ifs real estate business. In addition, the
Group and Guangxi Railway Investment (Group) Co., Limited ["Guangxi
Railway Investment’) entered into a sfrategic cooperation agreement,
pursuant to which a city development fund was established to jointly
develop the urbanization project in Guangxi. According to such strategic
cooperation agreement, the Group and Guangxi Railway Investment will
further collaborate in various sectors, including primary and secondary
land development, tourism and leisure, elderly healthcare, warehousing
and logistics, industrial projects and infrastructure, demonstrating our
determination in focusing on our key strategic areas and promoting the

economic development of Guangxi.

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

EOIRE(R)

BHHE

B R B IR B R AR ([ #&ibiEh
[600600.SH)) IR IRBE R MBS - A&
EERIEERE EMNEERE  BREDH
HE FANEZEESmENER  EITERTY
BE - —T—RF FEEBRSANHEREN
AR#18,219,000,0007T - #ZFE MK AR
831,000,0007T - &K R5% - M EAARE
SEEERIRT 463,411 F K - IRERA107,325
TR RIEKIRT%

REBEFA  R=AMEEERASESHER
ME2HR - BH1E NIk DEEEDRIEE
T29% ~ 12%R12%NEHHERR - ERmHEUS
RRER  EMAEBERT 18%MAKIHER - &
fhAMHERNROIRBERESRER12% -

Lad

BRER - EEARERREEENRER 1
EiERS RADAEELBRAEETHES
f -

FR - AEBREEFEERERAT (SR ]DIE
RWEESHRERA - ARBTRERIBERES
BEER(ARER) ((Ef))  ~EEEEEEM
BESH HBSZEFAARREMESRSR -
AEBEBEZEDEBEDEEE - THAMER
° HIN - AEEREF KR E (KE)ARAF]
([ REAESR ) 5F 7B A EHE - I ER
He  HEGFERZEEANECERIAR - BRIt
REFZBNBRAFERE - ARBEREAEKSEL
H— R RERR - REEE  BRYR
EXTE EREREFTEARE-FEE BR
EREEARHERBRE RS - B AR EABRL
BERARL
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Contracted Sales (Continued)

In November 20106, the Group and Cirip established a strafegic cooperation
agreement to jointly launch the first ever self-service hotel apartment series
brand, "G-Hotel”, which created a new internet-based hotel apartment
mode. This new mode is part of today’s “sharing economy” in which these
innovative selfservice hotel apartments are products for disinfermediation,
leading to reduce costs for customers, facilitating the breakthrough of market

restrictions on the O20 model, and providing more services.

In March 2017, the Group entered info the agreement with Kuwait Silk
Road Integrated Real Estate GP lid., a Cayman Islands exempted company
("KSL") and the Silk Road Infegrated Real Estate GP Lid., a Cayman Islands
exempted company, which is owned as to 50% by Group and 50% by KSI
(as holding company of the General Partner) to establish a real estate fund.
The fund will primarily focus on: (i) investment in top-ier world class real
esfate; (iijinvestment in real estate in prime locations in major cities globally,
including cities located within or along the regions covered by China’s “One
Belt, One Road” initiative; |iii) investment in diversified property sectors
including residential, commercial, office, refail, hospitality and integrated
developments; (iv) investment in logistics; (v) making strategic and other
investment in real estate; (vi] engaging in real estate financing; (vii) refaining
flexibility to invest in real estafe projects of various development stages; and

[viii) optimizing value across real estate development cycles.

Finance Business

The Group entered the internet finance business through its subsidiary,
Shanghai Greenland Financial Information Services Co., lid ("Greenland
Financial Services’). After just over a year's development, Greenland
Financial Services achieved a profit in the first year and has formed a
development pattern centered on three major areas of businesses — online

wealth management, asset management and data information services.

EXOIRE(4)

BEES{E(SR)

RZFB—RF+— A FEBEEEZKRTHERR
Bk - KEFMATEEEENEERASmE—
GHOTELEE % - FEIEE AB AR - £
[HREEEIFEXT - AN aB=VEEARI £
] - BEPREMRAR - O20E A RF ISR
Bl - WREZRIEAR ©

RIB—1LF=H F&EE HeHIEHREA
A]Kuwait Silk Road Integrated Real Estate GP Lid.
([KSLJ) - B2 S B &M F % 2 Althe Silk Road
Integrated Real Estate GP Lid. (E B 7R & B RKSI(1E
REBEBAZIERAR) D BIBERS50%K%50%) -
M FHERESETHE - BT EHT - (i)
FERERIEREHE ; ((1REREREERME
THERNFE - BFCRPE —F 58N
M ERENEE (1R ERZ T EME
B BEET - AE PRETEBERE
BR% (VERERDR  (VEFBEFREEE
IE ¢ (ViIEEEHERE © (ViRBELRER
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BEEH  ABIEEREIZAEHERZONER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Finance Business (Continued)

In terms of asset management, Dao Kun Asset Management Company
("Dao Kun Asset’), a subsidiary of Greenland Financial Services,
completed its strategic layout in 2016. Through innovative real estate
funds and sfructured financing, the company has built up a unique “assef-
product” line while providing specialised financing services to real estate
business customers in vertical development markets, and continuing fo
expand the total amount of assets under proactive management. As at the
end of 2016, the accumulative assets under management of Dao Kun Asset
totalled approximately RMB7,288 million, and the scale of existing assets
amounted fo approximately RMB6,034 million. Dao Kun Asset also made it
onto the China Index Academy’s “Top 10 Growth Rate of China’s Real Estate
Fund Management Scale in 2016."

In terms of platform construction, Greenland Guangcai (4&30/EB1), which
is responsible for online wealth management, has enabled Greenland
Financial Services to maintain a leading position within the industry by
esfablishing a comprehensive system of products, operations and payment.
The “customers’ asset size-based return system” initiated by Greenland
Financial Services in the internet finance industry resolved the confradiction
between flexible investments and higher returns. In addition, the successful
esfablishment of a secondary transferring market improved product liquidity
on the platform. The products issued by Greenland Guangcai in 2016
amounted to RMB10,060 million, with the number of registered customers
on the platform exceeding 1 million, and total turnover of the secondary
market amounting to RMB137 million. Benefiﬁng from strict risk controls,
Greenland Guangcai has been free of any penalties for breach of contract,

bad debts or deferred payments since it started operations in August 2015.

In terms of product releases, Greenland Guangcai continued fo innovate.
Customers were atfracted by new products and low costs. Asset hedge
platform, as well as value added and overseas allocating for customers
were also provided for customers, which enhanced customers’ activities af

the same time.

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

EOIRE(R)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Finance Business (Continued)

In terms of insfitutional business expansion, Greenland Financial Services
boasts more than 40 external partners (banks, funds, trusts, securities,
insurance, payment, etc.). In addition to further solidifying its collaboration
with 360 on “Your Wealth Platform” (#REFE), Greenland Financial
Services also seized opportunities for strategic cross-industrial cooperation
with partners in different industries such as the G-super brand under the
Greenland Group. At the same time, Greenland Financial Services actively
nurtured close communications with the marketing department and various
business divisions of the Greenland Group complementing each other with
unique advantages and initially established the Greenland wealth and life

ecological circle.

Other Businesses

In the first half of 2016, the Group sold an approximately 65.96% equity
interest in and shareholder’s loan to Shanghai Sipo Education Development
Co., limited ("Shanghai Sipo Education’) at a tofal consideration
of approximately RMB348 million. Upon completion of the transaction,

Shanghai Sipo Education was no longer a subsidiary of the Group.

Apart from financial services and its core business of property sales,
the Group's revenue was also derived from property leasing, property
management and other related services as well as hotel operations and

other related services.

Land Bank

During the year under review, the Group strategically increased its land
bank in core urban areas. In May 2016, the Group successfully bid on a
land lot located in the Wujiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone of Suzhou City, extending south to Jiangling East Road and west fo
Pangbei Road. The plot covered an area of approximately 69,217 square
mefers with approximately 172,000 square meters of planned consfruction
area at a fofal consideration of approximately RMB 1,523 million with the
average land price reaching approximately RMB8,800 per square mefer.
This project will be developed for residential and commercial purposes with
its commercial area ratio no more than 10% of the tofal area and will form

part of a high end residential community.

EXOIRE(4)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Land Bank (Continued)

In November 20106, the Company completed the acquisition of the
project located in the extended section of Dongge Road and close tfo the
infersection of Dongge Road, Binhu Road and Jinhu N. Road. The project
has a planned GFA of approximately 283,600 square meters and will be
designed to be a mix development of residential, commercial and office

with topier urban facilities and convenient transport infrastructure.

In January 2017, the Company jointly won bid for a piece of land located
in Gaoxin district, west of Luowen Avenue and east of Luoxian Avenue
in Nanning af a total consideration of approximately RMB535 million.
The land area comprises 74,000 square meters and the total GFA is

approximately 296,200 square meters for mainly residential purpose.

As announced by the Company, on 12 January 2017, the Group
enfered info an equity fransfer agreement to acquire a 90% interest of a
development project in respect of a piece of land in the Wuxi Guang
Cheng section connected fo the entrance of Subway line 1 in Wuxi af a
total consideration of approximately RMB2,274 million. The land area
comprises approximately 165,000 square meters and the fotal GFA is
approximately 338,000 square meters, of which 70% has been earmarked
for residential purposes. The project is located in Tai Hu New Town, the
first stop (Xuelang stafion) along the south extension part of Subway Lline 1
with convenient transportation links and surrounded by many parks, which
provide superb landscape resources. The project’s facilities are mature in

nature with several shopping malls within 5 kilometers.

These developments highlighted the Group's confidence in the future market
prospect of the Yangize River Delta region and is in line with the Group’s
strategy of solidifying ifs presence throughout the region, adding momentum
to Greenland's long-term development plans in the prime areas of major

Chinese cities.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group held a land bank of
opproximofe|y 14 million square meters, sTrotegicoH\/ located in the prime
areas of major cities along the Yangtze River Delta and coastal areas
of southern China. In addition to its land reserves, which are sufficient
to support active development over the next 3 to 5 years, the Group
will continue to seek additional high-quality land projects with promising

potential for development.

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Financial Restructuring

In July 2016, the Group issued US$120 million of senior perpetual capital
securities and 3.875% notes due 2019 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$450 million. The issuance of notes raised US$570 million
in gross total was used for the repayment of US$700 million bonds due in
October 2016; the shortfall was complemented with the internal fund of the
Group, which represented the Group's ample liquidity, sound operation and
its active strategy to reduce debt ratio. The management believe that the
nofes and securifies issued are beneficial o the Group, as it obtains long-
ferm financing from international investors, which will improve and integrate
the Group's capital structure. In the future, the Group will continue fo obtain
low cost financing through various channels in order to continuously improve

and optimize the Group's capifal sfructure.

Outlook
In 2016, China's economy grew steadily, opening up a bright chapter for

the “13th Five-Year Plan”. In 2017, China’s economy will continue to face
downward risks due to various complicated domestic and foreign facfors.
However, the Group believes that the Chinese government will continue
fo press ahead with supply-side structural reform and implement prudent
financial initiatives as well as steady monetary policies in order to maintain
stable economic growth. With respect to the real estate market, the Central
Economic Work Conference pointed out that “houses are for living, not
speculating” and advocated “frimming down inventory levels to stabilize
the property market”. The Group expects that China’s property market
will continue to embrace divergence in 2017. While housing prices will
develop stably in major core cities, the primary focus of third and fourth-tier

cities will be to gradually lower inventory levels.

leveraging the well-established brand image, abundant resources and
economies of scale of its parent company — Greenland Holdings, it will
continue to adhere fo a fripartite development approach of “real estate
development, internet financing and real estate funds”. With respect to
principal real estate operations, the Group will continue to make an allout
effort to build up its business presence in areas such as the Yangtze River
Delta and Pan-Pearl River Delta. At the same time, the Group will further
concentrate ifs resources on key areas, cities and products as well as aim to

enhance profitability through “products + services” in a sfeady manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Outlook (Continued)

In terms of infernet ﬁnoncing, Greenland Financial Services will continue to
make strenuous efforts to implement ifs three core strategies. The company
will also strive diligently to develop real estate internet financing while
continuing to optimize our online wealth management platform as well
as acfively replace and enrich platform product lines to maintain product
competitiveness without compromising safe and sound operations. The
company will also enrich its asset sources and quicken the pace of
management-scale assefs expansion; while fully leveraging its leading
technological strengths to actively develop its data information services
business. The Group also has plans for deepening ifs cooperation with
various Greenland business units to improve the overall formation of the

business cycle.

In addition, the Group will adhere to the development principle of “light
assefs and accelerated growth”. While identifying suitable projects through
the "SRIREF”, jointly established with Kuwait Strafegic Investor, the Property
Fund established with China Cinda [Hong Kong) Company Limited, and the
City Development Fund established with Guangxi Railway Investment, the
Group will also explore more cooperative opportunities for establishing real

estate funds.

In addition, the Group has interestbearing loans and bonds in both US
dollar and Hong Kong dollar; however its operational revenue is mainly
denominated in RMB. For details please refer to note 33 and 35 of the
consolidated financial statements set out in this report. During the year under
review, the depreciation of RMB has put pressure on corporate financing
costs and earmnings performance and, to a cerfain extent, has negatively
affected the performance of the Group. Therefore, up fo the date of the
annual report, the Company has signed forward foreign exchange contracts
in the aggregate principal amount of US$1,380 million to hedge against
any exchange rate risks while converting RMB to US dollar. The Company
will also continue to monitor RMB exchange rafe trends against the US
dollar and take appropriate measures to hedge against risks in foreign

currency exchange.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

The total revenue of the Group increased by 197% from approximately
RMB5,688 million for 2015 to approximately RMB16,919 million in
2016, mainly aftributable fo the sharp increase of revenue arising from

sales of property.

Sales of property as the core business activity, generated revenue of
approximately RMB16,431 million {2015: approximately RMB5,290
million), accounting for approximately 97% of the total revenue, and
representing an increase of approximately 211% as compared with
2015. The revenue of the Group from other segments included: leased of
properties, property management and other related services and hotel and

related services operation.
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RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETRT AREFT ARETTT
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lease of properties YHEBE 41,609 60,227 (18,618)
Total #sEt 16,919,188 5,687,953 11,231,235
Cost of Sales SHERE

Cost of sales increased by approximately 203% from approximately
RMB4,647 million for 2015 to approximately RMB14,091 million. The
cost of sales mainly comprised land costs, construction costs, capitalized

finance costs and sales tax.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit increased fo approximately RMB2,828 million from
approximately RMB1,041 million in 2015, while margin slightly decreased
from approximately 18% to approximately 17% mainly due to the different

types of delivered properties during 2016 from those in 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Other Income, Gains and Losses and Other Operating
Expenses

Other income, gains and losses and other operating expenses mainly
included gains from financial assets carried at FVTPL, write-down of
receivables and, foreign exchange gain and loss charged to income
statement. During the year under review, the Group recorded a loss of other
income, gains and losses and other operating expenses approximately
RMBO4 1 million increased by approximately 88 million from FY2015.
The increase was mainly due to the foreign exchange loss arising from the

devaluation of Renminbi during the year under review.

Operating Expenses

With the sustainable business development and expansion of the Group,
selling and marketing costs and administrative expenses increased
from approximately RMB319 million and RMB429 million in 2015 to
approximately RMB416 million and RMB500 million in 2016.

Net Finance Expenses
Finance expenses decreased from approximately RMB140 million in 2015
to approximately RMB6S5 million in 2016. The decrease was mainly in line

with the decrease of average financing cost.

Share of Profit of Joint Ventures

The Group recorded profit of joint ventures amounting to approximately
RMB195 million as compared to a gain of approximately RMB4,000 in
2015. The gain during the year was mainly aftributable to the property
delivery of Triumph Residence in Suzhou in 2016.

Revaluation Gain on Investment Properties

The Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties of
approximately RMB688 million, compared with a gain of approximately
RMB1,115 million in 2015. The fair value gain was mainly aftributable to

gain on investment properties in l\lonning and Shonghoi.

Income Tax

Income fax increased by approximately RMB484 million from approximately
RMB541 million in 2015 to approximately RMB 1,025 million in 2016
mainly due to more corporation income tax and land appreciation tax

provision accrued for property delivery.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Profit for the Period from Discontinued Operations

Profits for the period from discontinued operations represented the
operational result from Shanghai Sipo Education. The increase was due to

a gain arising from the disposal of Shanghai Sipo Education.

Profit for the year

The Company's profit for the year amounted to approximately RMB1,241
million, an increased of approximately 3,820% compared to approximately
RMB32 million in 2015.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 20106, the Group's total equity was approximately
RMBQ,724 million (31 December 2015: approximately RMB7,688
million), fofal assets amounted to approximately RMB54,105 million (31
December 2015: approximately RMB49,986 million) and total liabilities
stood at approximately RMB44,381 million {31 December 2015:
approximately RMB42,298 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group's business operations, bank loans and cash proceeds raised
have been the primary source of liquidity of the Group, which have been

applied in business operations and investment in development projects.

As at 31 December 20106, net gearing ratio (total inferestbearing loans
and bonds less cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash) over

1% (31 December
2015: approximately 172%) and fotal cash and cash equivalents (including

fotal equity) decreased fo a level of approximately 12

restricted cash] amounted to approximately RMB5,795 million, with total
borrowings of approximately RMB17,523 million and an equity base of
approximately RMBQ,724 million.
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EEEWmAR DN (#)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Treasury Policy

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB.
Apart from fund raising transactions in the capital market, there is limited

exposure fo foreign exchange risk.

The Group has interest-bearing loans and bonds in both US dollar and
Hong Kong dollar. For details please refer to note 33 and nofe 35 of the
consolidated financial statements sef out in this announcement. During the
year under review, the depreciation of RMB has put pressure on corporate
financing costs and earnings performance and, to a certain exfent, has
negatively affected the performance of the Group. Therefore, up fo the date
of the annual report, the Company has signed forward foreign exchange
contracts in the aggregate principal amount of US$ 1,380 million to hedge
against any exchange rate risks while converting RMB to US dollar. The
Company will also continue to monitor RMB exchange rafe trends against
the US dollar and take appropriate measures to hedge against risks in

foreign currency exchange.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of
enhancing the control over treasury functions and lowering the costs of
funds. In providing funds to its operations, funding terms have been centrally

reviewed and monitored at Group level.

To minimize the inferest risk, the Group continued to closely monitor and
manage ifs loan portfolio by its existing agreements” inferest margin spread

with market interest rates and offers from the banks.

Credit Policy
Trade receivables mainly arose from sale and lease of properties and
are seffled in accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale & purchase

agreements and lease agreements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged properties and time
deposits with a carrying value of approximately RMB8.6 billion to secure
bank facilities, and the fotal secured loan balance outstanding amounted to

approximately RMB4.9 billion.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Financial Guarantees
As at 31 December 2016, the Group provided guarantees fo banks for:

AR (])
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Ro2—AF+-A=t—R REEHRATSE
ERATIREER -

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—RF

+=-A=+—HB +=A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBETT

Morigage i7gia 7,274,193 4,513,174
Capital Commitment BEFEiE

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—RF

+=-A=+—H +=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETTT

Property development activities: ESTEILE

— Contracted but not provided for —BRIRNERER 6,751,193 5,566,083

Human Resources ANER

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 2,678
employees (31 December 2015: 2,772 employees). The Group has
adopted a performance-based rewarding system to motivate its staff. In
addition fo a basic salary, yearend bonuses are offered to staff with an
outstanding performance, share award schemes were adopted to attract
and retain falent. The Group also provides various training programs to

improve their skills and develop their respective expertise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties pertaining
to the Group's businesses. The following are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in
addition fo those shown below which are not known to the Group or which

may not be material now but could tum out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group's core business will be affected by various
factors, including but not limited to economic conditions and the
performance of property markets in regions where the developments or
investments are located, which would not be mitigated even with careful

and prudent investment strategy and srict control procedures.

Impact of Government Policies and Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government policy,
relevant regulations and guidelines established by the regulatory authorities.
Failure to comply with the rules and requirements may lead to penalties,
amendments or suspension of the business operation by the authorities. The
Group closely monitors changes in government policies, regulations and

markets as well as conducting studies fo assess the impact of such changes.

Foreign Exchange Risk
For defails of the Group's exposure in foreign exchange risk, please see
paragraph headed “Financial Performance — Treasury Policy” of this

"Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Third-Party Risk

The Group relies on third-party service providers in certain parts of its
business. While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realises that such operational dependency may pose a threat
of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service including reputation
damage, business disruption and monetary losses. To address such
uncertainties, the Group engages only reputable third-party providers and

closely monitors their performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, insofar as the Board was aware, there
were no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that had a significant impact on the business and

operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are ifs valuable assets. Thus, the
Group recognises the accomplishment of its employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
infernal training appropriate to individual needs. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments fo conform to the market level. Further, the Group provides a
healthy and safe workplace for all employees and no sfrikes and cases of

fatality due to workplace accidents occurred during the year under review.

The Group also undersfands that it is important fo maintain good relationship
with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-term goals.
During the year under review, there was no material or significant dispute

between the Group and its business pariners or bank enferprises.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board’) of directors (the “Directors”’) and the
management of the Company treasure shareholders’ confidence and trust
in the ability and vision of the management team and have pledged fo
maintain an open and responsive affitude in shareholders’ communications
that are at least on a par with other leading corporations in the industry.
The Board has been adamant in upholding best practices in corporate
governance fo ensure the timeliness, transparency and fairness of disclosure
fo maximize the Group's corporate values and will continue to enhance
its disclosure practices to display an exemplary corporate governance

practice.

It is the Board's belief that a sound corporate governance system has been

and will remain an instrumental element to the healthy growth of the Group.

Corporate Governance

The Company has strictly complied with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code’) as sef out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
(the “Listing Rules’) Govemning the Llisting of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’| during the year
ended 31 December 20106, except for code provisions A.2.1, A.4.2 and
E.1.2 as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, Mr. CHEN Jun
has undertaken the role of both chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company. The Company considers that the combination of
the roles is conducive fo the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group's strafegies and policies and such combination has not impaired the
corporate governance practices of the Group. The balance of power and
authority is ensured by the management of the Company’s affairs by the
Board which meets regularly o discuss and determine issues conceming the

operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject fo election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after their appointment. Pursuant to the Company's articles of association
(the “Articles”), any person appointed as a Director by the Board shall
stand for re-election at the next following annual general meeting of the
Company. Such arrangement is considered appropriate in light of the
requirement of paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which
requires that any person appointed by the direcfors fo fill o casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting and

shall then be eligible for re-election.

Code E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board should attend annual
general meetings. The chairman of the Board did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2016 due to other

business commitments.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance

practices adopfed and observed by the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”| as set out in Appendix 10
fo the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Business Model

2016 was a significant year highlighted by a substantial transformation
and outstanding achievements for Greenland Hong Kong. As the Chinese
government continues to press ahead with supply-side reforms, Greenland
Hong Kong is seizing prudent market opportunities despite currently
facing greater challenges. In line with the integrated strategy of our
parent company Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited ("Greenland
Holdings’), we have accelerated our pace of corporate restructuring,
actively developed innovative business strategies after entering the internet
finance industry, and have pro-actively explored the fransformation model of
light assefs. Greenland Hong Kong s sfriving hard to build a comprehensive
industrial group with three major business operations focused toward
parallel development: real estate development, infernet finance and real

estate funds.

Integrated Strategy

As our most important finoncing p|ofform in Hong Kong, Greenland Hong
Kong will further focus on an integrated strategy by expanding innovation, as
well as upgrading our capital platform and industrial areas, and operating
our business bigger and stronger. At the same fime we will continually focus
on real estate, the business sector and management, implementing parallel
development of three major businesses fo improve multi-directional revenue
sources and promote the overall advantages of the Greenland Family in

capital markets and throughout the industry.

Traditional Property Business

Boasting powerful insights and a strong capacity for innovation,
Greenland Hong Kong continues to create mature product lines and mult-
format combinations within the real estate sector. Moreover, based on
the characteristics of different markets, we are investing in mefropolitan
cities as well as other fast-growing second and third fier provinces and
cities across China in order to develop large-scale, high-end properties
while we continue fo innovate. Our ultimate goal is to boost profitability
by connecting the Group's operations closer to our fraditional property,

financial and property fund businesses.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

Integrated Strategy (Continued)

Traditional Property Business (Continued)

In addition, Greenland Hong Kong will integrate its existing resources
such as hotels, golf clubs, travel services, property development into
the Greenland Hong Kong customer resources platform via the internet,
providing online and offline value-added services for everyone. Making
use of our huge customer base, we plan to increase the brand’s popularity
as well as deepen customer loyalty, and as a result, confinuously expand
our customer base and realise the aim of ‘precision marketing’. In addition,
we will ufilise the connections we have with our parent company’s vast
international overseas resources, including immigration solutions, overseas
study opportunities and overseas property expertise. This will allow us to
gain a clearer differentiation advantage over our competitors and better
satisfy our customers’ varying needs through our products, services, and
efficient supply chains. By strengthening and expanding both our marketing
and service systems, we will be able to meet our yearly sales target better

and faster.

Internet Finance Business

Greenland Hong Kong has been an important player in the Internet
finance business since the establishment of Greenland Financial Information
Services Co., lid ["Greenland Financial Services’) in May 2015
Since then, the company has achieved rapid progress in its financial
business operations, which has formed a distinctive developmental pattern
centered on three core businesses, i.e. — online wealth management, asset

management and data information services.

Looking forward, Greenland Financial Services will continue to make
tireless efforts to implement its three core strategies. The Company will also
strive diligently to develop its real estate and internet finance operations
while confinuing to optimise the online wealth management platform as
well as actively replace and enrich platform product lines to maintain
competitiveness. Without compromising safety, Greenland will also
enrich its asset sources and speed up expansion of the Company’s asset
management scale while fully leveraging ifs leading technological strengths.
We want fo actively develop our dafa information services business and
deepen internal cooperation with various business units to facilitate the

esfablishment of a strong eco-system.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

Integrated Strategy (Continued)

Real Estate Fund Business

Leveraging our core strengths in the area of real estate development,
Greenland Hong Kong has achieved remarkable results, actively exploring
light asset transformations through real estate investment funds. In 2016,
Greenland Hong Kong signed strategic cooperation agreements with
Kuwaiti strafegic investor — Cinda [HK) Holdings Company Limited, and

Guangxi Railway Investment (Group| Co., Limited.

In future, the Group will adhere to the deve\opmem prmcip\e of ’|ight assets
and accelerated growth’, by implementing real estate fund projects with
low financing costs, and progressively explore the application model of
our real esfate fund. Greenland Hong Kong will also maintain a rational
structure of corporate assets and manage a healthy cash flow to achieve
our goal of becoming a frue comprehensive indusiry conglomerate. This will
help the ‘Greenland Family” establish overall prominence in capital markets

as well as throughout the industry at large.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent

non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

CHEN Jun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WANG Weixian (Honorary Chairman)

HOU Guangjun (Chief Operation Officer)

WU Zhengkui

WANG Xuling

YOU Defeng (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

FONG Wo, Felix, Jp

KVWWAN Kai Cheong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Board has extensive
management experience in the property market in the PRC. The Board
has the required knowledge, experience and capabilities to operate and
develop the Group's business and implement the Company's business
strategies. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and

senior management are set out on pages 88 to 95.

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests
of the Company. The Directors are aware of their responsibilities and
accountability to shareholders and for the manner in which the affairs of the

Company are managed and operated.

Directors have fimely access fo relevant information prior fo each board
meefing to enable them to make an informed decision and fo discharge
their duties and responsibilities. Directors can attend board meetings either

in person or by electronic means of communication.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers them fo be independent.

Ms. WANG Xuling, an executive Director of the Company, is the sister of
Mr. WANG Weixian, the Honorary Chairman of the Group. Apart from
this, to the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationship among members of the
Board.

The Company provides Directors with directors” and officers’ liability
insurance coverage fo protect them from loss as a result of any legal

proceedings against the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year, the Company held eleven board meetings. Sufficient notice
convening the board meetlings were despatched to the Directors setting
out the matters o be discussed. All Directors were given an opportunity fo
include matters in the agenda for the board meetings and had access to
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary’)
to ensure that all board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations were followed. The Board also enabled the Directors to seek
independent professional advice at the Company's expense in appropriate
circumstances. At the meetings, the Directors were provided with the
relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The minutes of board
meeting are kept by the Company Secrefary or other professional service
provider and they are open for inspection by the Directors and members
of Board committees. The secrefary of the meeting is responsible for taking
the minutes and all the matters considered and the decisions reached in the
board meeting are recorded in sufficient defail. The draft minutes are sent to
the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and

the final versions are sent to all Directors for their records.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company held its annual
general meefing on 7 June 2016 and one exfraordinary general meefing
on 4 March 2016. The following is the attendance record of the Direcfors

in the aforesaid meetings:

Name of Director EEHE

Mr. CHEN Jun PR LA

Mr. WANG Weixian FERERE

Mr. HOU Guangjun EARELE

Mr. WU Zhengkui RIFERAE

Ms. WANG Xuling THEL+

Mr. YOU Defeng gty i

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry SREH B4

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 7RIS (K t)
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong B E Lt
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held
HEEHRRYBITHRRY

Board meetings General meetings

EFEEw BREXE
8/11 0/2
2/11 0/2

10/11 0/2
6/11 0/2
6/11 0/2
11/17 2/2
6/11 2/2
4/11 1/2
5/11 2/2
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. CHEN Jun currently serves as the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

The Chairman is responsible for the overall business and investment
strategies of the Group. The Chairman is also responsible for overseeing
effective functioning of the Board and application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for managing the Group's overall operations and execution of
the Group's long term business development policies. The Board, led by the
Chairman, sefs the overall directions, strategies and policies of the Group.
Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, the management is
responsible for executing the Board's strategy and implementing its policies

through the day-o-day management and operations of the Company.

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management who shall report fo the Board.
The Board reviews on a periodic basis such delegations to ensure that they

remain appropriate.

Important matters are reserved for the Board's decision, including:

J long-term objectives and strategies

e extension of the Group's activities info new business areas
®  appointments fo the Board and the Board committees

J annual risk management and internal controls assessment
e annual budgets

*  material acquisitions and disposals

J material connected transactions

. material banking facilities

e announcements of inferim and final results

o declaration or recommendation of dividends
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent non-executive Directors of the Company have diversified
backgrounds and industry skills and one of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate accounting qualification as required by the
Listing Rules. With their expertise, they offer experience, independent
judgement and advice on the overall management of the Company. Their
responsibilities include maintaining a balance between the interests of all

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

All the independent non-executive Directors are members of the audit,

nomination and remuneration committees.

All the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
one year renewable by mutual agreement on an annual basis. Under the
Articles, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual general
meeting provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least

once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the remuneration commitiee on 19 September 2006
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and responsibilities. In compliance with the CG Code, the Board has
adopted new terms of reference for the remuneration committee which have
been posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the remuneration
policy and specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors. In
formu|oﬂng the remuneration pohcy, the committee takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, employment
conditions and responsibilities, and individual performance of the
Directors, senior management, and the genero| staff. The committee can
seek independent professional advice to complement its own resources to

discharge its duties.

The remuneration committee currently comprises Mr. CHEN Jun, Ms.
WANG Xuling and all the independent non-executive Directors namely
Messrs. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, FONG Wo, Felix, JP. and KWAN
Kai Cheong. Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong was the chairman of the committee
during the year ended 31 December 2016
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EEHIN(E)

(Continued)

The Company has adopted the model that the remuneration committee RARERPFTNEZE SR ENNTEERBRE
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of EENFMESREESRPHEEZHRNER -

individual executive Directors and senior management.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out BERESINEEZYEAE S EE NIRRT

in note 14 to the financial statements. 14 o

The remuneration of the senior management paid for the year ended 31 REE— T "Ft+_A=+—HIFEINTS
December 2016 fell within the following bands: WERBEABNFHHEELNT

Number of Individuals

AB
RMB 1,000,000 or below AERET,000,0007T8 A T~ 5
RMB1,000,001-RMB2,000,000 AR¥1,000,001 T2 AR 2,000,0007T 2
RMB2,000,00 1-RMB3,000,000 ARH2,000,0017E AR 3,000,0007T ]
RMB3,000,001-RMB4,000,000 AR#3,000,0017E ARE4,000,0007T 1
RMB4,000,00 1-RMB5,000,000 AR¥4,000,001 TEAREES5,000,0007T 0
The above remuneration includes fee, basic salaries, allowance, bonus, it eER S - AR - FEE - B R
share-based payments and other benefits. SR EMFE o
One meeting was held by the remuneration committee in 2016 to discuss FNEEEN T —RERITT —RGHEUT R
remuneration related matters. Individual attendance of the members is set EREER - ERIKELEBRAOT
out below:
Mr. CHEN Jun 1/1 [T S A 1/1
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 1/1 RS L E 1/1
Ms. WANG Xuling 1/1 THELL 1/1
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 1/1 RIS 1/1
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 1/1 RS (KT t) 1/1
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee on 1 April 2013 in
compliance with the CG Code. The nomination committee is responsible for
nomination and selection of Directors. Proposed new Directors are selected
based on skills and experience that will enable them to make positive
confributions to the performance of the Board. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. CHEN Jun and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The principal

functions of the nomination committee include:

* o review the structure, size and composition [including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to

complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

® o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nomination for directorships;

® o assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and
*  io make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

reappointment of Direcfors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular chairman and chief executive.

The nomination committee currently comprises two executive Directors,
namely Messrs. CHEN Jun and HOU Guangjun; and all the independent
non-execufive Directors, namely Messrs. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry,
FONG Wo, Felix, JP. and KWAN Kai Cheong. Mr. CHEN Jun was the

chairman of the committee during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

One meeting was held by the nomination committee in 2016 to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, evaluation of performance and
confribution of the refiring Directors and the independence of the retiring
independent non-executive Directors. Individual aftendance of the current

members is set out below:

Mr. CHEN Jun

Mr HOU Guangjun

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

NN N NN N

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the audit committee on 19 September 2006 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. In compliance with the CG Code, the Board has adopted
new terms of reference for the audit committee which have been posted on

the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The committee is responsib|e for formu|0ﬂng and reviewing the financial, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company. The committee
is also responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor and
considering any questions of resignation or dismissal of such audifor. The
committee can seek independent professional advice fo complement its own

resources fo discharge its duties.

The committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely Messrs. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, FONG Wo, Felix, JP.
and KWAN Kai Cheong. Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong is the chairman of the
committee during the year ended 31 December 2016
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in 2016. Individual

atfendance of the members is set out below:

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 2/2
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 2/2
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 2/2

During the year, the committee reviewed, Togefher with the senior
management and the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (the “Auditor” or "Deloitte’), the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 20106, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, statutory compliance, other financial reporting
matters, the risk management and internal control systems. The audit
committee also reviewed the Group's inferim resulls for the six months ended
30 June 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LEE Mei Yi of Tricor Services Limited, an external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary since September
2006. The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. You Defeng,

Group Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. LEE Mei Yi has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2016

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Management provides such explanation and information to
enable the Board 1o make an informed assessment of the matters put before
the Board for approval. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for

preparing the financial statements for the Group.

The statement of the Auditor regarding its responsibilities for the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the report of the Independent Auditor’s

Report on page 118.

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

ﬂ:

g*zi =5 ('I‘H
EREEEN T REETTMAEE o @RIK
BHEBROT

RARIE L& 2/2
REH L 2/2
TTMELE(KFat) 2/2

FN - ZEEGERSREREABRERATHIN
ERAZEIED (R E) o FAERR )T 2 ETED (LA [ R85 15k
(8 ) —REMHEE T R"F+-A=+—H
LHFENRBRER  ARBRANSEARULE
% OERESER - R BRRER - RREE

RAEEZEHIER - ERZ 8T CENASERE
ZE-RERA=THIESNERAMFEHEE

B-STRFAAR  SNERBREHEBEEERS
BERDRNFEBLLCEARRRERAFMW
EARANEIEMBARKENTEEREFH
BEREEEE -

REEDRAIES 200 TREXTREE
—ARET A=+ -BHIEFEEEZT LIRS
RO MERE 5

A T3 ERER

EEEgEAERARENRR - KARAMKIELE
| - e LARNE - EEERTEAERENE
o AEEF SRR TESSIENFIRFL
ABHRHY - ERARNEREANEETHRERD
BfE-

REMABBRSHASENBREIAEEETE
REOERENE 18 AHBLZBEIHRE

65



66

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continved)
EERRE &)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of the controls on financial, operational and compliance to

safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Audit Director reports to the audit committee on key findings regarding
internal controls. The audit committee, in turn, communicates any material

issues to the Board.

With the continuous efforts of the Board, management and all staff, the
Group has established a relatively comprehensive and effective risk
management system for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance
on compliance with laws and regulations by the Company in its operation
and management, asset security, financial reporting and the authenticity
and completeness of the relevant information. The Group has complied with
Code C.2.4 of Appendix 14 to the listing Rules by adopting the following

system:

1. Identification: The Company paid close aftention to external and
internal changes in the conditions through a variety of methods,
and understood the risks involved and analyzed the reason for the

potential risks on an ongoing basis.

2. Assessment: The Company analyzed the possibility and impact of

risks and made corresponding assessments.

3. Management: The Company considered risk response to ensure
effective communication of the Board regarding the risks and

confinuous moniforing on residual risks.

The Board is responsible for the Company's risk management and internal
control systems and for reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. They
are responsible for the assessment and determination of the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to undertake to achieve
its strategic objectives, as well as the establishment and maintenance of
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.
The risk management and internal control systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in leading the management of risk
management and internal control systems and managed and oversaw its

composifion, execution of duties and supervision.

The Infernal Audit Department is responsible for conducting an independent
review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
infernal control systems and adopting risk controlbased auditing methods.
lts annual work plan, which covers the major tasks and procedures of
the Group's business segments such as real estate development, property
services, business management, Infemet finance, building and construction
and hotel management, has been approved by the Board and the Audit
Committee. It also provided the Audit Committee and the Board with
its findings and recommendations for improvement. The Internal Audit
Department will follow up on the audit findings so as to ensure that its
recommendations have been properly implemented and will regularly report

to the Audit Committee on its progress.

The head of the Internal Audit Department reported directly fo the chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Group and the chairman of the Board.

Under the support of the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems through
reviewing management reports and internal audit findings and considered
that the Company's risk management and internal control systems for the

year ended 31 December 20106 are effective and sufficient.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte is primarily responsible for providing audit services in connection
with annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration in
respect of audit services provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted o

RMB2,470,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing duties relating to corporate

govemance funcfions as sef out below:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporofe governance,

® o review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;
p g 9 ry req

® o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual [if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

e toreview the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board developed and
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices, including the
revised terms of reference for the remuneration committee, audit committee

and nomination committee.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According fo the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution fo the

board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance issues
under the Listing Rules. The Company contfinuously updates Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and enhance their
awareness of their confinuing obligations as Directors and good corporate

governance practices.

During the year, the Company provided the Directors with materials
regarding the CG Code. Each of the Directors provided the Company
with their respective training record pursuant to the CG Code. During the
year, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development by ways of attending training or reading materials relevant to

the Company's business or o Directors' duties and responsibilities.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening of an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Atticles, shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than onetenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Requisitionist(s)’) may, by written requisition [the “Requisition’)
to the Board or the Company Secrefary, fo require an extraordinary general
meetfing ["EGM’) to be convened by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in the Requisition. The Requisition shall be deposited at
the head office of the Company in Hong Kong (namely Unit 5711, 57th
Floor, The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong). The EGM shall
be held within two months after the deposit of the Requisition. In the event
that the Board fails o proceed to convene the EGM within twenty-one days
of the deposit of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionistls) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionistls)
by the Company. The same procedure also applies to any proposal fo be

tabled at Shareholders’ meetings for approval or adoption.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for shareholders to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. In respect of other enquiries, shareholders may put forward enquiries
to the Board through Mr. You Defeng, Group Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer, who will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

The contact details are as follows:

Address: No. 193 Xiehe Road, Changning District, Shanghai,
China

Email: ericyou@greenlandhk.com

Tel number: 8621 61352303

Fax number: 8621 61353732

INFORMATION ON SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2016:

Authorised share capital: HK$5,000,000,000.00, comprising
7,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each ["Ordinary
Shares’) and 3,000,000,000 non-voting convertible preference shares
of HK$0.50 each ("CPS").

Issued and fully paid-up capital: HK$1,396,838,341.50 comprising
2,793,676,683 Ordinary Shares.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ARTICLES

There were no amendments made to the Arficles in the year ending 31
December 2016.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect fo the procedures and internal controls for the handling and

dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Compony is aware of its

obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the

Main Board Listing Rules and has established the inside information/price-

sensitive information disclosure po|icy in connection with the "Guidelines

on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Future

Commission.

The disclosure policy includes, among other things:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Direcfors or senior management shall report any potential /suspected
inside information to any of the Executive Directors as soon as
practicable for him to consult (if appropriate] the Board thereafter for
determinmg the nature of deve|opments, and if required, for moking
appropriate disclosure. Every senior management member must
take all reasonable measures from time fo time fo ensure that proper
precautions are in place to prevent a breach of the inside information
provisions and the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules by

the Company;

Officers of the Company shall keep all the inside information strictly
confidential prior fo the publication through the HKEx-EPS and ensure
that the employees and external advisers of the Company have

strictly complied with the principle of confidentiality;

Any officers or employees of the Company who are in possession of
inside information are prohibited from trading or otherwise dealing

with the securities of the Company; and

The responsibility for communications with regulatory bodies, media,
analysts and the market primarily lies with designated personnel
of the Company. Unless authorized by any of such designated
personnel, any officers or employees of the Company are not
allowed fo take part in the aforesaid duties. Enquiries on information
which may constitute inside information of the Company must be

handled by the designated personnel.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") Report is prepared
according fo the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
"Listing Rules’) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of providing stakeholders a comprehensive overview on our ESG
policies, initiatives as well as performance.

This report covers the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
(the "Reporting Period’). \We have engaged our management and sfaff
of all depariments to review their respective operations, identify relevant

ESG issues, and assess their materiality/relevance to our business.

The Company has relentlessly upheld its mission of “Create better life”
and has been working persistently on the “joint development and sharing
of a harmonious Greenland” to achieve a multi-win situation of social
advancement, high-level of customer satisfaction and corporate and
employee development. As Greenland Group's international brand display
window, the Company is committed to constructing ideal residences,
serving the community with a philosophy of “spreading love, contributing
fo the community and caring for the environment”, promoting education,
helping people in need, achieving sustainable environmental development

and advocating a green lifestyle.

The Company has created a diversified development pattern of “focusing
on the development of real estate market and placing equal stress on
emerging sectors like “Big Infrastructure, Big Finance and Big Consumption”

with a global presence.
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A. ENVIRONMENT

Al.

Emissions

To profect the environment, the Compony ocﬁve|y sTrengThened
our management over gas and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and treatment of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes. We strove to comply with local
environmental laws and regulations, including but nof limited to
the requirements sef out in the Environmental Protection Llaw of
the PRC, Prevention and Control of Water Pollution Llaw of the
PRC, Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of
the PRC and Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste.

The principal businesses of the Company mainly include
the development of commercial and residential properties.
Nevertheless, as the Company’s construction projects are
undertaken by its contractors, gas and greenhouse gas,
sewage and solid wasfes including consfruction waste are
mainly emitted and generated on-site during the course of
construction by its general contractors and sub-contractors.
In fact, the level of gas and greenhouse gas emissions from
the Company during its course of operation is minimal.
The Company attaches great attention to the impact of its
construction projects on the environment and has formulated
the corresponding system fo regulate the construction projects
of its general contractors and to minimize the impact on the

surrounding environment.
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A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A1l. Emissions (Continued)

The Company has formulated confrol measures and adopted
certain environmental protection measures on gas and
greenhouse gas emissions and disposal of sewage and solid

wastes including construction waste. Details are as follows:

A third party entity will be engaged to conduct
environmental assessment prior fo the commencement of
construction of all property projects, and such assessment
will be submitted to the environmental protection
bureau for review and issuance of assessment report of

environmental impact.

In designing property projects, drainage and sewage
freatment, noise control, gas emission and insfallation
of environmental protection facilities are taken into

consideration.

Machinery and equipment used in construction projects

meet the national safety standards.

A provisional discharge permit will be obtained from the
government for discharging wasfewater from the living
area. Three-stage sedimentation technology, flushing
device for construction dregs and reclaimed water are

used.

Rubbish bins are leased for disposing domestic refuse
and collected regularly. Sewage from the living area of
the construction sites should be discharged into a special
aqueduct and domestic refuse should be collected by a

qualified sanitation company every day.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material
non-comp|ionce incidents in relation fo environmental laws and

regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOC\AL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued) E(4E)
A2. Use of Resources A2. EiR{EH

The Company has always affached great importance to energy
conservation, in order fo profect the environment and improve
operational efficiency. To achieve this goal, the Company has
been adopting highly efficient energy consumption strategies to
the greafest exfent with a view to improving energy efficiency
and reducing energy consumption. Electricity, petroleum,
diesel, water, and paper are the common forms of energy

consumed by the Company.

The Company has covered some of the resource conservation
guidelines in the employee’s handbook and requested every

employee to save water and electricity.

In addition to the written guidelines, the Company has
implemented a number of specific measures to conserve

resources, such as:

o installing inductive faucets and hand dryers in the foilefs

o keeping all the doors and windows closed when the air-
conditioner is running, and setting and maintaining the

office room temperature at 26°C

e using daylight whenever possible and installing energy-

efficient lighting in the office
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A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A2.

A3.

Use of Resources (Continued)
° turning off all |ighﬂng, compufters, office facilities and air-
condifioners [e.g. water decoration in the Company) if

they are not needed

e actively implementing 3R initiatives of “reduce, reuse

and recycle” in the ordinary course of business.

In addition, confractors are requested to use barreled cement
concrete for commercial use in the construction process and
minimize the use of bagged cement, not only to reduce health
hazards caused to workers by cement dust when unloading
and using the cement, but also to reduce the consumption of

packaging bags.

Environmental and Natural Resources

In addition fo the use of the above resources, the Company
actively managed and took various measures to reduce the
environmental impact which may be caused by ifs business

activities during the Reporting Period.

Real estate development is one of the principal businesses
of the Company. It is inevitable that foundation construction
offen generates noise and dust. In view of this, the Company
requested ifs general confractors fo implement dust suppression
and noise control during the course of construction in order to
minimize the impact of noise on the surrounding residents and
commercial buildings. For example, wood sawing machines
should be equipped with a vacuum cleaner such that the
sawdust generated during sawing can be removed prompily to

prevent from doing harm to workers” health.
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A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A3. Environmental and Natural Resources (Continued)

A. RE(E)
A3. BIRREAER(E)

Although electricity consumed by machinery and equipment,
and gasoline and equipment used by fower crane belong
to contractors, the Company required its contractors fo use
the machineries which meet the relevant national safety and

environmental requirements.

Hanging dust networks are used to prevent dust emission.
In the design process, steel structure and PC (prefabricated
construction) are adopted as far as possible. At the consfruction
site, exposed soil is covered to prevent from deserfification,
and dust prevention measures are taken to deal with sand and
stone piles. Water wagons spray the site regularly to remove
dust, while covered tank wagons are used as vehicles carrying
constfruction dregs and are washed thoroughly to remove
dust. For noise control measures, prior fo the commencement
of construction, exchonge meetings with the neighbourhood
committees will be held to fully communicate and understand
their concerns and to respond and fake appropriate measures
in addressing such concems, in order to ensure safety and
civilized construction. For example, construction work will be
ceased affer fen in the evening to avoid causing noise impact

on surrounding residents’ sleep.

To strengthen the awareness of environmental protection,
management capacity and security measures, the Company
conducted the ISO14000 environmental management system

certification audit, aiming at improving environmental quality.
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B. SOCIETY

Employment and Labor Practices

B1.

Employment

The Company is committed to promoting fair and ethical
labor policy. The Company has complied with the provisions
of the relevant laws and regulations, including the Labor Law
of the PRC, the Social Insurance Law of the PRC and the
Trade Union Llaw of the PRC. The Company has developed
the relevant human resources system and compiled an
employee's handbook in relation to induction, probation,
formal employment, exit procedures, attendance and
vacation, remuneration and benefits, performance, rewards
and punishments, training and development, employees’
code of conduct, integrity, selfdiscipline, communication and
complaints, and has clearly communicated these guidelines
with all employees. The Company pays staff compensation
fairly and reasonably according fo their performance and
contributions to the Company as well as the operational
conditions of the Company. In recruiting an employee and
defermining the employee's salary, the Company takes info
consideration his/her quo|iﬁcoﬁons, professiono\ skills, indusfr\/
experience, salaries offered by comparable companies and

makes reference fo the Company’s compensation sfructure.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material

non-compliance incidents in relation fo labor practices.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Confinved)
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B. SOCIETY (Continued) B. #&E(4&)
Employment and Labor Practices (Continued) BlERS TESE)

B2. Health and Safety B2. EEHZZ

The Company attaches importance to the protection of
employees’ rights and interesfs, a safety working environment
and health protection, and places great emphasis on
vocational skills fraining and safety training, in particular, the
safety of the supervisory personnel atf the construction site.
In view of this, the Company often provides safety and skills
training for occupational safety, and required its contractors to

do the same.

With respect to the construction site of real esfate projects, the
Company required its contfractors to strengthen construction
management in strict compliance with the relevant regulations
of local and Party A civilized construction, in particular, the
specific requirements under "Construction Site Safety and
Civilized and Standardized Management Guidelines of
Greenland Group " throughout the entire construction process.
Besides it required its confractors assign a civilized construction
specialist to the construction site, and communicate and
coordinate with the principal and the consultancy and
professional subcontracting entities commissioned by it in

accordance with the procedures contained in the confract.

In providing a safe workplace, the Company requested the
machineries on-site to be operated by professionals. For
examples, fower cranes must be installed and removed by
professional institutions and inspection must be carried out by
professional and qualified institutions after re-installation. The
relevant personnel and companies responsible for installation

must have obtained the relevant professional qualifications.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material

violations of any health and safety laws and regulations.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Employment and Labor Practices (Continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training

The Company believes that it is critical to the Company's
business development that its employees keep on updating
their professional knowledge and skills on an ongoing basis.
The Company has developed relevant policies and system on
employee development and training, providing internal and

external fraining opportunities for employees at all levels.

By actively introducing external cooperative partners, the
Company ufilized external training insfitutions and resources
and regularly arranged its staff to participate in seminars
held by experts so as to exchange and learn about the
development of the industrial eco-system, technology trends
and management skills. In addition, the Company relied on the
internal trainers and external training institutions and capitalised
on its internal knowledge reserves and external teaching
resources to enhance its staff's professional knowledge, skills
and fechniques and to improve the quality and efficiency of

work.

Labor Guidelines

The Company has always aftached importance to and
strictly complied with all applicable national laws and local
regulations, relevant labor laws and regulations (including
the prohibiﬁon on hiring child labor and forced labor) in the
jurisdictions where the Company operates. It also requested
the on-site managers fo regularly check if there is any child
labor or forced labor employed by ifs general contractors and

sub-contractors during the course of business operation.

The Company has made reasonable arrangements for the
working hours based on the statutory standard working hours
and provided leave benéfits such as paid leave and sick leave

in accordance with the labor law.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Employment and Labor Practices (Continued)

B4.

Labor Guidelines (Continued)

Through progressive, stringent and meticulous recruitment
procedures and appointment checking procedures, the
Company strove to eradicate child labor. After signing an
employment contract between the relevant department and
the employee, there is a probationary and appraisal period to
defermine the intention on the employment of both parties to

avoid forced labor.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material
non-compliance incidents in relation to the labor guidelines

stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations.

Operational Practices

BS.

Supply Chain Management

The Company has formulated relevant policies and system
on supply chain management such as “Supplier Resource
Management System of Greenland Hong Kong” and “Project
Tendering System”, including the relevant procedures and
screening conditions for selecting suppliers, and will regularly

review and reassess such procedures.

The Company's cost management department/contract
department shall, after accepting the recommendation in
respect of the supplier’s resources, conduct initial and mid-
and endHerm assessments on contracts signed, subject to the

progress of the confract signed.

In order fo enhance the Company’s sustainable development,
product or service quality and business factors will be taken
info consideration in the tender process for selecting suppliers.
Apart from this, such suppliers must comply with the national
regulations and obtain the relevant license and qualifications.
The Company gives first priority to product/service suppliers
which are capable of providing green products and actively
fulfill their social responsibiliies. The Company's purchases are
conducted in a fair and open environment for competition fo
ensure that such product/service suppliers meet the demands

of the Company.

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

B. #E(&)

BIERETERE)
B4. ZTHERAI(ER)

NEEABAZ & 7 A B
BoOBBARERECALBERE
ITHIRR » TIEEMME TR

AREAFAANEEESZHRAHEE
TRER - BRRHS THEREE -

RRBRIRE AL E XS FRER
ERFRES TEANERTRERE
o

ZEE

B5.

fresaEE

ARRIEAHIET ARAHEREERN
MHRABER MR (i FRH T ER
EEHE) (IRARHEIE) -
BREHKEREZNEBERFREHEGR
- WEFHREEMER LR

RAKAEER AOMERZHET
BRMERER  AHEETRITAY
BIER - PEMRER AR - AR %8
EBKIEERE °

REFMRTT AR AHEMLER
EHEHSEENBEAREY  KREE
EmSRBEZRRHEREIN - #fE
BUANEBERMRTE - WESHERD
AAIRERER - ARIBEZERER
HreERRERETLEEENE
/RS HER - RENRBYBRE
—ARF - RFEMBEFIRE TET
VARER Lt/ PRIS R E PH RE 500 2

L

81



82

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2016

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continved)

RIE - HEREGHRE @)

B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)

B5.

Bé6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

The Company also regularly reviewed the performance of
selected product/service suppliers based on pricing, quality
and aftersales services to secure continuous supply of quality
products and services. During the current financial year, there
was no significant risk of employment of child labor and forced

labor on the part of any major supplier.

Product Liability

By adhering to the Greenland Group's Guidelines for the
Quality Control of Completion and Delivery of Residential
Projects and adopting a unified delivery standard, the
Company enhanced the delivery quality and ensured that the
quality of our projects is in line with the quality standards and

sustainable development requirements.

Prior to the delivery of the project by the Business Division,
the general contractor shall conduct self-inspection on the
project and submit to the Engineering Department after
passing such self-inspection. The Engineering Department
shall arrange project supervisors and property joint inspection
group fo conduct a general check for all units and facilities,
including the wall, floor, ceiling, doors and windows, kitchen,
foilet, balcony, terrace, stairs, public area, roof, basement,
outdoor facilities, installation and the overall construction, in
accordance with the Greenland Group's “Project Completion
and Acceptance Form”. Modifications have fo be made until

the project meets the Group's internal delivery standards.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued) B. #&E(4&)
Operational Practices (Continued) ZEEMNE)

B6. Product Liability (Continued) B6. EREE(E)

The Company has put in place a set of comprehensive
procedures to handle complaints from users. Upon receiving
a comp|oim, it will take action in a ﬁme|y manner and trace
the progress of all complaints fo ensure that every complaint is

properly dealt with.

The quality of housing maintenance is the common complaint
of the occupants and is the key issue and difficulty that needs
to be dealt with. In view of this and in order to ensure that
after-sales service quality management is able to satisfy
occupants’ needs, the Company implemented a three-ier
management over all the quality issues identified within the
project warranty period, such as quality issues of emergency

works, functional engineering works and public areas.

In line with its emphasis on the construction management over
construction in progress, the Company conducted regular
inspection and issued an assessment report on all Green's
projects quarterly, and made identification and rectification,
in a timely manner, on the security loophole and issues
identified. The Company also regularly observed distortion
and made comparison with the original design. In addition,
the Company’s projects are subject to the inspection of the
government inspection department and construction supervision

companies to ensure the quality of the projects.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)
B7. Anti-corruption

The Company strictly complied with the relevant laws and
regulations on anti-corruption and money laundering, including
but not limited fo the Criminal Law of the PRC and the Anfi-
Money laundering law of the PRC. The Company takes a

serious view on antifraud and created a corporate culture of

infegrity and justice.

The Company has already developed and implemented the
Code of Conduct for the Employee of Greenland Hong Kong,

which covers a number of employee integrity and seltdiscipline

standards such as:

1. not fo use their positions for their own benefits or

prejudice the interests of the Company;

prohibition on placement of relatives within the
enterprise or running an enterprise without permission,
conducting related party fransactions, monopolizing
projects or undertaking projects for their own benefits by

their relatives;

prohibition on pursuing of improper interests with
cooperative partners, transfer of interests, black box
operation, favoritism or damaging the public interest for

personal profif;

prohibition on exceeding the limit on administrative
and marketing expenses and target cost of the project,
maintaining “unauthorized reserves”, making a false
or misleading representation of unreasonable charges,
bulk-purchase of consumer cards or inappropriate

allowance:
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B. SOCIETY (Continued) B. #&E(4&)
Operational Practices (Continued) ZEEMNE)
B7. Anti-corruption (Continued) B7. RE/S(4E)

5. prohibition on acfs of bribery, corruption, disciplinary
violation, exceeding the limit permitted by law or the

bottom line;

6. prohibition on deceptive tactics, banquet at public

expenses, osfentatious and extravagant behaviour;

7. prohibition on disclosure of the Company’s internal

confidential information.

The Company is committed to creating a corporate culture
of infegrity and justice by accepting internal complaints and
whistleblowing. All employees may directly contact the Human
Resources Department and the senior management in charge

of such matters for lodging a complaint or whistleblowing.

The Company arranged the Internal Audit Department to carry
out project audit from time fo time with a view to maintaining

the integrity of the Company'’s culture system.

The current whistleblowing procedures of the Company include
direct mailbox of the senior management of the Company
for reporting any misconduct and dishonest activities such as

suspected corruption, fraud and other forms of crime.

The Company has developed a system which contains
the relevant regulations on the staff's complaint channels,
and provided staff with appropriate channels to reflect
the corresponding issues. In the event that an employee
considers his/her personal interests have been violated, or a
whistleblower may want to report any violations of laws and
regulations, he/she may do the same through the complaint

channels.

5. BETHXE THERZL K
[4TAR | ~ B[ AR -

6 BEDYAE ZhE - AT
5 LB tlzq—x

7 BERBEATANRSERENE
g

REBOREE—HHERENDE
SAEAE - EE AR AR AER - FT
BEIANEERMANERERETE
ZERENBREEABRBRFME
e

REALHFAEBFITERRRE R
B - NEELRBE R AR

AR BERELEYHRBREABE
LHETEHEEMARRMREEABR
HEEATETAMTHEEEHE
7 Bl ERFUNES - F¥%
LA R EAb FZ S RIIRSE o

NRBEHITE TAEESEHE THRF
MBEMTHEBET  REEEHERE
WEIRERBERE - E8TRAM
ANZEZERIL  AFERBBEE
ECEBRMTA  AIABARAFBE
HITIREF AR -



86

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2016

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
B HEREARE

B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)

B7. Anti-corruption (Continued)
Furthermore, the employee’s handbook clearly stated that
the Company will bring a claim for economic compensation
against the employee for any economic losses caused due
to the violation of professional ethics by that employee in
accordance with laws, and in severe circumstances, if a crime
is suspected fo be committed, the case shall be referred fo the
judicial departments for criminal liability.
During the Reporting Period, the Company had no filed and
concluded lawsuits regarding corruption against the issuer or
its employees.

Community

B8. Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company has been
actively participating in the community charitable activities in
the cities where ifs operations and projects are located. At the
same time, it encouraged ifs employees to actively participate

in social welfare activities.

With a strong sense of social responsibility, Greenland Group
has been making every endeavor to assist more and more
people in realizing their unlimited dreams and to contribute
fo the community while developing. As of now, Greenland
Group has invested RMB200 million to set up the largest
enferprise’s project charity fund in Shanghai. It has launched
the exclusive brand of “Greenland Heart Plan” in order fo fulfill
its corporate social responsibility on an ongoing basis on all
fronts. It has also supported the Shanghai World Expo at no
consideration and invested in the city’s landmark public green
space. Greenland Group has sponsored and donated a fotal
of approximately RMB1 billion in the charity, public welfare,
military support and the World Expo, and has won honours
of National Civilized Entity, National May 1 labor Cerificate
and China’s Charity Award.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Community (Continued)
B8. Community Investment (Continued)

Over the past two years, the Company participated in the

following public welfare activities:

"Sharing Rice Dumplings to Celebrate the Dragon Boat
Festival = a Special Event on Huangshan Crouching
Tiger Dragon Boat Festival” (¥rE U4 @ 1B mS — =
1L BAFR 35 457 88) to give away free rice dumplings from
May to June 2016

"Green Pioneer Program 3.12 Tree Planfing Day” (3&{R
Jreg0% 3.1 248 4180) and "City's Greenland, the Road
to Happiness” [# 4k - SFEEE4R) — tree planting
activities from March to April 2016

"Green Earth, Carrying Hope and Infinite Dreams” (4% %)
Kith o EHHL - HEER) - "Coring for the Children
Living in the Darkness of the City” (BE/EH I EF TH
#271M) to donate necessities to schools from November
to December 2015

"Kick-off of the Love Fund and Annual Donation
Activities” (B ES ERIBIFEIBFUED) in September
2015
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Executive Directors

CHEN Jun, 42, is a member of the communist party and the Executive
Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. CHEN Jun is responsible for the overall planning,
formulation of strategies and overall daily operations of Greenland Hong
Kong. Mr. CHEN Jun has more than 18 years of experience in the real
esfate and consfruction indusiry, with extensive management experience in
the industry. Since he joined Greenland Holdings Group in February 2001,
Mr. CHEN Jun has served as project manager, assistant general manager,
deputy general manager and general manager of the Business Divisions of
Greenland Holdings Group and vice president and executive vice president
of Greenland Holdings Group. Mr. CHEN Jun also serves as the honorary
chairman of Shanghai Chamber of Commerce in Shaanxi, vice chairman of
the Airport City Development Committee under the China City Development
Research Society and a member of the 10th standing committee of the
Shaanxi Youth Federation. He has also been elected as a deputy of the
11th and 12th People’s Congress of Shaanxi Province successively. Mr.
CHEN Jun obtained a bachelor's degree in industrial and civil architecture
from the College of Architecture and Engineering of Nanjing University
of Technology, a master's degree in architectural and civil engineering
from Xi‘an University of Architecture and Technology, an EMBA degree
from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management and a
PhD degree in national economics from the Chinese Academy of Social

Sciences.

WANG Weixian, 53, is the Executive Director, Honorary Chairman
and founder of the Company. Mr. WANG Weixian has over 20 years of
experience in finance, construction, property investment and development.
Mr. WANG Weixian graduated from South China University of
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in building materials and University
of Technology, Sydney (Australia) with a bachelor’s degree in commerce.
He is also a councilor of the Shanghai Soong Ching ling Foundation and a

standing member of the Shanghai Overseas Exchange Association.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (Confinved)
EENRESNEEBAER N (#)

HOU Guangjun, 45, is a member of the communist party and the
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Mr.
HOU Guangjun has over 20 years of experience in the real estate and
construction indusiry, with exfensive management experience in the industry.
Since he joined Greenland Holdings Group in November 1996, Mr.
HOU Guangijun has held the posts of engineer, project manager, assistant
general manager, deputy general manager and general manager of the
Business Divisions of Greenland Holdings Group. Before joining Greenland
Holdings Group, he worked for Shanghai Railway Sub-administration.
Mr. HOU Guangjun also serves as a member of the People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Jinan, Shandong Province, China. Mr. HOU
Guangjun graduated from Tongji University with a bachelor’s degree in

materials engineering.

WANG Xuling, 56, is the Executive Director of the Company. Ms.
WANG Xuling graduated from Ji'nan University (Guangzhou). Prior
fo joining the Company, Ms. WANG was the executive director and
deputy general manager of Mission Hills Golf Club [Mission Hills Group),
responsible for sales and marketing of properties. Before joining Mission
Hills Group (Mission Hills Golf Club), Ms. WANG Xuling had about 12
years of experience in the news and media business. Ms. WANG Xuling
joined the Company as Executive Director in 2007 and was once the Chief

Executive Officer of the Company since April 2011.

WU Zhengkui, 43, is the Executive Director of the Company. Mr. WU
Zhengkui is also the depufy genero| manager of the Finance Department
of Greenland Holdings Group. Mr. WU Zhengkui graduated from
Fudan University with a master’s degree in accounting. He also has the
professional fitle of infermediate accountant. Mr. WU Zhengkui has over
14 years of experience in the real estate and construction industry, with
extensive experience in financial management within the industry. Since he
joined Greenland Holdings Group in January 2002, Mr. WU Zhengkui has
served as Finance Manager, Director and Supervisor of the subsidiaries of
Greenland Holdings Group and Assistant General Manager of the Finance

Depariment of Greenland Holdings Group.
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YOU De Feng, 41, is the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. Mr. YOU De Feng has over 18 years of experience in
the real estate and construction industry, and has been responsible for
capital markets work of the Company for long fime, accumulating extensive
experience of financial management and capital operation in the indusry.
Since joining the Company in March 2001, Mr. YOU De Feng was
the Finance Manager and Finance Director of the project companies of
the Company and Financial Controller of the Group. Prior fo joining the
Company, he worked in China Poly Group. Mr. YOU De Feng graduated
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from China Europe International
Business School. He is a member of the Institute of Financial Accountants,

United Kingdom and a qualified accountant in the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHEONG Ying Chew Henry, 9, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2006. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics and a Master of Science
degree in Operational Research and Management. Mr. Cheong is also
an Independent Non-executive Direcfor of Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited, Cheung Kong Property Holdings Limited, CNNC
International Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings
Limited, New World Department Store China Limited, Skyworth Digital
Holdings Limited and TOM Group limited. Mr. Cheong currently serves
as an executive director and the deputy chairman of Worldsec limited, a
company listed on the London Stock Exchange. He is also an Independent
Director of BTS Group Holdings Public Company limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Cheong was previously an
Independent Non-executive Director of CK Hutchison Holdings Limited ("CK
Hutchison’), Cheung Kong (Holdings) limited, (whose listing status on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited was replaced by CK Hutchison
on 18 March 2015) and Kirin Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as "Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited’). Mr. Cheong
was also a member of the Securifies and Futures Appeals Tribunal and the

Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission.

HEE 45 REARARNTEFTRERYS
B BEBEAREFHEREEEBEI8F
R EHEEARREATSTENTIE  BRET
TENFFEENNEEIRRENEFLR © 52
BRAN_FET—F = ANARRRAR - EER
AR TEEBRARPIFEE MBREARREE
TSEEEE AL - MBARTZH - REBNHEH
RAER - BRELSEZEN DBVEKRE 55
TEER IHER TR ERR T2 - RAREY
BETMAEEs  AETESFER -

BIAFPTES

REH - 0% B_ETRNFRRADAZEL
FHEE - REEFBREE LM NIRIFNREE
ERRA LM - REETHERTEZEERRER
A RIBEFMERRAR - PREBRARAF -
M EAEEERERAR - HIERAETEAR
RAE - AEBEERAERABULTIOMERRR
RBEZFUFRTES - REL B EETRIE
HR G T ARIWorldsec LimitedWITESE X
BlEENFERZ S EHARBTS Group Holdings
Public Company limited 2 B &%  SREE B HE
RIMCEXERAR([RIME]))  RIIEX
(EEDARAR(EREEBARSMBERIRZ
R ZE—RF= A\ BRI
) T BB S B P2 A B TR 2 B (A S [ RERIZRR A PR
A8 ) 2 BIFMTES - REETMGE-S M
=B LB REIEF R EERERZE e
ARBEE%ZE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (Confinved)
EENRESNEEBAER N (#)

FONG Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, 66, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2006, a pracficing solicitor in Hong Kong
and is also qualified in Canada and England. He is appointed by the
Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-Appointed Attesting Officers
in Hong Kong. Mr. FONG is a consultant and the founding partner of
the Hong Kong law firm, King & Wood (formerly known as Arculli Fong
& Ng), and has practiced law for over 30 years, including eight years in
Toronto. Mr. FONG is an independent non-executive director of a number
of listed companies, namely Guangdong land Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited), Evergreen International
Holdings Limited, China Investment Development Limited (formerly known
as Temujin International Investments Limited), Sheen Tai Holdings Group
Company Limited and Xinming China Holdings Limited, whose shares are
lisled on the Stock Exchange. From May 2010 to May 2016, Mr. Fong
was an independent non-executive director of China Oilfield Services
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. FONG is a member of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (9th and
10th Sessions), a direcfor of the China Overseas Friendship Association, a
director of the Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Associafion and an
executive director of the Guangdong Overseas Friendship Association. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Communications Authority and a director
of the Hong Kong Basic Law Insfitute and also the former chairman of the
Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene. Mr. FONG is a
member of the first Selection Committee for the purposes of electing the
Chief Executive for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a founding
member of the Canadian International School of Hong Kong, a member of
the Board of Advisers for the Faculty of Business of the University of Victoria,
British Columbia, Canada and a visiting professor of the School of Law of
Sun Yatsen University China.

KWAN Kai Cheong, 67, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since 20006, holds a Bachelor of Accountancy [Honors)
degree from the University of Singapore and is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. KWAN is presently the president of Morrison &

Company Limited, a business consultancy firm.
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Company Secretary

LEE Mei Yi, 49, is a Director of Corporate Services of Tricor Services
Limited {"Tricor”), a global professional services provider specializing in
integrated Business, Corporate and Investor Services. Ms. LEE has over
25 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field. She has been
providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies
(including H share companies) as well as multinational and private
companies, companies limited by guarantee and offshore companies.
Ms. LEE is a Chartered Secrefary and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries ["HKICS”) and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators ["ICSA") in the United Kingdom. She is a
holder of the Pracfitioner's Endorsement from HKICS. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor Services Limited as external service provider and
appointed Ms. LEE as the Group’s Company Secrefary since September
20006.)

Senior Management

YANG Xiaodong, 55, is the Executive Vice President of the Company
and President of Shanghai Greenland Financial Information Services
Limited* (/847 & BME BREBR A F]). Mr. YANG studied af College
of Electrical Engineering, Shenyang University and obtained a master's
degree in computer engineering from Northeastern University. Mr. YANG
Xiaodong was previously the president of Fidelity Investments in China,
standing director and chief information officer of Fidelity International, Asia
Pacific and vice president of Fidelity Investments Group and held various
senior management positions. He has over 20 years of experience in
the international financial and investment sector and was awarded the
"Best Lleader of Fidelity Investments” and one of the “Top 10 Economic
Personalities in Dalian in 10 Years” and “Top 10 Economic Personalities
in Dalian of the Year”. Mr. YANG Xiaodong joined Greenland Holdings
in April 2015 and was recognized as an “Outstanding Operator and
Manager of Greenland Group for 2015".
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GU Mingqi, 41, is the Vice President of the Company and General
Manager of the Guangxi Company. Mr. GU Mingi obtained a bachelor's
degree in industrial and civil architecture from Zhengzhou University. He is
a senior engineer with the qualifications of National First Class Registered
Architect and National Supervision Engineer. With more than 20 years of
experience in the real esfate industry and strong multi-project management
capability, he held senior management positions with several renowned
property developers in Henan and Shanghai for a long period of time.
Mr. GU Mingi joined Greenland Hong Kong at the end of 2013 and
was recognized as the "Model Staff of Greenland Group for 2014",
"Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong Kong for 2016" and “Person
of the Year of 2016". Mr. GU Minqi also serves as a member of the
People's Political Consultative Conference of Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang

Autonomous Region.

GU Guanghui, 31, is a member of the Communist party and the General
Manager of the Investment Development Department of the Company.
Mr. GU Guanghui graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor’s degree in management studies. He has nearly
8 years of experience in the real estate indusiry. Mr. GU Guanghui joined
Greenland Group in 2009 and was the General Manager of Xining/
Urumgi companies under the Northwest Business Division of Greenland
Group. Mr. GU Guanghui joined Greenland Hong Kong in November
2016.

LEl Yu, Rain, 44, is the General Manager of legal and Risk Control
Center of the Company. Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, graduated from Fudan
University with a bachelor's degree in law and a master's degree in
public administration. He also obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School. Mr.
LEl is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and has over 17 years of working
experience in comphonce and internal risk control of listed companies,
mergers, acquisitions and reorganization of companies, project investment
and financing and contract negotiation, efc. Prior to joining the Company
in May 2003, Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, worked at Grandall Law Firm (Shanghai),
where he was mainly engaged in corporate mergers and acquisitions and
IPO projects. Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, was recognized as the “2014 Industrial
Honorary Role Model of Greenland Group”, "Outstanding Manager of
Greenland Hong Kong for 2015”, "Outstanding Manager of Greenland
Hong Kong for 2016" and “Model Staff of the Group for 2016".
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SUN Yu, 41, is the General Manager of Technology Research and
Development Department of the Company. Mr. SUN Yu graduated from
Dalian University of Technology with a master's degree in architecture.
He has 14 years of experience in architectural design. Prior to joining
Greenland Group in 2010, Mr. SUN Yu worked in East China Architectural
Design & Research Institute and was responsible for the management of
various large-scale ultra-high-rise urban complex projects, such as Changsha
Greenland Center, VWuhan Greenland Center, Greenland AD 1860 and

Greenland Gu Cun Park Business Plaza.

LI Qiang, 42, is a member of the Communist Party and the General
Manager of Cost Management Department of the Company. Mr. LI Qiang
graduated from Tongji University with a bachelor’s degree in project
management and is an infermediate engineer. With nearly 20 years of
experience in cost and budget management, Mr. LI Qiang is seasoned
in dynamic cost calculation and control throughout the entire process of
a project. After joining Greenland Group in 2006, he has served as the
Cost Director of the Shandong Sales Department, Deputy Cost Manager
of the Property Operations Il Department and Deputy Cost Manager of the

Commercial Group. Previously, he worked at Shimoo Group and Widnell
ltd.

LI Peng, 34, is the General Manager of Marketing Management
Department of the Company. Mr. LI Peng joined the Northwest Business
Division of Greenland Group in 2007 and has 10 years of experience in
real estate marketing. He was awarded the Champion for Annual Sales
of Weimar Mansion of 2008, the Top Market Manager of 2010 and the
One-Star Market Manager of “Benteng Award” in 2010. In 2011, the
team led by Mr. Ll was also awarded the Champion for Annual Project
Sales of the Year — Northwest Business Division. In 2012, Mr. Ll was
recognized as the "Business Role Model” of the Year of Greenland Group,
"Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong Kong for 2016" and “Model
Staff of Greenland Group for the Year”.
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HE Yunfei, 46, is a member of the Communist party and the General
Manager of Operations Management Department of the Company. Mr.
HE Yunfei graduated from Shanghai Urban Construction College with a
bachelor's degree in urban construction. He is an intermediate engineer
and second-class architect. Prior to joining the Company, he acfed as
the project general manager and director of the project management
department of SinoOcean Land, general manager of the sales department
of Vanke Property and branch person-in-charge of Shanghai Construction
Group No. 5 Co., ltd. Mr. HE Yunfei joined Greenland Hong Kong
in January 2015 and was recognized as an “Outstanding Manager of
Greenland Hong Kong for 2015".

JIANG hudlian, 46, a member of the Communist party and is the office
director and Executive Deputy General Manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Company. Ms. JIANG hualian graduated from East
China Normal University with an intermediate title. Ms. JJANG hualian
joined Greenland Hong Kong in September 2016. Previously, she worked
as Deputy Director of Shanghai Jingan Special Education Guidance Center
and Vice Principal of Nanyang School, assistant to director and head of
Business Development Department of Shanghai Youth Activity Center of
Shanghai Communist Youth league Committee, a Party Committee member
of Shanghai Youth Activity Center and secretary of the party branch of
Shanghai Youth Culture Center. Since March 2016, Ms. JIANG hualian

has been a Committee Member of the Jingan Committee of Shanghai.

GE Hao Long, 43, is the General Manager of a property company
of the Company. Mr. GE Hao long is a standing member of Shenzhen
Property Management Association, a member of the Discipline Inspection
Committee of the association, and a visiting professor of Shenzhen Real
Estate and Property Management Advanced Training College. Prior fo
joining the Company, he worked in China Vanke and Shenzhen Poly

Property.
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EETHE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated accounts of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. lts subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development, property and hotel investment

and property management.

An analysis of the Group's sales and operating results for the year by

principal activities is sef out in note & to the consolidated accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 3.87% of the Group's sales in the year while the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for about 14.07%, and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 5.44%, while the largest

supplier accounted for about 19.79% of the Group's purchases in the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
on page 121.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiary was a party, and in which a director of the Company or an
entity connected with such direcfor had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisted during or af the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2016.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Confinved)
BEEERE@)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant fo the Arficles, the Company will indemnify its directors out of its
own assefs against any liabiliies incurred by them in the execution of their
duties or respective offices, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said directors. The relevant provision of the Arficles was in force during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 and as of the date of this annual
report. The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers

liability insurance policy in respect of such indemnity.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.1 per
Ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December 2016

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday, 15
June 2017 (the "AGM"). A notice convening the AGM will be published
and dispatched in due course to the shareholders of the Company in the

manner required by the Listing Rules.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
12 June 2017 to Thursday, 15 June 2017 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine
the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
183 Queen's Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 June 2017.

Limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre,
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(Continued)
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed

final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 23 June 2017. In
order to defermine the identity of the shareholders who are qualified to
receive the proposed final dividend, the register of members will be closed
June 2017 to Friday, 23 June 2017 [both days

inclusive], during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All

on Wednesday, 21

duly completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
20 June 2017.

FIXED ASSETS

Defails of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in nofe

18 to the consolidated accounts.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the longterm borrowings are set out in note 33
fo the consolidated accounts. Interest and other borrowing costs capitalised
by the Group during the year are sef ouf in nofe 12 to the consolidated

accounts.

MOVEMENTS OF SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year are

set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continved)
BEEERE@)

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 23 January 2014, the Company issued RMB denominated bonds in
the principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 (the "“Bonds”) by way of
private placement. Goldman Sachs [Asia) LL.C. acted as the placing agent
for the issue of the Bonds. To assist the Company in meeting its obligations
under the Bonds and the agreement between the Company, Greenland
Holdings and the frustee, which specifies the terms and conditions of the
Bonds including covenants, events of default, interest rate and maturity
date, Greenland Holdings has entered into a keepwell deed and a deed
of equity inferest purchase undertaking on terms which are substantially
similar to those it entered into in connection with the Company's
US$700,000,000 4.75% Bonds due 2016, details of which were
announced on 11 October 2013.

On 25 July 2014 the Company established the US$2,000,000,000
medium term note programme [the "Programme’) established by
the Company under which it may issue medium term notes that may
be issued from time to time (the “Nlotes”) by the Company under the
Programme in series or tranches of aggregate nominal amount of up fo
US$2,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies) outside the
United Stafes in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act.
The Notes will be issued in series with different issue dates and terms
and may be denominated in any currency subject to compliance with all
relevant laws, regulations and directives. To assist the Company in meeting
its obligations under the Notes and the trust deed dated 25 July 2014
entered info between the Company, Greenland Holdings and the Trustee,
Greenland Holdings entered info a keepwell deed with the Company and
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (as frustee of the
Notes; hereinafter "HSBC" or “Trustee”) and the deed of equity interest
purchase undertaking between Greenland Holdings and the Trustee dated
25 July 2014 in relation to the Notes on 25 July 2014 in relation to the
Notes.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

On 31 December 2014, True Thrive Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower enfered into a facility agreement
with a syndicate of banks whereby the banks to agreed to grant it a 3-year
term loan facility divided info (i) tranche A in an aggregate amount equal
fo US$300,000,000 as at the date of the agreement: and |ii) franche B
in an aggregate amount equal to HK$1,560,000,000 as at the dafe of
the agreement. Under such facility, an event of default will occur when |i)
Greenland Holdings beneficially owns less than 51% of the issued share
capifal of the Company; or (i) Greenland Holdings no longer maintains
management control of the Company. For further details please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014.

ISSUE OF DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, the Company did not issue any debt securities for
the year ended 31 December 2016:

(i) on 27 July 2016, the Company issued the senior perpetual capital
securities in the aggregate principal amount of US$120,000,000;
and

(i) on 28 July 2016, the Company issued the 3.875% nofes due 2019
in the aggregate principal amount of US$450,000,000.

RESERVES

Defails of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in note 50

to the consolidated accounts.

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB3,410,629,000 (2015: RMB3,208,328,000).
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Confinved)
BEEERE@)

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB249,000 (2015: RMB600,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on pages 266 to
268.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Jun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Weixian (Honorary Chairman)

Mr. HOU Guangijun (Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. WU Zhengkui

Ms. WANG Xuling

Mr. YOU Defeng (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. WANG Weixian, Ms. WANG Xuling
and Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong will refire from the Board at the forthcoming

annual general meetfing. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment of

compensation other than sfafufory compensation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmations from each of the

independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to eliminate Directors’ interests in businesses competing with the
19 September 2006, Mr. WANG Weixian entered into a
deed of non-competition with the Company (the “Deed”).

Group, on

In accordance with the terms of the Deed, Mr. WANG Weixian has
provided the Company with an annual confirmation that he and his

associates [other than the Group) have complied with the terms of the Deed.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the matters relafing to the compliance and enforcement of the Deed by Mr.
WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the Group| and confirmed
that Mr. WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the Group| have
complied with the Deed.

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors of the Company is
considered to have inferesfs in businesses which compete or are likely fo

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme
18 September 20106. There

were no options oufstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed

The Share Option Scheme was expired on

during the year ended 31 December 2016
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

BEEERE@)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors

and chief executives of the Company had any inferests or short positions

in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")) which were required fo be nofified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV

of the SFO [including inferests or short positions which they were taken or

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,

pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to

therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be nofified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Aggregate long position in shares of the Company:

Name of Director

S

Mr. WANG Weixian

IRELE
Ms. WANG Xuling

Bt

Mr. YOU Defeng
HEsR A

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

REHEL

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, P

HAEHE (A FaT)

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

MRELLE

Capacity and nature of interest

S REENE

Inferest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
R DA ()

Founder of discretionary frust (Note 2)
BEEFERa A (H:2)

Beneficial owner

ESBEA

Interest of controlled corporation [Nofe 3)
R DA (EE3)

Beneficiary of discrefionary trust [Note 2)
BEEEXAANT2)

Beneficial owner

ESBBA

Beneficial owner

EaBAA

Beneficial owner

ERREBA

Beneficial owner

ESBEA

ZE-RFEFH BBEBZRERAAF

ESNESNER

BRTXAIHEEN  R_B-RF+A=+—
B NRREERITBAER AR B S E AR
EE(EERESLEEGED([EHRAE®RG)
FEXVER BB AR EST B ERE AR
B MAEERPIEXVEE RFEN MG AR
AR R (BRREREES KPS GRIINER
B EESREE A MR SOA R ) - RARE
& 75 N VB 5D 3 3525 FL B fZ G DI P 2 B =T
M SZRIRIERAE ST B AN & AN R BBt S A e (£ ]
RERIAR

RAABIRBEORELER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Number of issued share
Ordinary Shares capital (Note 4)
REATEHT

BRARFRE

BaERt

TiEREE (MisE4)
32,058,571 1.18%
367,254,133 13.15%
4,000,000 0.14%
7,010,448 0.25%
367,254,133 13.15%
3,000,000 0.11%
500,000 0.02%
500,000 0.02%
500,000 0.02%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Aggregate long position in shares of the Company:
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) Mr. WANG Weixian was deemed to be interested in 32,958,571 Ordinary
Shares which are held by Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited. The entire issued
share capital of Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited was beneficially owned by
Mr. WANG Weixian.

(2) Each of Mr. WANG Weixian and Ms. WANG Xuling was deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 367,254,133 Ordinary Shares which were
held by The Duanyuan Trust.

(3] Ms. WANG Xuling was deemed tfo be interested in 7,010,448 Ordinary
Shares, which were held by Boom Rich Investments Limited which was in turn
enfirely beneficially owned by Ms. WANG Xuling.

(4)  Representing the issued and fully paid-up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2016 in 2,793,676,683 Ordinary Shares.

Apart from the foregoing, af no time during the year was the Company or
any of ifs subsidiaries a party fo any arrangements to enable the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, and no Directors or chief executives
or their respective spouses or children under 18 vyears of age had been
granted any right fo subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company

nor exercised any such right.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEERE @)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, there were no persons (other than Directors and
chief executive of the Company) having any interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, other than those recorded

in the register required o be kept under section 336 of the SFO as set out

below:

Name of shareholder

RRER

Cluon Xima Infernational Limited
HRERBERERAR

Hong Kong Vee Eight Limited
ERHEARAT

Creenland Holding Group Company limited
EREBERAR

Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited
SiEREERHBRAR

Reach Top Holding Limited

SPG Investment Holdings Lid.
SPG Asset Management Lid.

Brilliant Bright Investment Limited

HSBC International Trustee Limited

Capacity and nature of interest

S REmNE

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

EnmB A

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
REHIR R ()

Inferest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
R DA ()

Inferest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
RN Al (M)

Interest of controlled corporation [Notes 2 and 3]
Zdl D Al (2R 3)

Beneficial owner (Nofe 2)

BafA A32)

Inferest of controlled corporation [Note 2
R Al (HE2)

Beneficial owner

ESBEA

Inferest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
R DA (EE2)

Trustee (Note 4)

ZEEA(HEE4)

ERAARS -

e

FEIRR
RIB—RF+ZA=+—H B TIXPr#EmR&En
IRIEFE 5 KB &HIE 33016 AF BRI M HHE
BEAL(RRRESRITHRARR

SRR BB AD RARRRR (D R AR SOR R

Number of
Ordinary Shares

LERNE
1,650,244,409

1,650,244,409

1,650,244,400

1,650,244,409

367,254,133

256,741,641

256,741,641

110,512,492

256,741,641

367,260,133

BHhEBZRERATF

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s
issued share
capital (Note 5)
REATERT
BRA R E
BERLL
(B=ES5)

59.07%
59.07%
50.07%
59.07%
13.15%
9.19%
9.19%
3.96%
9.19%

13.15%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

1,650,244,409 Ordinary Shares were held by Gluon Xima International
Limited ("Gluon Xima’) which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong
Kong Vee Eight Limited. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Vee
Eight Limited was held by Greenland Holding Group Company Limited
["Greenland Group’|. The entire issued share capital of Greenland
Group was held by Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited (‘Greenland
Holdings"). Each of Hong Kong Vee Eight Limited, Greenland Group
and Greenland Holdings was deemed to be interested in 1,650,244,409
Ordinary Shares under the SFO.

256,741,641 Ordinary Shares were beneficially held by SPG
Investment Holdings Ltd. which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG
Asset Management Limited. The entire issued share capital of SPG Asset
Management Limited was held by Brilliant Bright Investment Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Brilliant Bright Investment Limited was held by
Reach Top Holding Limited. Each of SPG Asset Management Limited, Brilliant
Bright Investment Limited and Reach Top Holding Limited was deemed to be
interested in 256,741,641 Ordinary Shares under the SFO. Mr. WANG
Weixian was a director of each SPG Investment Holdings Lid. and SPG Asset

Management limited.

110,512,492 Ordinary Shares were beneficially held by Brilliant Bright
Investment Limited which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reach Top
Holding Limited. Reach Top Holding Limited was deemed to be interested in
110,512,492 Ordinary Shares under the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Reach Top Holding Limited was held by
HSBC International Trustee Limited which was the trustee of: [a) a trust, namely
Duanyuan Trust, of which Mr. Wang Weixian was the founder and his the
family members (including Ms. WANG Xuling) were discretionary objects in
respect of 367,254,133 Ordinary Shares; and (b] a private trust established
by independent third partylies) in respect of 6,000 Ordinary Shares.

Representing the issued and fully paid-up capital of the Company as af 31
December 2016 in 2,793,676,683 Ordinary Shares.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into the

following transactions and arrangements with persons who constituted
"connected persons” which were required to be disclosed for the

purposes of the Listing Rules:

On 22 January 2016, E8EBFE (£ E) AR A A (Shanghai
Cambridge (Group| Co., lid.*], a subsidiary of the Company, entered info
a Shanghai property fransaction confract fo sell to _E/GFTERITEB AR
A 7] (Shanghai Xinhua Publishing Group Company Limited*| 67.14% of
the equity interest in, and the shareholder’s loan to, E/8 B EERER
A 7] (Shanghai Sipo Education Development Company Limited*) for a fotal
consideration of approximately RMB349 million;

On 2 March 2016, A% HEHNEEBR AT (Haikou Greenland
Hongxiang Properties Limited*), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, enfered info a cooperation framework agreement with /&0
MHREEB (Haikou Municipal Authority*), o incorporate together with _E
TBERIHESE T2 AR A RA] (Shanghai Greenland Construction Co., Lid*)
a joint venture company for the purpose of financing and carrying out a re-
construction project in relation fo the land situated in Haikou District, Hainan
Province of the PRC, for a fofal investment sum of approximately RMB6OO

million;

On 21 April 2016, BNEHEHEREER QA (Xuzhou Southern
Development Property Development Co., ltd.*], a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, enfered info a main contractor Agreement with /&
ARIFESE TIZABMR AR (Shanghai Greenland Construction Co., Ltd. *)
("Shanghai Greenland’), to appoint Shanghai Greenland as the main
contractor fo undertake all civil construction, installation works and onci||or\/
engineering works in respect of the real estate development project to be
consfructed in Tongshan District, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu Province of the PRC.
The tofal contract sum was approximately RMB5.97 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
On 22 June 2016, #RINEEEEEZEBRAR] (Suzhou Lvjie Property Co.,
ltld*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered info a main
contractor agreement with Shanghai Greenland, to appoint Shanghai
Greenland as the main contractor to undertake all civil construction,
installation works and cmciHory engineering works in respect of the
residential development project to be constructed in Wujiang District,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province of the PRC. The total confract sum was
approximately RMB196.27 million.

Details of the above agreements were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 22 January 2016, 2 March 2016, 21 April 2016 and
22 June 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 18 February 2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 21 April 2016, the Company entered info a cooperation framework
agreement with Greenland Group Senmao landscape Engineering Co.,
ltd (Rt EEFREEMBRAR) ("Senmao’) fo engage Senmao to
undertake the landscape construction and greening works (‘Landscape
Greening Works") to be provided pursuant to the cooperation
framework agreement in respect of the real esfate development projects of
the Group in the PRC.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Confinved)
BEEERE@)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The annual aggregate contracted amount payable for the Landscape
Greening Works to be provided by Senmao for the three years ending 31

December 2018 shall not exceed the amounts set out below:

For the year ending 31 December 2016: RMB199.09 million;

For the year ending 31 December 2017: RMB61.82 million; and

For the year ending 31 December 2018: RMB®.24 million.

Save as disclosed above, related-party transactions disclosed in the
Company's financial statements either did not constitute connected
fransactions/continuing connected fransactions or constituted connected
fransactions/continuing connected fransactions but were exempted from
all disclosure and independent shareholders” approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected fransaction and confirmed that such fransaction
carried out for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been entered
info (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The Audifor has performed procedures on the above continuing connected
fransaction and issued a letter to the Board to confirm that nothing has come
fo its affention that causes if to believe that the above continuing connected

fransaction:
i) has not been approved by the Board;

ii) was not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the

relevant agreements goveming such fransactions; and

i) has exceeded their respective caps.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or

existed during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the
remuneration committee which takes info account individual performance,

qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company (including the
independent non-executive Directors| are recommended by the remuneration
committee, having regard fo their dufies and responsibilities, experience,
qualification and prevailing market conditions. Please see note 14 to the

financial statements for details of the Directors’ emoluments.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Confinved)
BEEERE@)

REMUNERATION POLICY (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no expense in
relation to share-based payments recognised in the Company'’s financial

sfatements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of ifs subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the Cayman Islands [being the jurisdiction in

which the Company is incorporated).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as sef out in Appendix 10 fo the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the listing Rules, save as disclosed herein, there
were no change in the Directors information subsequent to the publication of

the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Direcfors as at the latest practicable date prior
fo issue of this document, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained throughout the year of 2016 the amount of public float as

required under the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 12 January 2017, &M EREE AR AR (Suzhou Runjian Property
Co., lid.*) ["Suzhou Runijian’), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered info an equity fransfer agreement with #8515
EHBR2AR (Wuxi Metro Group Co., ltd.*) ("Wuxi Metro"), pursuant
fo which Suzhou Runjian agreed to purchase from Wuxi Metro the 90%
interest in #HEANIE FEBEAMR A A (Wuxi Guangcheng Metro
Above-Station Property Development Co., lid.*) ["Wuxi Guangcheng’)
togefher with the shareholder’s loan for a total amount of opproximofe\y
RMB2,340 million. Upon Completion, Wuxi Guangcheng will become an

indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by

Deloitte.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN Jun

Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2017

* for identification purposes only
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BWEBZRERATF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VRS EIEES

Deloitte.
)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREENLAND HONG KONG
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greenland
Hong Kong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred fo as “the Group’) sef out on pages 121 to 265,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as af 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.
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Key audit matter

PSS EIE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the key management judgement is required
in defermining the fair value and also the significance of

investment properties fo the financial statements as a whole.

Management has estimated the fair value of investment
properties to be at approximately RMB8,216 million at 31
December 2016, with a revaluation gain of approximately
RMB688 million recorded in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B E IR R R E A

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties among others:

. Understanding management's process for reviewing and

challenging the work of the Valuers.

] Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuers' scope and
assessed whether the Valuers had sufficient expertise and

resource.

e Obfaining the valuation report issued by the Valuers for
all investment properties and interviewed the Valuers
fo evaluate valuation approach appropriate for use in

defermining the carrying amount of investment properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BB ERE (')

Key audit matter

[GE S AL

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGE)

The Group has hired independent extermnal valuers, Debenham
Tie leung limited ["DTZ") (the "Valuers’), in assisting the
management’s estimation of the fair value of investment

properties.

As disclosed in Note 22, fair value of investment properties
under development are defermined using direct comparison
approach and fair value of completed investment properties
are determined using income capitalisation approach. The
revaluations are dependent on certain key input that require
signiﬁcont management iudgemenf, inc\udmg copifohsoﬁon

rafes, average unit market rent and average market unit price.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HFBEH IR RS = EE

Discussing with the Valuers on the key assumptions
included within the valuations, analysed and evaluated
the key assumptions, the namely reversionary yield,
including market unit rent rafe, market unit price and the
rationale behind all significant movement during the year

on a property by property basis.

e Comparing the valuafions on samples of properties fo
our independently formed expectation with the assistance

of our internal valuation specialist.
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Key audit matter

FAStEtEIE

Land appreciation tax provision

TR EBRE

We identified the Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") provision
as a key audit matter due to the significant management
judgement exercised by the Group in respect its provision in
accordance with the People's Republic of China ["PRC”) tax

laws and regulations.

As disclosed in note 4, the Group is subject to LAT in the
PRC. The calculation of LAT are highly dependent on the
appropriateness of the rates used, which are defermined by
the appreciation of land value. The appreciation of land value
is determined with reference fo proceeds of the properties less
the estimated deductible expenditures, including the cost of
land use rights and all property development expenditures. The
Group estimated the deductible expenditures according fo the
understanding of the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income fax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax

authorities.

As at 31 December 2016, the LAT payable amounted to
RMB645 million and the LAT recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss and other comprehensive income statement
amounted to RMB324 million for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B E IR R R E A

Our audit procedures in relation to the LAT provision among

others:

° Understanding the design and implementation of controls
in respect of the principal assumptions and judgements

made in arriving at the provision for LAT;

. Engaging tax specialist to evaluate LAT provision and

potential exposures as at 31 December 2016;

®  Assessing the Group's assumptions and judgements
through our knowledge of the tax circumstances and tax
regulation in the PRC and by examining tax filing records

and review of correspondence with tax authorities;

e Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of the

disclosures in respect to the provision for LAT.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BB ERE (')

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do nof express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

are required fo report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the direcfors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either
infend to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have no realisfic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

ZE-AFEH BMEBERERAT

Hith &
EATEFALHMARAR - AR BETR
RFTEER BT BERA MBRRRATHR
Hep AT -

RITHZEAMBRENBERE TRERMER - K
I EZEFEMERNEREMTANRESS °

ATTHEZA M BTRERNTE - NTNEETI46
HMER - FUBET - ZEEMERRGBRE
RATEFTBRETAAATNELREFEEANK
BRBEUFEEAFRRL - ERATEHITHT
e WATTRAREMERFEEAHERRML - A17
FEREXFE - NMIPM AL BEFAFHEARS -

EERGEEMGEMBRREAR
BHEE

¢t ARE /AR B RBERIS H SR ESA
BOIMBRBER T RREETHATHEA B R
AHEFRABERAMERE ORI EE
B R BS54 58 T B A B A SR B T B A0 PO 2D

EHAaE -

e[

ERFaBmAy EFREMNE BE8ER
BEEmEN  YTEERBATHREESELER
MNEIE  ARERFECSERSER  KIFE
FEER EREBFRIEFLLE  NpEEGE
PREVERTR -

REERRARERE ESENMBHRERE -

117



118

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Confinved)
BB NERE (#)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
missiatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability fo any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepficism throughout the audit. We

also:

(@) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of infernal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

(c)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the direcfors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BB ERE (')

(d)

(e)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the direcfors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
fo continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exisfs, we are required fo draw attention in our audifor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up fo the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial stafements represent the underlying

fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group fo
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal control that

we idenfify during our audit.

(d)

e)

e —REFH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Confinved)
BB NERE (#)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumsfances, we defermine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Wong Tin Chak, Samuel.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ceBERREMZEAER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—NF+-A=+—HIFFE

2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—hF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE AREFx ARET T
Revenue Wi 5 16,919,188 5,687,953
Cost of sales $HE R AN (14,091,196) 4,647,388)
Gross profit EFH 2,827,992 1,040,565
Other income, gains and losses Hupdg A~ Yzs K E8E 7 197,969 176,430
Selling and marketing costs $HE N TS ER A (415,567) (318,911)
Administrative expenses 1THER (499,687) (428,641)
Other operating expenses Hih &R & 8 (839,181) (729,161)
Write-down of completed properties BT S W MUK
held for sale (4,892) (158,031)
Net gain on disposal of interests HEF QA 2 W
in subsidiaries HER 228 500
Results from operating activities RBELEEERES 1,266,862 [417,159)
Finance income BB A 11 70,574 58,947
Finance expenses Bh & A AN 12 (135,088) (199,114
Net finance expenses BERAFE (64,514) (140,167)
Share of profit {loss) of an associate JE(L— B &R A
wm A (E18) 370 (1,007)
Share of profits of joint ventures EIERE R ET 195,015 4
Revaluation gain on investment properties BB EE G 22 687,638 1,115,249
Profit before income tax BRERE B AT 2,085,371 556,920
Income fax expenses Frisfif sz 13 (1,024,852) (540,664)
Profit for the year from continuing KB FHES T
operations FREF 1,060,519 16,256
Discontinued operations RIS
Profit for the year from discontinued A2 B
operations F R A 47 180,063 15,389
Profit and total comprehensive FEESZHNRZEEAN
income for the year paki] 1,240,582 31,645
Attributable to: AT AN LrELS -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE 2SN 1,112,543 220,240
Non-controlling interests JEFE T 128,039 (188,595)
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CONSOILIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continved)
GEBRRREMEEAERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
e —F—NF—A=1—HIFE

i

By

2016 2015
—T—RE —T—h%F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
FiteE ARETR ARET T
Earnings per share: BRET :
From confinuing and disconfinued REFHE R
operations S
Ordinary share EiE (EAR L)
(basic and diluted) 17 0.39 0.08
Convertible preference share AEEAME SR N/A
(basic and diluted) (EAREE) 17 EA 0.08
From continuing operations REFEREER
Ordinary share (basic and diluted) LBk (EARREE) 17 0.33 0.08
Convertible preference share A BRSO AR N/A

(basic and diluted) (EAREE) 17 EA 0.08
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R

As at 31 December 2016
REZF—NF+=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-REF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 ARETR ARBFIT
ASSETS &E
Non-Current Assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB Rkt 18 1,282,241 1,546,906
Infangible assets WA E 19 1,341 1,386
Land use rights b {5 FAAE 20 24,608 74,738
Other financial assets HiepdE 21 174,567 174,567
Investment properties LEME 22 8,216,000 7,246,000
Properties under development R 23 15,082,454 15,587,580
Inferests in an associate S NI 26 - -
Interests in joint ventures SEDERERS 27 541,203 206,187
Deferred tax assets BRIERRIBEE E 32liv) 210,427 269,727
Total non-current assets IERENEELAEE 25,532,841 25,197,091
Current Assets MENEE
Properties under development KRS 23 3,928,278 8,716,805
Completed properties held for sale BEREKFEME 24 9,707,441 4,885,603
Trade, other receivables and advance FEURBRZN ~ E b e R IE
deposits EBRRE 28 7,809,166 4,917,358
Tax recoverable AJ Y Bl FLIE 29 466,079 207,292
Other financial assets HEhEpEE 21 866,059 143,000
Restricted cash SRR S 30 1,436,984 621,618
Cash and cash equivalents R NRIBEEEY 31 4,358,259 5,207,187
Total current assets TS EEEE 28,572,266 24,788,863
Total assets BEEE 54,105,107 49 985 954
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRaE
Capital And Reserves BERRGERE
Share capital &N 38 1,132,855 1,132,855
Share premium &1 (B 39 3,416,546 3,416,546
Reserves i 851,214 829,466
Perpetual securities KAFEE 40 787,823 -
Retained earnings RE & 2,641,360 1,550,565
Total equity atfributable to owners RRRER ARG
of the Company 1E%R 8,829,798 6,929,432
Non-confrolling inferests PR R 2 893,896 758,676
Total equity R AEEE 9,723,694 7,688,108
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CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  (Continved)

AR ()

As at 31 December 2016

B —
R=

7o | — =4 4
E—ANFF=-A=+—H

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Inferestbearing loans
long-term payable

Bonds

Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current Liabilities
Inferestbearing loans
Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Pre-sale deposits

Tax payable

Bonds within one year

Llongterm payable within one year

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on page 121 to 265 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2017 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Chen Jun
[RE

NOTES

BRE
aff
¥RBER
SFERER 33
R
[Ee 35
EREBIARE 32(iv)
FRBERER
nEafR
STEER 33
Hit &R EE 21
A R R e LAt FE AN 5RIR 34
BERS
R HIA 32(i)
—FRE N ES 35
—FRR B RHEN R
REE REE
BE4EH
EnkafREE
RBEEFHR
BEERRDERE

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer

BEFETERITHARH

BE

Hou Guangjun

&AE
Chief Operation Officer

BEE2ER

2016
—g—5%
RMB’000
NRETFT

5,770,601

4,581,996
899,639

11,252,236

3,713,620
329,543
14,277,517
10,120,297
1,231,422
3,456,778

33,129,177
44,381,413
54,105,107
(4,556,911)
20,975,930

2015
—ET—hF
RMB’'000
ARETTT

6,577,283
26,494
4,714,521
875,234

12,193,532

3,265,938

12,188,018
?,283,538
831,413
4,529,407
6,000

30,104,314
42,297,846
49,985,954

(5,315,451)
19,881,640

F121E205ENEGREMBHRERR_T—LF=H
T ERREF A RBETE  WHU TREK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

F—AFFR

B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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BWEBZRERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%/JIL%%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-T—NF+-A=+—HIFFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of land use rights

Chonge in fair value of investment properties

Gains from financial assets/liabilities carried at

fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL”)
Foreign exchange loss
Write-down of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
Writedown of impairment of receivables
Net finance expenses
Share of net (gains) losses of associates and

joint ventures

Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries

Gain on combination of subsidiaries

Net loss on disposal of other investments

Net gain on disposal of an associate

Net loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

Income tax expense

Operating profit before
changes in working capital

(Increase) decrease in trade, other receivables
and advance deposits

Decrease (increase] in properties under
development and complefed properties
held for sale and investment properties

Increase in frade, other payables and
advance receipts

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow (outflow)
from operating activities

FREEMN

HEIER

W% - BERRBITE
B EEMRE
{5 PR A
BREMELAEEE

BRREEIERNE S (HRAREET
IRIRER DN SREE BENNE

b 5 E518

BRTPMERDEXFEME
Z MR

JE USSR IER (B R

BE KA F R

EREE AR RAEEDEF
(Yezs ) 518

HEF R MR 2 F W

BHFFRALZ M

HEHEMSE 7 FEIE

B N R 2 W FRE

HEWE - BEREHZ
B8 (M) 358

MRS E R RN 2

FriS Bl

BELABHANELRN

FEWARR - EoAb FEM IR e
B RS (M)
BRPMERDERGEMER
BEWMER D (EM)

FERTRRAR ~ EADREN R R
TEWCRIBE A
BRI

EEEBRERACGRL)FHR

2016
—T-RE
RMB’000
ARBTR

1,240,582

89,546
a5
788
(687,638)

(174,834)
811,487

4,892
13,030
64,519

(195,385)
(246,797)

1,090,365

2,010,718

(2,001,343)

1,127,546

2,007,940
(795,832)

2,349,029

2015
—E-RE
RMB'O00
ARETTT

31,645

11,447

45

2,186
(1,115,249

642,980

158,031
56,220
142,116

1,003
(590)
(89,726)
1,000
(546)
(76,653)

416
545,490

409,815

(117,746)

(2,473,961)

(4,164
(501,099

(2,687,155)
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

GmEBERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

o — A — = [
BR2—FE—NFLT_HA=1—HIFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment

Inferest received

Proceeds from disposal of inferests in
an joint venture

Proceeds from disposal of interests in
Subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

Decrease in resfricted cash

Increase in resfricted cash

Amounts advance fo related parties
Repayment from related parties
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Capital contribution to a joint venture
Capital contribution to an associate

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of financial assefs

Net cash outflow from
investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from interestbearing loans
Proceeds from placing shares
Proceeds from perpetual securifies
Proceeds from issuance of bonds
Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders
Proceeds from related parties
Repayment to related parties
Repurchase shares to logout
Payments for purchase of shares
for the Share Award Scheme
Repayment of bonds
Repayment of interestbearing loans
Inferest paid

Net cash (outflow) inflow
from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year

REPRESENTED BY
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

NOTES
BifsE
REEE
HEME - BEMEE
FrS 508
BUFIE
HEAEDEREDS
FriS5R1E

5 T 2 A S HOR

HESREEMSIUR
XRHIRERD
SRR 2B 0
BB A LR
BEALTER
WiEFAE
AeEELERE
RHEE AR E
WEYE - BF K&iE
WESREE

REEEIR TR HFE

AU EE

FEBERATR A

fe & A5 PS5k 08
KABH S RIA
BITES S 5KA
FEFERR AR R &

o 5 B A AT 50
FIREALER

BB IR A LA

S B IR 15 B3 B2
B3 3%

RS

AR E R

BAIFIE

MEEBRE (RH)
RN

RERBLEEMRD)
B hnERE

FHRERBEEEYD
[ R EH) A g
FRORERFEEEYD

HBTIIEBARK
RITHEBRREE

2016
—B—5%
RMB’000
ARETFR

348
70,574

279,204
161,547
404,785

(1,220,151)

(1,229,287)
253,631

(50,000)
(150)
(65,094)
(380,230)

(1,772,823)

4,827,908

787,823
2,956,815

43,500
3,891,514
(2,774,050)

(4,706,715)
(5,505,142)
(1,006,919)

(1,485,266)

(909,060)

5,207,187
60,132

4,358,259

4,358,259

2015
—hE
RMB'000

ARMET T

97,338
22,270

©0,000
[554,925)

110,078
(19,825]

(126,488)
(143,000

[520,403)

5,002,825
1,328,054

2,680,236
(2,688,9106]
[200,556)

(37,660]

(2,509,338
(1,097,376)

3,377,269

169,711

5,032,763
4,713

5,207,187

5,207,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 —T—NFE+=—H=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited ("The Company’|
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 April 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
law, Cap 22 (law 3 of 2007, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company'’s registered office
is Century Yard, Crickef Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies. In 2006,
the companies comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation
(the "Reorganisation’) to rationalise the Group's structure in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’). On 30 June 2006, the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group. The Company's shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange since 10 October 2006.

On 27 August 2013, the subscription of shares of the Company
(the “Subscribed Shares’) by Gluon Xima International Limited
["GXIL") was successfully completed. CXIL is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited
("Greenland Holdings"). Greenland Holdings is a state-
controlled enterprise group headquartered in Shanghai, with its main

business in real esfate, energy and finance.

The Subscribed Shares represent approximately 60% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company and approximately 60% of
the voting rights of the Company as enlarged by the Subscribed
Shares. Immediately affer the subscription, Greenland Holding Group
Company Llimited became the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company. At 30 June 2015, Greenland Holdings become the
Ultimate Controlling shareholder of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB’), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activity of its subsidiaries [fogether with the Company referred to as
the "Group’) is the development for sale and rental of residential

properties in the PRC and the development of hotels.

—RE&ER
GHBEBZERERAG(EAT R =T
ANFEMAT=BREREFEARIEAFE202E
(ZEZ-FRE 0 RIEFTHE 3BFOEN)E
FERSTMKRIRZHEAERAR - AR
Al EE AU ACentury Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT,
George Town, Grand Cayman, British West
Indies e ZEZTRF - REHBAQRRHOR
AERBMERSMERA R ([ EEBZRH )+
RET - BEERNEERNNARMETT —1A
SHEE])  AEREEHEESEL -
RZZTREARNA=ZTH - AREKEAE
EIREE ST RARERAR o RAFMK
MEZZZ A FTATHRES BB E
7 o

RZB—=FN\A=++H  HBEFBBRERK
BRAR(BERE ) KN TRRBBAR
AR ([RBRERRHY |) - HBEFIB A IER
B ERAR(TEiER D OEE2EFA
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eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of

amendments fo IFRSs issued by the Infernational Accounting

Standards Board (“IASB’) that are mandatorily effective for an

accounting period that begins on or affer 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments fo IFRSs

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Annual Improvements fo IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The application of amendments fo IFRSs in the current year has

had no material impact on the Group's financial performance

and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective:

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS @

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

Amendments fo IFRS 2

Amendments fo IFRS 4

Amendments fo IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments'

leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration!

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based payment
Transactions!

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts!

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 3

Disclosure Initiative#
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses*

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
defermined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS @ infroduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assefs, financial liabilities, general

hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial

assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

e all recognised financial assefs that are within the scope
of IFRS @ are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assefs, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and inferest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination fo
which IFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income,

with only dividend income generally recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: (Continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

e with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of a financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such
changes in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair

value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

o in relation fo the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
fo an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity fo account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date fo reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, i is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: (Continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

e the new general hedge accounting requirements refain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced 1o the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an 'economic relationship'.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements

about an entity’s risk management activities have also

been infroduced.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 20106, application
of IFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets.
The Group's available-for-sale investments, including those

currently stated af cost less impairment, will be measured as

FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
fo use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with cusfomers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognifion guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue fo depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
cusfomers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be enfifled in exchange for those goods
or services. Specifically, the Standard infroduces a 5-step

approach fo revenue recognifion:
° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a cusfomer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

confract
° Step 3: Defermine the transaction price
e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price fo the performance

obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an enfity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is safisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.
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eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—T—NF+—A=1—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to

deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by IFRS 15.

In April 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing

application guidance.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:
o Sale of properties

*  Running hotels and servicing fees

®  Property management and other related service fee

Revenue will be recognised for each of these performance
obligations when confrol over the corresponding properties
and services is transferred to the customer. This is similar to
the current identification of separate revenue components
under IAS 18. Furthermore, even though IFRS 15 requires the
fransaction price o be allocated to the different performance
obligations on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, the
directors do not expect that the allocation of revenue will be
significantly different from that currently determined. The timing
of revenue recognition of each performance obligations are

also expected fo be consistent with current pracfice.

The directors do not intend to early apply the standard and

infend fo use the full refrospective method upon adoption
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting freatments
for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede the current
lease guidance including IAS 17 leases and the related

inferpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service confracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases (off balance sheet) and finance
leases (on balance sheet) are removed for lessee accounting,
and is replaced by a model where a rightof-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees (i.e. all on balance sheet) except for shorterm leases

and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject fo cerfain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid af that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. Furthermore, the
classification of cash flows will also be affected as operating
lease payments under IAS 17 are presented as operating
cash flows; whereas under the IFRS 16 model, the lease
payments will be split info a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing and operating cash flows

respectively.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.
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eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB114,066,000 as
disclosed in Note 44. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a rightof
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or shortterm leases
upon the application of IFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of financial

effect until the directors of the Group complete a detail review.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

1. In estimating the fair value of a cash-setiled share-based
payment, the accounting for the effects of vesting and

non-vesting conditions should follow the same approach

as for equity-setiled share-based payments.

2. Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments equal
fo the monefary value of the employee's tax obligation
fo meet the employee's tax liability which is then remitted
fo the tax authority, i.e. the share-based payment
arrangement has a ‘net seftlement feature’, such an
arrangement should be classified as equity-seftled in its
entirety, provided that the share-based payment would

have been classified as equity-setiled had it not included

the net settlement feature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE T NF+—A=+—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

3.

A modification of a sharebased payment that changes
the fransaction from cash-seffled to equity-seffled should

be accounted for as follows:
i) the original liability is derecognised;

ii]  the equity-settled share-based payment is
recognised af the modification date fair value
of the equity instrument granted to the extent
that services have been rendered up to the

modification date; and

i) any difference between the carrying amount of the
liability af the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in

profit or loss immediately.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with
earlier application permitted. Specific transition
provisions apply. The directors of the Company do
not anficipate that the application of the amendments
in the future will have a significant impact on the
Croup's consolidated financial statfements as the Group
does not have any cash-settled share-based payment
arrangements or any withholding fax arrangements with

fax authorities in relation to share-based payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations
where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associafe or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a fransaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised in
the parent’s profit or loss only to the exfent of the unrelated
investors’ inferests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments refained in any former subsidiary (that has become
an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) fo fair value are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated

investors’ inferests in the new associate or joinf venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by
the IASB; however, earlier application of the amendments is
permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact on the
Group's consolidated financial stafements in future periods

should such transactions arise.
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REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE
2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require an entity fo provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Specially, the amendments require the following changes in
liabilities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash
flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; [iii) the effect of changes in
foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair value; and (v) other

changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in
additional disclosures on the Group's financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing acfivities will be provided
on application. The directors of the Company do not infend fo

early apply fo the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide guidance on how an entity
determines, in accordance with IFRS 12 Income Taxes,
whether to recognise a deferred tax asset in relation to
unrealised tax losses of a debt instrument that is classified as
an availableforsale financial asset in accordance with IFRS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement under

certain specific facts and circumstances.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments will have a material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the following accounting policies which
conform to International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs") issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (“Listing Rules”’) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance ("CO”|

Basis of preparation

As of 31 December 2016, the Group's net current liabilities
are approximately RMB4,557 million. The Direcfors consider
the Group is able to operate as a going concem, faken into
account the cash flows generated from operating activities, and
undrawn loan facilities from banks, amounting approximately
RMB8,273 million, to meet its liquidity requirements in the next
twelve months. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis that the Group will continue to

operate throughout the next twelve months as a going concem.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties, which are measured at fair values, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants af the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the assef or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, leasing
fransactions that are within the scope of IAS 1.7 leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories

or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assefs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised info level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in acfive
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the enfity

can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assef or

liability.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the

Company:
e has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee: and
o has the ability to use its power fo affect its refurns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicafe that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

®  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

*  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need fo be made, including voting patferns at previous

shareholders' meefings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and fo the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is affributed to the owners of the Company and
fo the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
stafements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F—ANGF+—A=+—HIFE
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=Z:THHR(E)
(Continued)

3.3 SHEEER)

3.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All infragroup assefs and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative inferests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling inferests are adjusted
after re-aftribution of the relevant equity component and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assefs (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any refained interest, with
any resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in
profit or loss aftributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets [i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained eamings as
specified by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39 when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in a joint venture or

an associafe.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
fo the former owners of the acquiree and the equity inferesfs
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or

loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assefs related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered info fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the

accounting policy below); and

J assets [or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FES:THHE(E)
(Continued)
3.4 Business combinations (Continued) 3.4 ¥(BEH(E)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-confrolling inferests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
inferests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
Standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the measurement
period about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date. Measurement period cannot exceed one year

from the acquisition date.
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BE—E—NFFZHA=1+—HIFE
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. =ES:HHR(E)
(Continued)

3.4 EBEHER)

3.4 Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and ifs subsequent setflement is accounted for within
equity. Confingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the

corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured fo its fair value at the acquisition date [i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
inferests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be

appropriate if that inferests were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisiion date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that

date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)

=
e

P s E N TE )

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—NFF+-_A=1+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.5 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established af the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generafing units) that is expected to benéfit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes

and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit, or group of cash generating unites, to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit, or group of
cash generating unites fo which goodwill has been allocated
is fested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carmying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then fo the other assefs of the unit on a prorata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit,
or the group of cash generating unites. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination

of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

3.6 Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a

business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the financial assefs and financial liabilities af the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated fo the other individual identifiable assefs and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or

bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. =ES:HHR(E)
(Continued)

3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not confrol or joint control over those policies.

A joinf venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assefs of the joint arrangement. Joint confrol is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assefs and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumsfances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated sfatement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's inferest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associafe or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venfure, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assefs and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NFF+HA=1—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=Z:THHR(E)
(Continued)

3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary fo recognise any impairment loss with respect
fo the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
[including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single assef by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases fo have significant influence over an
associate or joint confrol over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire inferest in the investee with a
resulfing gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. VWhen
the Group refains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the refained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as ifs
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained inferest and any proceeds from disposing of the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is included in
the defermination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified fo profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assefs or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
las a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENITS (Continued)
e UBRERMEE

F—A=+—HIFFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

3.8

(Continued)

The Group continues fo use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joinf venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement fo fair

value upon such changes in ownership inferests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associafe
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relafing to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss

on the disposal of the related assefs or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
fransactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only fo the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not

related to the Group.

Revenue recogpnition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Croup's activities as described below:

(i) Sales of properties
Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when a
Group entity has delivered the relevant properties fo the
customers and collectability of the relafed receivables
is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior fo the date of revenue
recognition are recorded as advances from customers
and presented as trade, other payables and advance

deposits under current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENITS (Confinued)
REPBRERME @)
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFBUIR(E

(Continued)
3.8 Revenue recognition (Continued) 3.8 Wizt (&)
(i) Sales of goods and services rendered (i)  HEEmRIERRHE
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the HEEMmER A EERNRR
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been & ERE S B SR o AR
transferred to the buyer. Revenue in relafion fo property YIEEEIE L S E MRS R
management and hotel operation is recognised when ARG RFRERR ©

the services are rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised in B #I5 B MER RS AR IRIE
proportion to the stage of complefion of the projects by B e ER FILL B RERR o SERKPE
the end of reporting period. The stage of completion is B2EETHN TEmMAE - 8
assessed by reference fo work performed. An expected RA& 4T HAE 1B RNBFfE B e P 1
loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or R e
loss.

(i) Rental income (iii)  EEHA
The Group's accounting policy for recognition of AREBERLLHERAN G
revenue from operating leases is described in the RN T X EBREENSTER
accounting policy for lease below. FRE o

(iv] Interest income fiv)]  FIEHA
Inferest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference FEIWATIRRBREERS ME
fo the principal outstanding and at the effective interest RAERAE - iREEEERG -
rafe applicable, which is the rafe that exactly discounts HRERNREEReRMEETE
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected T E RS AR AR IR 2 R ARLIR
life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying EREEN TR B RREF

amount on initial recognition. BERFIZE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-F—NFFr-A=1—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. =ES:HHR(E)
(Continued)
3.9 Foreign currencies 3.9 HhE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactfions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing af
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates
prevailing at the dafe when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

costin a foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

except for:

*  exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assefs under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment fo interest cosfs on

those foreign currency borrowings.

3.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time fo gef ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for

their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assefs is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

year in which they are incurred.

REREENEEEENTHEHRE
B - X BRSSO ER (51
BVETNRS » X5 AHNBRTE
KR - REBERR - MINEEE
MEKIBERNEEANRITEREH
BE - AR R BESIRNIINEETEIE
E¥IEE  aREEAALEEERD
RITEXEHNRE - MIASNEIRESL
A ERIFEHKIRR BT e EHK

= o
>

BNEBHEEELENUARENRBRESR
KHRERMELZENEELHRA
B RER - HEIARNERSD

o  AERERREENEZEEEN
SMEEEEAE N R - SHEER
BRZEINEEERN BKAR
B SEARFEERA

3.10 EERE

R - Bkt ERERERT A
ZRAEARER L ENEEN R
EENEBEEREN  BIAZEREEE
WA  EEEEEERBUER A £
R AT B AL

EEFEARAEREEMBRER
BEERREMMBMAKRERAGES
BRETEAMEBERAP I °

PR R EERAGNE LN FER

1BERER o



ZE-RFFH BMEBERERAT 155

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016

AR —T—NFIT-—A=1—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FES:THHE(E)
(Continued)
3.11 Taxation 3.11 I8

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before income tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using fax rafes that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporfing period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred fax assefs are recognised fo the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and inferests
in associate and joint ventures, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the tfemporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assefs arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the tfemporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset fo be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BRRWE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2 —F—ANF+—A=+—HIFFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.11 Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured af the tax rafes
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is setfled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, fo recover or seftle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed fo be recovered entfirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e. based on the

expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the current and deferred fax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=ZTBR(E
(Continued)
3.12 Government grants 3.12 BT #HED

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

affaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intfended fo compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediafe financial support fo the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the

loan based on prevailing market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEZTHR(E)
(Continued)
3.13 Leasing 3.13#8

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operafing lease are added fo the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straightline

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter info
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straightline basis.

3.14 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them fo the confributions.

The Group participates in state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, which are defined contribution schemes, pursuant
to which the Group pays a fixed percentage of its qualifying
staff’'s wages as contributions to the plans. Payments to
such refirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entfitling them to the

contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
fermination benefit and when the entity recognises any related

restructuring costs.
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ZE-RFFH BBEBZRERAAF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESZBR(E)

(Continued)

3.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in

the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees [such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other longferm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up fo the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another IFRS requires

or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Share award scheme

The Company operates a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme’) where directors and employees of the
Group are granfed ordinary shares of the Company. Ordinary
shares purchased under the Share Award Scheme are held by

a frust (the “Trust”).

Where the Trust purchases the Company'’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
affributable incremental cosfs, is presented as Shares held for

Share Award Scheme and deducted from total equity.

For shares granted under the Share Award Scheme the
estimated fair value of the awarded shares are recognised as
employee sharebased compensation expense and credited to
employee share-based compensation reserve under equity over
the vesting periods. The fair value of the awarded shares is
measured by reference to the quoted market price of the shares

at grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
eV BHRRMT #)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. =E=:THR(E)
(Continued)
3.14 Employee benefits (Continued) 3. 14 EEEFI(E)
Share award scheme (Continued) R 172/ 2 (&

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested awarded shares
recognised are credited fo Shares held for Share Award
Scheme, with a corresponding decrease in employee share-
based compensation reserve for shares purchased with
confributions paid to the Trust, with the difference released

directly to the retained eamnings.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises ifs
esfimate of the number of equity instruments expected fo vest.
The impact of the revision, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised esfimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to employee share-based

compensation.

When share options are excised, the amount previously
recognized in shares held for share award scheme and
employee share-based compensation will be transferred to

share premium.

3.15 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy and, where appropriate, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payments provided during the construction period.
Such properties are classified fo the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
infended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assefs, commences when the assets are ready

for their intended use.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTFHBR(E
(Continued)

3.15 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) .15 9% - MERREE)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than constfruction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative

periods are as follows:

ltems residential  Charging period
rate
Buildings situated on 5%-10% 2040 years
leasehold land
Motor vehicles 5%-10% 5 years
Fixtures, fittings and 5%-10%  2-10 years
equipment

leasehold improvements ~ 5%-10%  Shorter of leasehold

period and 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the confinued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is defermined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is transferred
to investment property when the management changes
the intention from self-use to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEZTHR(E)
(Continued)
3.16 Investment properties 3.16 &Y=

Investment properties are properties (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property, and
properties under construction for such purposes) held to earn

rentals and,/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured af cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent fo initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of

the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
assef (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in

profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

3.17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately

are carried af cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposals, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible assef, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assefs, are

recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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BE—F—ANGF+—A=+—HIFE
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=Z:THHR(E)
(Continued)

3.18 AR RER EE (FHERIN)IRE

3.18 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and infangible assefs
fo determine whether there is any indication that those assefs
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order fo defermine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group esfimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assefs are also allocated fo individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assefs not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the assets may be

impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a prefax discount rate that reflects current market
assessmenfs of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not

been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assef is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.19 Properties under development

Properties under development, representing leasehold land
and buildings located in the PRC under development for future
sale in the ordinary course of business, are sfated at the lower
of cost and nef realisable value. Cost comprises the costfs of
land use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
and other direct development expenditure. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Properties under
development are fransferred to complefed properties for sale

upon completion of development.

An item of properties under development is transferred to
property, plant and equipment when the management changes
the intention from future sales to self-use and the properties

under development completed and ready for infended use.

3.20 Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated af the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises the costs of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capifalised and
other direct development expenditure. Nef realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The Group transfers a property from completed properties
for sale to investment property when there is a change of
intention to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of
business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an
operafing lease to another party. Any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its previous

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTFHBR(E
(Continued)
3.21 Provisions 3.21 4%

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, faking info account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. VWhere a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated fo sefile the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is

material).

3.22 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atfributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriafe, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
affributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: financial assets FVTPL,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is defermined at the

fime of initial recognition.

Effective inferest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rafe is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period fo the net carrying

amount on inifial recogpnition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is

included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages fogether and has a recent actual pattern

of shortterm profittaking; or
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

o it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in

the manner described in Note 3.2.

loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent fo initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, long-
term receivables, restricted cash, bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Inferest income is recognised by applying the effective
inferest rate, except for shortHerm receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Availableforsale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assefs at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held4o-maturity

investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as availableforsale and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of availablefor-sale monetary financial assets relating
fo interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount
of availableforsale financial assefs are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated. When
the investment is disposed of or is defermined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified fo
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016

AE =T —NF1=

A=+—HIFFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment af the end of the reporting
period. Financial assefs are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

For an availableforsale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below cost is considered fo be obijective evidence of

impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency

in inferest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

For certain cafegories of financial assefs, such as frade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a porifolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the financial asset's original effective interest rafe.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the esfimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rafe of return for a similar financial assef. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounfs previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an availableforsale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss in the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be relafed objectively
fo an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset af the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. In respect of
availableforsale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring affer the recognition of the

impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entfity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with substance of the contractual
arrangements entered info and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity insfruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, nef

of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity insfruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
info financial liabilities af fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, fo the nef carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading; or [ii) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part

of a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near ferm;

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages fogether and has a recent actual pattern

of shortterm profitaking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BR—F—NFF-A=1—HIFE
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. =E=Z:TER(4E)
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued) 3.22 2RI TE(E)
(i) Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) (i) EHEERRA(E)
Financial liabilities (Continued) THEEE)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) BARBEIERIEZNE R
BE#E&E)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with BAREEYER  EXErEME

any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’

line item.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, trade and other payables, long-term
payables, amounts due to related parties, bonds are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are freated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and

the contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract af the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and [ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised

in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.22 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor refains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues fo control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset fo the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group refains subsfantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NF1T - H=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following critical accounting judgement and key sources of

esfimation uncertainty are used in the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements.

(i)

Valuation of investment properties

DTZ, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued, values the Group's investment property portfolio
every six months. The fair values are based on market values,
being the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing

buyer and a willing seller in arms’ length transaction.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the
valuations are prepared by direct comparison approach
for investment properties under development and income
capitalisation approach for of completed invesiment properties,
considering the capitalisation rates, average unit market rent

and average markef unit price.

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants
actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease
commitments or likely fo be in occupation affer lefting vacant
accommodation, and the market's general perception of their
creditworthiness; the allocation of maintenance and insurance
responsibilities between the Group and the lessee; and the
remaining economic life of the property. When rent reviews
or lease renewals are pending with anficipated reversionary
increases, if is assumed that all nofices and where appropriate
counfer-nofices have been served validly and within the

appropriate time.

Investment property under construction or development is
valued by estimating the fair value of the completed investment
property and then deducting from that amount the esfimated
costs fo complete consfruction or development, financing costs

and a reasonable profit margin.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of non-
financial assets (other than investment properties, properties
under development, completed properties held for sale,
inventories and deferred tax assefs) may not be recoverable,
the assefs may be considered impaired and are tested for
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when the
asset’s recoverable amount has declined below its carrying
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In defermining
the recoverable amount which requires significant judgements,
the Group estimates the future cash flows to be derived from
continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset and applies

an appropriate discount rafe fo these future cash flows.

Write-down of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

Management performs a regular review on the carrying
amounts of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale. Based on management's review,
write-down of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale will be made when the esfimated net

realisable value has declined below the carmying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed properties
held for sale, management refers to prevailing market data
such as recent sales transactions, market survey reports
available from independent property valuers and internally
available information, as basis for evaluation. As of 31
December 2016, the amount of the writedown of completed

properties held for sale is RMB101,233,000.

In respect of properties under development, the estimate of
net realisable value requires the application of a risk-adjusted
discount rafe fo the estimated future cash flows to be derived
from these properties. These esfimates require judgement as
fo the anticipated sale prices by reference fo recent sales
fransactions in nearby locations, rate of new property sales,
markefing costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales) and the estimated costs to completion of properties, the

legal and regulatory framework and general market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—NFF+-_A=1+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2016, the Group has recognised deferred
tax assets as set out in note 32(ii). The ability to realise
the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which related tax benefits under the deferred tax assefs can
be utilised. In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are less than expected, a reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss for

the period in which such a reversal takes place.

The Group recognises deferred tax in respect of the changes
in fair value of the investment properties based on directors’
best estimate assuming future fax consequences through usage
of such properties for rental purpose, rather than through sale.
The final tax outcome could be different from the deferred tax
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
should the investment properties are subsequently disposed
by the Group, rather than consumed substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties by
leasing over time. In the event the investment properties are
being disposed, the Group may be liable to higher tax upon
disposal considering the impact of enferprise income fax and

land appreciation tax.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and seftlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and
the Group has not finalised its PRC land appreciafion taxes
calculation and payments with most of local tax authorities in
the PRC. The calculation of LAT are highly dependent on the
appropriafeness of the rafes used, which are determined by
the appreciation of land value. The appreciation of land value
is defermined with reference to proceeds of the properties less
the estimated deductible expenditures including the cost of
land use rights and all property development expenditures. The
Group esfimated the deductible expenditures according fo the
understanding of the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income fax expense and related income fax provisions in the

periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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4., CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(vi) Write-down of receivables
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Croup fakes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The allowance for doubtful debts is the difference
between the debt's camying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. The recognition of allowance
of doubtful debts requires judgement and estimation. If
difference occurs from re-estimation, it will influence the
carrying amount of debs in the re-estimation period. As of 31

December 2016, the amount of the write-down of receivables is
RMB6Q,265,000.

5. REVENUE

Sales of properties M HE
— Sales of completed properties held —HECBRIFEME
for sale
— Sales of completed investment properties ~ —$5E B EKIEEME
Rental income e
Hotel operation income B EE WA

Property management income and

other related services AR5

YEER WA R E MR

4.

FEFE T BUIRAVE X HE (45)

(vi) FEWERIE R

MEEBRESRE ~AEEEZER
REEMEM MG - RERBEAES
REEAGGTARRRETERENE
BZERE - MARERET Z/EL A
RiGEr - MEMEGEAREE  #HE
FEBF G HRERNEREE - &
E_T—FE+A=F+—08 " EBK
KIERMOR & 5 A AR 69,265,000
=

g

2016 2015
—B—REF —T A4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREET T

15,762,746 4,900,737
667,949 389,316
41,609 60,227
177,100 179,210
269,784 158,463
16,919,188 5,087,953
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6.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
e S

/ -

1 [y — =4 __ L =2
BE T NFF=—H=1—HIFFE

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has four reportable segments, as described below, which
are the Group's sfrategic business unifs. The strategic business unifs
offer different products and services, and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing strategies.
For each of the strategic business units, the chief operating decision
maker (the “"CODM"), Group's senior executive management,
reviews infernal management reports af least on a monthly basis. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's

reportable segments.

Sales of properties: this segment develops and sells residential
properties. Currently the Group's activities in this unit are carried
out in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu, Wuxi, Suzhou, Haikovu,
Nanchang, Taiyuan, Ningbo, Huangshan, Hangzhou, Xuzhou and
Nanning.

lease of properties: this segment leases commercial and residential
properties fo generate rental income and gain from the appreciation
in the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group’s
investment property portfolio is located in Shanghai, Suzhou,

Nanning and Wuxi.

Hotel and related services: this segment operates hotels and
service apartments fo generate accommodation service and related
income. Currently the Group's activities in this unit are carried out in

Shanghai, Suzhou and Huangshan.

Property management and other related services: this segment
provides property management services, project management
services, greenery construction services and other related services
to external customers and group companies. Currently the Group's
activities in this unit are carried out in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu,

Huangshan, Wuxi, Nanning, Suzhou, Haikou, Taiyuan and Xi'an.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s CODM monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment

on the following basis:

e —REFH

BWEBZRERATF

SRR

Xt - AEEA AR BERYE - B
AEE B R RBS E R TG BEAL o RAKMERTS BT
RETFHERMRY - ARBEE TR
M7 R & SRS - FULB B IR - SR RESIE
EBBEUmME  TBLERKE(KEEZ
BETREEAR) &P AZMAIERE
HE - AT ERARKE SR HEHDEH
B o

MEHE  AORBRMHEEEYE - B
RIASERLEE B - B3 & &
M-BR - -@mE KR BR &#WL -7
M RN R RS I BRI o

MERE A BHEREREEMEAE
HERE AR KA ETHENKES - B A
AEBNBREMFEALN LE - &M - &

BERREERS : A0 RS E MR
N AEEEBRBRABKRA - BATA
SER LA HFMEEAEILLEHEMOE
& o

YEEE R EMBRRE - ADERINEE
FEREERARREMXEERSE - HEEE
BR% - AREIER RIS A R E AL ABRA RS - B
MARERLES EBH B =W &
% M= &M 80 - KEREATEE L
BT

REHE D BRE RN E D BEETEIRE
B ARBZEERERRERUATERER
ERA BRI EE BERARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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6.

T NEF = f=+—HILFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets with the
exception of interests in associates and interests in joint ventures.
Segment liabilities include all current and non-current liabilities except

for bonds managed at corporate level.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to the revenue generated and the expenses incurred
by those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets affributable o those segments. Segment results
do not include share-based payments, net gain on disposal of equity
inferests in subsidiaries, share of profits (loss) of associate, share of
profits of joint ventures and any other fransactions managed af the

corporate level.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Sales of

properties

MEHE

RMB’000

AREFT

Revenue from external cusiomers HBEENE 16,430,695

Intersegment revenue Al -

Reporiable segment revenue QEEGE: 16,430,695

Reportable segment floss| profit BEE GRSy 63,774

Inferest income FlEMA 53,155

Interest expenses MBER (127,234)

Revaluation gains on investment RENZERYR

properties =

Depreciation and amorfisation WEREH 11,089

Reportable segment asses ABRRHBEE 47,182,765
Additions to non-current segment ENENHBIERD

assets during the year BE 2,123

Reportable segment licbilifies AERPPEE 33,577,952

6.

Lease of
properties

WEHE
RMB’000
ARBTFL

41,609

41,609

451,137
105
(4,845)

687,638

8,336,000

950,710
5,082,927

S ERERE ()
HWAEBEMERDRIERDEE (BB
SRRAERRAEDERBI) - HBER
BEFRERDRIERDEE(BaCERRE
ERZEHN) o

Wit & IS Ty 2 PR AT B iy BREE A 2 e )2
XA BEG cEERTESBIEmEL
E OEREZEDH - DHEELTEER
AT~ HEF AR W F 58 - [Bh
BanmEf (ER)  BEEEREEN R
EEMHEEEEEEZRS -

BE_F—E+-A=+—HI5E

Property

management

Hotel and and other

related related
services services Total

BER MEEER
EERE  HthERRE Bit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT N AREFT
177,100 269,784 16,919,188
- 110,064 110,064
177,100 379,848 17,029,252
27,928 82,996 625,835
1,617 15,697 70,574
(2,362) (647) (135,088)
- - 687,638
74,174 2,253 87,516
1,181,965 1,025,003 57,725,733
606 4,320 957,759
604,900 548,622 39,814,401
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. SEBIRE (M)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE—F-AF+-A=+—HILEE
Property
Hotel and management
Sales of lease of related and other
properties properties services  related services Total
BIER MEERR
WEHE WENE RER®  HtipRRS CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT
Revenue from external customers  AMNE R PULZ 5,290,053 60,227 179,210 158,463 5,687,953
Infer-segment revenue DERRE U - - - 139,605 139,605
Reportable segment revenue BLEE G 5,290,053 60,227 179,210 298,068 5,827,558
Reportable segment (loss) profit A ¥ 526 (/E518 )i F (746,187) 815,367 (39,566) (12,529) 17,085
Interest income FISUA 54,674 1,272 1,075 1,926 58,947
Interest expenses FI8EH (172,007) (14,456) (12,119) (532) (199, 114)
Revaluation gains on investment AV EB1HKE
properies - 1,115,249 - - 1,115,249
Depreciation and amorisation E R 24,132 - 66,769 4,198 95,009
Reportable segment assets AR HEE 41,687,254 7,246,000 3,062,789 909,108 52,905,151
Additions fo non-current segment R 0143 I ED
assefs during the year BE 2,679 798,067 7,180 8,983 816,909

Reportable segment liabilities ARRHHAR 27,934,631 4,418,293 2,765,456 554,718 35,673,098
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit,
assets and liabilities

Revenue g

Reportable segment revenue A R R 7 E
Elimination of infersegment revenue 53 B U as 21 8
Consolidated revenue e e
Profit i Fll

Reportable segment profit AR ¥R BB A
Elimination of intersegment profits 73 BB & A1) 8
Share-based payments sl

HET AR Wt F 8

Net gain on disposal of interests in

subsidiaries
Share of profit (loss) of associate FEAEEEE A RlE A (E518)
Share of proﬁfs of joint ventures JEMhE EREREN
Consolidated profit after income tax BT BEERE R
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets RO AEE
Elimination of intersegment receivables 5 BB e R TR ST 8
Elimination of infersegment investments 7 EBFER A HH
Inferests in an associate N ]
Interests in joint ventures BEMEER
Assets related o education operations HHEEHBENEE
(now discontinued) (BRRELE)
Consolidated fotal assets REEEMRR
Liabilities afg
Reportable segment liabilities AERHOABE
Elimination of intersegment payables 53 BB [E P SR 1 5H
Bonds &%
liabilities related o education operations HHEEHBRNEE
[now discontinued) (BERIEEE)
Consolidated total liabilities REBEEE

SEpERE (48)

o ERER S AR AR

HIEfRR

2016
—T-RE
RMB’000
ARETR

17,029,252
(110,064)

16,919,188

625,835
(7,498)

246,797
370
195,015

1,060,519

57,725,733
(3,471,762)
(690,067)

541,203

54,105,107

39,814,401
(3,471,762)
8,038,774

44,381,413

imF -

BEERAER

2015
—hEF
RMB’'000
ARET T

5,827,558
(139,605)

5,687,953

17,085

[410)

500
(1,007)
4

16,256

52,905,151
(2,904,613
(707,031)

296,187

396,260
49,985,954

35,673,098
(2,904,614)
9,243,928

285,434
42,297,846
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Geographical information

NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

6.

In view of the fact that the Group mainly operates in the PRC, no

geographical segment information is presented.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no single

customer confributes 10% or more of the total sales of the Group.

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Gains from financial assets/liabilities carried
at FVTPL
— Unrealised
— Realised

Forfeited deposits from customers

Government grants (nofe)

Net (loss) gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on re-measurement of joint ventures
fo acquisition date fair value in business
combinafion

Gain on disposal of an associate

Loss on disposal of other investment

Others

Note: The amount of government grant represents

7.

KEREAAREESIRNEBZN
EREE BEKE
—2ER

KEEFPHYRYGED

BT o8 B (Pl &)

ZE-AFEH BMEBERERAT

SERERE (4])
wEEE

A A SR B E B R R - R 2 50t
B A AR -

AHEEEFNEH

BE-T - AER-F-AF+-A=+—
AIEFE  #EE - EZEFAMAREAHE
#10%30A L -

H it Wz & B518

HEWE - BERERZ (BR)

Wt 8
EEBAPEaEbXEN
AERUBREHAREERZ
Yoz
HERE R EZ s
HEEMREZ A
HAl

the incentive subsidies

received from the PRC local district authorities for the business activities

carried out by the Group in the disfrict. There are no specific conditions

attached fo the grant.

2016 2015
—T—RE —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT

1561286 -
18,548 -
7,648 2,809
6,014 3,547
(118) 76,653

- 89,726

- 546

- (1,000)

9,591 4,149
197,969 176,430

BRE - BT W B & i A AR BN N ETT R
AN B B E i [ 4 R U E ey B R
B o %S5 BN BN RE I A AR
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BE2—FE—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 8. HiEERX
2016 2015
—¥-RE —Z-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Foreign exchange loss i 5 &8 811,487 642,980
Write-down of receivables FE UL SR IB RO 13,030 56,220
Donations B 249 600
Others Hi 14,415 29,361
Total &5 839,181 729,161
9. PERSONNEL EXPENSES 9. BIMX
2016 2015
—B-RE —E—1F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT
Wages and salaries TITEN#FHS 364,575 207,404
less: Capitalised in properties under B ERBYEHERE
development (82,137) (73,972)
282,438 223,432
Contributions to defined contribution plans AR E R RGTEIE R 62,083 57,911
less: Capitalised in properties under W BERPYERNEARME
development (18,544) [16,484)
43,539 41,427
Staff welfare, bonuses and other allowances B B@F) « fEAT &% Eofth ARG 21,073 20,070
less: Capitalised in properties under W BERPYENERE
development (1,880) (1,881)
19,193 18,189
Equityseffled sharebased payment expenses AR HE4EE HBL D S RISZ = 416
Total A&t 345,170 283,464




NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The following expenses are included in

results from operating expenses

Cost of properties sold
— Cost of completed properties held
for sale
— Cost of complefed investment

properties

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
- auditrelated services
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of land use rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Operafing lease charges
Gross rental income from
investment properties
Less: direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties that
generated rental income
during the year
direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties that
did not generate rental income

during the year

AT EREFALLRXH

ES LY

EHEMERA
—EERFEMRARA

—EERIREMENRA

22 Gl
—EBZIRTE

—FEZAAERY
W% - BELRBITE

T o PR

B E R

REHES

REREMENES

L UN

B AFEREEESWAN

REMERER
RERLB|ELEE

WA E YR
BREERX

ZE—REFR

10. SFEimFl

2016
—g—5%
RMB’000
ARBTT

12,512,047

668,348
13,180,395

2,470
300

86,683
788

45
29,698

41,609

(22,395)

(4,907)
14,307

BWEBZRERAA

2015
—T—RF
RMB'000
ARETT

3,671,681
389,316

4,060,997

2,660

94,266
/88
45
24,316

60,227

(27,008)

(1,272)
31,947
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11. FINANCE INCOME

Inferest income on bank deposits and loans
Inferest income on long-ferm receivable

measured at amortised cost

Finance income

12. FINANCE EXPENSES

Inferest expenses on bonds
Inferest expenses on interestbearing loans
Less: interest of bonds capitalised
(note 22 and note 23)
inferest of loans capitalised
(note 22 and note 23)

Net interest expenses on interest-bearing

loans and bonds

13.INCOME TAX EXPENSES

RITERRE R BWA

11.BERA

2016
—g—5%
RMB’000
ARSI

70,574

REEP AT B R BB MGREY

UESY PN
BERA

BHMEER

AERENRANEEM

B BNMERESNE
(fF5E22%23)

BRI EFF B

(MH5E225%23)

AFEERMERNESE

piis

() Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income represents:

Current tax (note 32(i))
In respect of the current year
In respect of prior years
Provision for land appreciation

fax for the year

BNHABLIE (PaE32(i))
RER

BEFE
REE D HIRETER

H

70,574

12. BUE A
2016
—B—RF

RMB’000
ARETR

531,937
481,948

(438,118)

(440,679)

135,088

13. Fifa#ib 32

2015
—Z-hF
RMB’'000
ARETT

22,131

36,816
58,947

2015
—T—AEF
RMB'000
ARETT

452,964
818,145

[431,493)

(640,502)

199,114

) SEESREEHERMBRME

Biig -

2016
ZB-RE
RMB’000
ARBTR

618,074
19,145

324,322
961,541

2015
—T—hF
RMB'000
ARETT

306,891
12,186

127,256
446,333
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13.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

() Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income represents:

(Continued)
Deferred tax (note 32(ii) EEFIA (P EE32(ii)
and (iii)) K(iii))
Origination and reversal of temporary  E R = R ELE K
differences o]
land appreciation tax T HIZET
Tofal income fax expenses PRSI BT S e RE

Enterprise income tax
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made (2015:
Nil) as the Group did not earn any income subject to Hong

Kong Profits Tax during the year.

Pursuant fo the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any

income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, the
Group’s main operating companies were subject to PRC

income tax at a rate of 25% (2015: 25%).

Land appreciation tax

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on AT effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on AT effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their affached facilities in the PRC is subject
fo LAT af progressive rafes ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, with an exemption provided for property
sales of ordinary residential properties if their appreciation
values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible
items. Land appreciation tax of RMB324,322,000 has
been included in profit or loss during the year (2015:
RMB127,256,000).

ZE-RFFH BBEBZRERAAF

13. ifaBiFZ (&)

(i)

FEERREEAERAGAE
Bitg - (&)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREET T

74,157 83,485
(10,846) 10,846
63,311 94,331
1,024,852 540,664
S

MEBNESHOWA - WA EIELE
BRIGREE( T —hF &)

REFASESMEBREZEEHRA
KRG AEBEBABRERNFSE
ENEBRELZREMMEN

RETBEGEMEHEL  AEEME
BEIER N RIGAE25%H B KB
REFERH(ZE—RF : 25%) °

TS ER

BRER—NNOF—A—BERZ(h
FEARAMNBE 1R EFREITIERBINIA
MR—NANAF-HA-+EBRERZ
CrpEE AR HANE £ 3 IR E TR B 1T (60
EHEARDRENR - HERE RN E
ZEELIMERE BT REMER
e 2 Fr B WA A LIS (R IZ T F 30%
260% ZEFREHMLIIBRED -
HERMEBREEFEZMEHE 2 EER
THEAB AT HBEIR B AR AR 20%
AR R - FARGTABET N LI
EE /AR 324,322,000 (=
T—RF : ARKE127,256,0007T) °
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13.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income represents:
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax (Continued)

Deferred land appreciation tax is levied on investment
properties which is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume all of the economic benefits through
sale. The realisation of deferred land appreciation tax
amounting fo RMB 10,846,000 has been included in profit or
loss during the year. (2015: a charge of RMB10,846,000).

The income tax expense for the year can be

13. Fi#
(i)

(i)

FHFZ (&)
SEHERREEANERAGAE
BiE - (&)

T EH (E)
REEBBLEEFEMBEENZEMN
EBRARNTENRENZAZS
BT HIREN o FAFFABRP
PR T HIRERERBERARE
10,846,000t (ZF—H4%F : XHA
[R#10,846,0007T) °

reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing
operations
Less: Current land appreciation tax

(note 32(i))

Deferred land appreciation tax

Income tax expense calculated
at 25% (2015: 25%)
Non-deductible expenses,
net of nonaxable income
Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Under provision in prior years

Current land appreciation tax

Deferred land appreciation tax

Total

R R T
BBLAT
¢ B M B (MR 32)

RAE 4 3 IR (E T

BRE25%(ZF—FF : 25%)
SHEMATERAX
AN S (BB B A

B ON)
KRB T A E
BAEFERERL

BIEAL IR (E R
R L M IR(ER

2t

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3.11

the Group has not recognised deferred fax assets in respect of

cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries for the year as it is

not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses

can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction

and entity.

FERFREBA X EE i A HER
/11
2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETTT
2,085,371 556,920
(324,322) (127,256)
10,846 (10,846)
1,771,895 418,818
442,973 104,705
144,099 55,529
105,159 230,142
19,145 12,186
711,376 402,562
324,322 127,256
(10,846) 10,846
1,024,852 540,664
BRIEMTES. VIS A2 ET R - AR

By F AR AR RS @R RDA
R & B R BUS R SR B AR B it A A K

HAIBANER  MAREEFAR
FLRFTHIABBERRETHARE °
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended
31 December 2016

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Jun

Mr. Hou Guangjun

Mr. Wy Zhengkui

Mr. You Defeng

Mr. Wang Weixion
Ms. Wang Xuling

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong

Total

HECF— &
+ZB=t-BLEE

hiTES

RERE

FXERE
REERE
EREE
TEERE
ThgEat

BUkHTES

FEALE
ANEE(RTEL)
BRSEE

it

Directors’

Fee

Esie
RMB’000

ARBFT

323
KyX}
323

969

Basic
salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
F-2.X 7
2R REbER
RMB’000
ARETT

2,618
2,072

1,604

323
1,605

8,222

ZE—REFR

14. E5HIS
Contributions
to retirement
benefit

schemes Bonus
BIER

B T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

83 467

83 258

83 249

15 -

98 249

362 1,223

B EBIERARAR
Share-based

payment Total
Rrfysift a3
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
- 3,168
- 2413
- 1,936
- 338
- 1,952
- 323
- 323
- 323
= 10,776

189
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14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14. EEM2(4E)
(Continued)
Basic
salories, Contributions
allowances fo refirement
Directors' and other benefit Sharebosed

Fee benefils schemes Bonus payment Total

E55e RINER
BT EMRAMET IR TeiL RiAz At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT

For the year ended BE-®-1%
31 December 2015 tZB=+-BLEEE

Executive Directors yirEs

Mr. Chen Jun RELE - 3,008 80 11 - 3,199
Mr. Hou Guangjun ERERE - 2,042 80 81 - 2203
Mr. Wu Zhengkui REERE - - - - - -
Mr. You Defeng EELs - 1,633 80 74 490 2277
Mr. Wang Weixion TEELE - 303 14 - - 317
Ms. Wang Xuling ThERT - 1,633 94 74 481 2,282

Independent Non-Executive BiukamEs

Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry FEHRE 303 - - - - 303
N Fong Wo, Felix, JP FREE (AT 303 - - - - 303
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BEESRE 303 - - - _ 303
Total ait 909 8,619 348 340 971 11,187
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FAREBEEEA T ETHRABREREENR
execufive waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration during both Z(EIF N B ©

years.
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REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—FE—NF1_A=+—HIFE

15. EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year

ended 31 December 2016 comprise four directors of the Company

(2015: four), whose remuneration is disclosed in note 14. Details of

remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid individuals of the

Group are as follows:

Basic salary, allowances and other benefits

The emoluments of above individual are

within the following band:

Hong Kong Dollar
2,500,001-3,000,000

16.DIVIDENDS

ZE—REFR

15. EE#M&

BWEBZRERAA

AEBBE—ZT—A"F+-_A=t—HLHF
ENAERSHFMALBREARAMNA(Z
T-HF:HR)ES HBMESCORME4
WEE o MANEEE RS E A ST BY

SHBNT
2016
=k S
RMB’000
AR%BFR
EAHS - R R 2,448
SEFMALOMEN T
AT -
7T
2,500,001-3,000,000 1
16. 8

The Board of Directors has resolved to propose a 2016 final
dividend of HKDO.1 per ordinary share. Such dividend is to be
approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (For the year ended 31 December 2015: Nil).

17.EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

From continuing operations

From discontinued operations
Total basic eamings per share

Diluted eamings per share

From continuing operations

From discontinued operations

Total diluted earnings per share

2015
—E-RE
RMB'O00
ARET T

2,576

EXCRBEBRN T NFREAKE
FEREBEKO BT - ZREEFEREK
RBFA G LRIRRILE(BRE_F—H
FHA=1t—RIFE: 8 -

17. i Z&F)
2016
—B—RE
RMB Yuan
per share
BRARERT
BREARER]
ARG EE 0.33
KB RIS 0.06
BREARET 5 0.39
shibe vy
REFSEGEET 0.33
RE R IEREER 0.06
BRESER N B 0.39

2015
—T—HEF
RMB Yuan

per share
BBRARET

0.08

0.08

0.08

0.08
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

17.EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 17. BIREBFI(E)
17.1 Basic earnings per share 17.1 BRREXRT

The eamnings and weighed average number of ordinary shares AESRERRFFANEN L@

used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as PE NS

follows:

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZT—HRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARETTT
Earnings used in the calculation of FFEERERZENFAR

basic earnings per share BF 1,112,543 170,006
Distribution related to perpetual securities 5k A 78 % 73k (20,141) -
Profit for the year from discontinued s EBRERAFIFTAKNRE

operations used in the calculation I E R FER

of basic eamings per share (180,390) (7,975)
Earnings used in the calculation of FHER BB EERN

basic earnings per share from BREARRNPTANET

continuing operations 912,012 162,031

2016 2015
k- bt 3 —FAF
000 ‘000
Tz TR
Weighted average number of LB AR Y hNEE g 21

ordinary shares 2,770,980 2,721,728
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

17.EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
17.2 Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
earnings used in calculation of diluted earnings and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
based on the assumption that all dilutive potential ordinary

shares are converted as follows:

FHERBBEREEBDN
BRERBNFAANET

Earnings used in the calculation of
basic earnings per share from
confinuing operations

pol ESIE S b il 0k /NE]
BB AT

Profit atfributable fo owners of the
Company allocated fo convertible
preference shares

SAESRESERTIPTARE
BRI ST F R A

Profit for the year from discontinued
operations used in the calculafion of

diluted eamings per share

FHERBBEREEBDN
SRE SR TR

Earnings used in the calculation of

diluted eamings per share from

confinuing operations 2
Weighted average number of BT
ordinary shares [basic) (HEA)

Effect of convertible preference shares

AT IRE SRR A R4
Effect of Share Award Scheme g

Bein SRR T 8T &
B dn ) pne 19 21
(#5%)

Weighted average number of
shares (diluted)

ZE—NEFH

17. Bix&FI(E)
17.2 Siz#ERF
SR FRN TR EEREE R
R E SR BRI B A R A
T PR 20 1) B 89T 3 AR Y DA

B ET -

2016
—F-RF
RMB’000
ARBTR

912,012

912,012

2016
—F—RE
‘000

TFix

2,770,980

2,770,980

BWEBZRERAA

2015
—T—RF
RMB'000
ARETT

162,031

50,234

(2,357)

209,908

2015

2,097,268
619,702
4,758

2,721,728
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BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% « BER:R
Fixtures,
Leasehold Motor fitings &  Construction
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total
HE RE K@
#F higReE e Rkl ERIE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Cost 7%
Balance af 1 January 2015 RIE-RE-A-REEH 1513217 72,902 36,048 359,676 83,536 2,065,379
Additon/Adjusimens RE/ W% (8,948 3,061 10714 48924 6,535 61,186
Addiion through business combination  EBEEAMARE - - 182 452 - 634
Transter fo completed propertes held ~ BRZERRFENE
for sale (note 24) (Brrsk4) 3,809 - - - - (3,809)
Disposals g3 (32,105) - (227) 813) - (33,145
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-E-1%
TZA=t-ReEH 1,468,355 76,863 46717 408,239 90,071 2,090,245
Addition NE - 497 1,387 5,165 58,045 65,094
Disposal of subsidiories HEFRT (191,134) - - (74,969) (147,885 (413988
Disposals 3 - - [958) (583) - (1,541
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—7F
TZA=T-REH 1,277,221 77,360 47146 337,852 231 1739810
Depreciation &
Balonce ot 1 January 2015 RZE-RE-F-BHEsH 200797 35,162 26,464 174,106 - 445529
Charge for the year FRTE 58,002 8,567 5,584 39,294 - 111447
Transfer fo completed properes BETERRTENE
held for sale [Note 24] (Frst4) (1177) - - - - 1,177)
Disposals 2 (11,475 - (204 (781] - (12,460
Balance at 31 December 2015 R_ZE-1F
TZA=T-A0ER 255,147 43729 31,844 212,619 - 543,339
Charge for the year ENE 47577 8,621 7726 25,622 - 89,546
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFAH (125,245) - - 48,996 - (174,241
Disposals = - - (574 (501) - (1,073)
Bolance at 31 December 2016 RIE—1E
T-A=+-RNEH 177 479 52,350 38,996 188,744 - 457 569
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2015 AZE-RF+ZA=1—A 1,213,208 33,134 14,873 195,620 90,071 1,546,906
At 31 December 2016 R-E-RET-A=+-R 1,099,742 25,010 8,150 149,108 231 1,282,241
(i) All buildings owned by the Group are located in the PRC. (i) REBHEENEETIUNPE o
[i)  As at 31 December 2016, property, plant and equipment i) R=F—ANEx=H=+—H -
with a fotal carrying value of RMB404,000,000 (201 5: AEEBEEREEEEARK
RMB1,033,690,000) were pledged as collateral for the 404,000,000t (ZE—RHF : AR
Group's borrowings. #1,033,690,0007T) BV ZE - BB K

RBERASBEERENERS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

Balance af 1 January

Amortisation
Balance at 1 January

Amortisation chorge for the year
Balance at 31 December

Carrying amounts

Balance at 31 December

Useful life for amortisation

D%
R—H—Bm&R
e

R—HA— Bk
FREHER

Rt A=+T—B8&R

AREE

R+ B=+—BH&ER

BHmI R FE S

Infangible assefs represent contractor qualification in PRC, for own use

purpose.

20.LAND USE RIGHTS

Cost
Balance at 1 January

Disposal of subsidiaries
Balance at 31 December

Amortisation
Balance at 1 January
Amortisation charge for the year

Disposal of subsidiaries
Balance af 31 December

Carrying amounts

Balance at 31 December

Useful life for amortisation

5% 3

R—RA— B8R
HEFAT]

R+ B=+—BH&ER
e

WR—HA— Bk
FREHRAX
HEFAR

Bt A=+—B8&R
AREE

Rt A=+—Br&R

B SH Rl R

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring rights to use

land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties.

19. B EE

2016 2015
—ET—RE —T—FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBFT

1,700 1,700

314 269
45 45
359 314

1,341 1,386

38 years 38 years
384 384

EVEER/HERNTRARHES

20. 1 it fE A4
2016 2015
—B-RE —“E-0F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETIT
95,133 ?5,133
(64,283) -
30,850 95,133
20,395 18,209
1,020 2,186
(15,173) -
6,242 20,395
24,608 74,738
39-42 years 39-42 years
39-421% 39424

3k FR A HE W B o A I R O A E TR
RIE - 2EMUATE - BIEERYE -
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BE_T—NF1T-_A=1—HIFE

21.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(i

Other financial assets

Avudilable for sale investments

Equity (i)

Financial assets carried at FVTPL

Held for Trodimg derivatives that are not
designated in hedge accounting

relationship

Loans
loans fo related parties [note 46.3)

Loans to other entities

Current

Non-current

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at FVTPL

Held for trading derivatives that are not

Hit e BEE

TR ERE

el

EAREEIIRI AE 0 2 MEE

W IR PR RARIEER
FIEEBETAETA

=74
FREATEHER(FFE46.3)
QENR-§ L) oA

YinE2)

FRE

Hit e RAaE
BAREEIRIR A 2B E
W RSP BR IR ER

designated in hedge accounting FHEBEETATA

relationship
The Group holds the interest on the following (i)
companies:

Shanghai Jianbang Dining Limited
Company

Hainan Tianhong Jive Real Estate

Co., lid ('Tianhong Real Estate’)

LPEEBERERDQR]

BRIRMEXEFEWEREBRAR
([REbERE])

Since the above available for sale investments do not have

a quoted market price in an active market and the fair value

cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost.

21. Hft&REE

2016 2015
—®—»& T84
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR  ARETE
174,567 174,567
485,829 -
380,230 100,000
= 43,000
1,040,626 317,567
866,059 143,000
174,567 174,567
329,543 -

FEERTIABFAER

2016 2015
—E—REF =T R
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

1,800 1,800

172,767 172,767
174,567 174,567

R EA AR EREY EIEEN S
WE BARBETEAFELE
B IR ANFTE ©
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BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties under development
Balance af 1 January

Cost capitalised

Transfer to completed investment properties
Net increase in fair value recognised

in profit and loss

Balance at 31 December

Inferest capitalisation included in the above:

Balance at 1 January
Cost capitalised (note 12)

Transfer to completed investment properties
Balance af 31 December

Completed investment properties

Balance af 1 January

Transfer from investment properties under
development

Transfer to cost of sales

Net increase in fair value recognised

in profit and loss

Balance at 31 December

ZE—NEFH
22. 1 EME
2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARETRT
BRPIEEYE
R—A—H®OES 5,856,000
MARE R 950,710
EREEENIEEME (1,982,000)
iR ER AR BEEN
FRE 145,290
R+ A=Z+—H04EH 4,970,000
B ERBEARL
R—A—H®ES 272,674
BARE AR (FIFET12) 266,421
BRSO ENITEYE (43,521)
R+ A=+—H0N%&H% 495,574
BEKIEEME
R—A—H&&EH 1,390,000
HEgEEPIREME
1,982,000
B S HE N (668,348)
FEEERN AR EEGINFRE
542,348
Rt A=1+—H8&&% 3,246,000
8,216,000

BWEBZRERAA

2015
—T—RF
RMB'000
ARETT

3,994,000
798,067

1,063,933
5,856,000

272,674

272,674

1,728,000

(389,316)

51,316
1,390,000
7,246,000
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4

22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

22.1 Fair value measurement of the Group 's investment

ar ended 31 December 2016
E—NFF = A=1+—HIFE

Q

B

22. R EME(E)
22.1 FEEREMENARBEENE

properties

The fair value of the Group's investment property as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 has been arrived af
on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates
by DTZ, independent valuers not related to the Group. DTZ
has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The fair values
of investment properties under development are defermined
using direct comparison approach, which are amount to
RMB4,970,000,000 (2015: RMB5,895,000,000), which
assumes sale of each of the properties in its existing state
by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. The completed investment
properties which are amount to RMB3,246,000,000 (2015:
RMBT,351,000,000), are valued by income capitalisation
approach by capitalising the net rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary

income potential of the respective properties.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during

the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
investment properties measured at the end of the reporfing
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the level 3 fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference fo the observability and significance

of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

AEBR_F—R"F+-_HA=1+—H
R-_ZF—hE+-_A=1+—HNEKE
YR D R BB TR b BN 5% (B 3 %
BEVE Y HEMBEBRITNAEE B
ETNHESEEEN - BRRT
AN ERLEETHRMGEEZS
EER AT ERBGERLSR -
8 AARK4970,000,0007T (=
T—HF : AR% 5895000000
T ERPKREMERIABERER
BERUEBZEE ETPRIEEVE
BRREELELREMTSHREN
TEURHEERS - 2BAARK
3,246,000,0007t(ZE—H%F : AR
#1,351,000,00070) BV E 2RI E 1)
ERBWABERMOEFNE - Z7EE
BREREEP YR BE WA FRE
BABENERRSMEETATELERR
WAEHEE HIRETE -

FR - BERMHTESESE -

FEREMELABEMNS - KE
MEREREERERSE -

TREJNFAEERRERRREFE
EEGENRENERIA(EE A
RABERERY SRS ERE 35
RARBEAEMAEZAABESF=
BREFETOE ARBEEMFR
BB IRTE2Z AT HERM AT A
BABBMATBREREREMESE
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BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

ZE-RFFH BMEBERERAT

22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 22. 5 E&ME ()

22.1 Fair value measurement of the Group s investment 22.1
properties (Continued)
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group's investment
properties are measured at level 3 category of fair value
measurement and during the year ended 31 December 2016,

there were no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Valuation
Techniques Key input
fEER A FEHABIR
Investment properties
BEME
Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate
R A3, approach BERNEx
WAEARE
Average unit market
rent per month
FAYHELMSEE
Direct comparison Average market unit price
approach BRI TIHER
BEELEVA

Notes: Descriptions of the sensitivity in unobservable inputs and

interrelationship:

(i) The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to
the unobservable input that a lower factor will result in @

higher fair value.

(i) The fair value measurement is positively correlated fo the
unobservable input that a higher factor will result in a

higher fair value.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not obtained the
State-owned Land Use Rights Cerfificate for the investment
properties, which are amounted to RMB 109,000,000 (2015:
RMB108,000,000).

As at 31 December 2016, investment properties with
a total carrying value of RMB860,000,000 (2015:
RMB743,000,000) were pledged as collateral for the

Group's borrowings.

AEEREMENAAREBEE
(48)
R-BE—RER_ZE—AFE+_-A
=+—08  AEBWNREVEEAR
BEEEINE=ZBXAE #HZE
—E—X&E+-_F=+—HItFE -
FE=ERIEE AL o

Range Notes
§EE Pt
5%9% (i)

RMB29 — RMB289 (i)
per sq.m per month

BASFIHAARE29T

EANRK289T
RMB12,000 - RMB81,000 i)
per sq.m

BFHARARE12,0007T
= AR¥81,0007T

FYRE + £ B0 A B BURE BT B (5
fi

0) RABEFEETARER
ABIEZ2A8HE - R
g AnEERS -

i) ARBEFAEETTEHRS
ABERZIERR - AR

= AAEE-S -

RZZE—RF+ZR=+—H &%
B3 REVS A L R AR E
M EREBARK109,000,0007T (=
Z—hF : AR#¥108,000,0007T) °

RZE—ARF+=-_A=+—8 "
AEBEHEEBEARE
860,000,000t (ZFE—H%F : AR
#743,000,0007T ) K% & #) F
ERAEEEENERR
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HE—T—NF+—A=1—HIFE

23.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. ERhiE
2016 2015
—B—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBETFTT
Cost D%
Balance at 1 January R—H— Rk 24,304,385 22,089,640
Cost capitalised KAE AL 12,045,124 7,047 678
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEF A - 2,152,327
Transfer to completed properties EREEEK
held for sale (note 24) FEME(ME24) (17,338,777) (6,985,260)
Balance at 31 December Rt A=1+—HB84&H 19,010,732 24,304,385
Properties under development expected to be  FBHAASH LA T BRI 22K AY
complefed: BRPYE
— within twelve months —+=—@EAR 3,928,278 8,716,805
— beyond twelve months —+=@A% 15,082,454 15,587,580
Interest capitalisation included in the above: B &t A _L#llTE B M E R EFE ¢
Balance at 1 January W— A — B8 1,482,565 685,120
Cost capitalised (note 12) KAE AL (HIEE12) 612,376 799,321
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi TR R = 56,884
Transfer fo complefted properties HRECD BN EE
held for sale LY/ ES (1,009,217) (58,760)
Balance at 31 December Rt A=1+—H&% 1,085,724 1,482,565
All properties under development are located in the PRC. FAERTYFEBRNFE
The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings and bonds is BERESOINETHER LR AL.54%(=
4.54% (2015: 4.92%). T—FF : 4.92%) °
As at 31 December 2016, properties under development of RZZFE—R"E+_A=+—H ' x&EEE
approximately RMB6, 194,409,000 (2015: RMB5,916,393,000) EHBEHARES 194,409,000 (==F
were pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings. —hF : AR¥5016,393,0007T) K3 E

FMRIERARBERENERM -
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BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

24.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR

SALE

Cost
Balance at 1 January
Transfer from properties under
development (nofe 23)
Transfer from properties, plants and
equipments [nofe 18)

Transfer to cost of sales
Balance at 31 December

Writedown of completed properties
held for sale:
Balance af 1 January

Additions

Transfer to cost of sales

Balance at 31 December

ZE-AFEH BMEBERERAT

24, EERIFEME
2016 2015
ZE—REF —T—R&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTIT
BN
W—H— B8k 5,097,866 1,786,382
EEREBREDYE
(FF5E23) 17,338,777 6,985,260
HEEYE  BELEE
(FFzE18) - 2,632
BB GHE AR (12,627,969) (3,676,408
W+ A=1t—Bt&H%H 9,808,674 5,097,866
OB 2R T EME
W—A— B4 (212,263) (58,959
RNE (4,892) (158,031)
T JHER R 115,922 4,727
W+ A=1t—B&H% (101,233) (212,263)
9,707,441 4,885,603

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, completed properties held for sale of
approximately RMB397,900,000 (2015: RMB150,469,000) were

pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings.

A EERFEMRBUNFTE -

RZB—RE+ZA=+—0 FEEEE
REELHAREE397,900,000T(=ZFE—1
& AR¥150,469,0007T) BB K&
MEERAEBEENERS o
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BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

BRAF

ZET=FAAZTHEA

25.SUBSIDIARIES 25.F AT
25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of 25.1 AEHARA AT EANFATES
the reporting period are as follows. R e
Proportion of
Place and  ownership interest and
Registered date of  voting power held by
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Capital incorporation the Group
FRENHRERF
FAEEH TEEH BT MR BE RIRHELLBI

2016 2015

“E-"&E —T-nf

SPG Invesiment lid. Invesiment holding Shl British Virgin lslands, 100% 100%
RERR 1% 2 Morch 2004
RBRAHE -
“EERF=A-A

Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Co., lid. ~ Property development, USDé7,670,000 the PRC, 98.24% 08.24%
LEFEELE (£B) ERAR sales and lease 67,670,000% T 25 August 1998
FHERE HEREE e
“AANENAZTEH

Shanghai SPG Property Senvice Co., lid.  Property management services RMBS5,000,000 the PRC, 98.42% 08.42%
HRERNERBERAR MEERRE ARE5,000,0007 17 January 2001
i
“EEF-AttH

Shanghai SPG Hotel Development Hotel operation, property RMB405,500,000 the PRC, 98.24% 08.24%
Co., ltd. development, scles AE®405,500,0007 1 December 2006
BB EEERERAR and lease HE
BESE  RHERE “EERET-A-H

HEREE

Shanghai Oriental Combridge Property — Property development, RMB650,000,000 e PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., Lid. sales and lease AE#650,000,0007 26 September 2002
FERARBRMERRARRA EHERE  HEREE -
“FEFNACTAA

Shanghai Lishui Greenery Ecology Landscape construction RMB10,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Engineering Co., lid. project AE#10,000,0007T 7 November 2003
FEBKEESI TIRERAR EZEE HE
“ER=F+-AtA

Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge Property Property development and RIMB280,000,000 he PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., Lid. sales AR%280,000,0007 24 September 2003
LERERRLBRERE FHEFRENHE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

25. FAE (§)
25.1 REEWAARDNEAT A RS
0 o ()

the reporting period are as follows. [Continued)

Proportion of

Place and  ownership interest and
Registered date of  voting power held by
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Capital incorporation the Group
FREMARERF
FAEEH TEEH A& MR A RARLH
2016 2015
Z8-7E ZF-RF
Huangshan SPG Property Development  Hotel development and RMB270,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ld, operation AR#270,000,0007 7 January 2004
ElEEF SEHEERARAR BEREREE hE
“ZZINE-A+A
Huangshan Hiddenfigger Club Property management services RMB1,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Management Co., lid. MEEERE AR#1,000,0007T 7 July 2009
BB EERERER AR hE
“EENFLRLH
Kunming SPG Land Development Property development, RMB142,500,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd. sales and lease AR#142,500,0007 9 November 2006
EREREHERERAR FHERE HEREE Gl
“EZ5E+-ANA
Kunming SPG Grand City Property development, USD40,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., Lid sales and lease 40,000,000%7 15 June 2007
RS I EHERRERAA BHERE  HEREE Gl
“ZZAFRATER
Suzhou Runjian Property Co., lid. Property development, RMB300,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
BN ERELERAR scles and lease AR%300,000,0007 28 September 2007
BHERE  HERHEE M
“ZZEAAZT\R
Suzhou SPG Property Management Hotel Operations, Property RMB500,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., lid. management services AR#500,0007 5 March 2009
#NEENERBERAT BEZE  NEERRH mE
—ZTNE=ATH
Wuxi Guosheng Property Development  Property development, HKD1,196,530,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd. sales and lease 1,196,530,000%7¢ 2 November 2007
EREREERYERAR BHERE BEREE hE

—22LFt-AR



204  GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—T—NF+—A=1—HIFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

25. F AT (4E)
25.1 RBEHRARARNENFRARFER
IR o ()

the reporting period are as follows. (Continued)

Proportion of

Place and  ownership interest and
Registered date of  voting power held by
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Capital incorporation the Group
FRENHRERF
FAEEH TEEH EMEF MR A R
2016 2015
—B-7E _T-1f
Waxi Shenglian Property Development Property development, HKD1,105,000,000 e PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd. sales and lease 1,105,000,00087T 2 November 2007
EREBEERYERLA FHERS #EREE E
“BRLET-ACH
Hainan Jiangjo Property Co. lid. Property development, RMB115,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
BEREEEERAT sales and lease ARE115,000,000T 4 January 2008
FHERE  HERAE i
—TT\$-AEA
Hubei Huazhong Constructing Co., lid. ~ Consfruction and decoration RMB100,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
B ETREENEREA AR senvices AR#100,000,0007 21 May 2009
REREERE -
“ERNFLACTA
Changshu SPG Land Development Property development, RMB200,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., lid. sales and lease AR#200,000,0007 12 July 2007
ERRBREREARAN EHERE  HEREE -
“TRLFEATCR
Changshu SPG Real Estate Development  Property development, RMB550,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., lid. sales and lease AR#550,000,0007 24 October 2007
B EEERAA FHEFRE HEREE HE
“EEETAZ IR
Shanxi SPG land Development Co., lid.  Property development, USD20,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
AR ENERERAR sales and lease 20,000,000%7 27 August 2009
FHEFRS HEREE HE
“EENENA-TLA
Ningbo SPG Cicheng Property Property development, RMB600,000,000 e PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., lid. sales and lease AR%600,000,0007 21 March 2011
ERERENENERRERAA FHERS #EREE E

—E—%=f=1-H
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are as follows. [Continued)

Name of subsidiary

FAT4R

Hangzhou Tuojiong Zhiye Co., Lid.
MIRTIEXERAR

Haikou Hongxiang Property Co. Lid
BORBAESERAR

Shanghai Dackun Investment
Management Co., lid
LBEREEERARAT

Shanghai He Moo Property Co., Lid
LEARFHELRERA

Shanghai Xingj Invesiment Management
Co., lid ['Shanghai Xingi'|
AR EERERRAR
(I Lig#i )

Nonning Greenland Yingkai Invesiment
Co., lid
HERAEREERAR

Success Yield Group Limited
RBEEERAT

Principal activity

TERH

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERY  HERHE

Property development,
soles and lease

FHERE HEREE

|nvesﬂng and consuhmg

RERH#A

Property development,
scles and lease

FHERY  HERAS

Property development,
soles and lease

FHERY  HERAE

Properly development,
sales and lease

FHERY  HERAE

Investment of subsidiaries

REFLF

25.

Registered
Capital

dfEs

USD382,000,000
582,000,000%7

RMB600,000,000
AR8600,000,0007

RMB10,000,000
AE10,000,0007T

RMB630,000,000
ARH#630,000,0007

RMB30,000,000
AR#30,000,0007T

RMB558,500,000
ARH558,500,0007T

usSD200
200%7

ZE—NEFH

% \_J('I‘E)

25.1 RREHRER

T e (8)

Place and
date of
incorporation

st IR B 5

the PRC,

22 July 2013

e
“E-ZHtA-t7H

the PRC,
27 November 2013

HE
ZE-=E+—FZTtH

the PRC,

9 June 2015

HE
“Z-nERANA

the PRC,
11 December 2013

R
“§-=F+-A{+-H

the PRC,

22 October 2013

HE
S S B =

the PRC

1 November 2013
HE

“F-=%+-A-H

the BV,

6 May 2011
BERUES
—2——5HARA

BWEBZRERAA

AINEAFAAFE

Proportion of
ownership interest and
voting power held by
the Group
FREMARERF
RARLH

2016 2015
%5 _T-1f

50% 50%
(Note i) (Note i
(K &Ei) (HizE)

100% 100%
100% 100%
50% 50%
(Note i) (Note i

(it &) (FitzED

50% 50%
(Note i) (Note i
(M=) (Bi3H)

100% 100%
50% 50%
(Note i) (Note i

(R &) (FEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

25. F AT (4E)
25.1 RBEHRARARNENFRARFER
IR o ()

the reporting period are as follows. (Continued)

Proportion of

Place and  ownership interest and
Registered date of  voting power held by
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Capital incorporation the Group
FEENBFERF
FATEH TRER EMEF AEMAILHER B RIRHELLBI

2016 2015

- C"T-nf

Xubao Co., lid "Xu Bao BVI') Investment of subsidiaries HKD? the BVI, 50% 50%

JEEERAR ( [MEEBVI] ) REFRA 28T 6 September 2012 (Note i) (Note i

EERAEE GED) ik
ZT-ZFAAAA

Yuzhou Nanbu Property Co., Lid Property development, USD50,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
NP EREERAR sales and lease 50,000,000% 7t 23 Jonuary 2014
FHERE HEREE i
“T-mE-A-t=A

Xuzhou Mingzhi Property Co., lid Property development, HKD1,414,000,000 the PRC, 50% 50%

N EEREREERAR sales and lease 1,414,000,000 7 3 March 2014 (Note i) [Note )

EHERE  HEREE i (Wt 2E0) (Bits)
“Z-MF=F=H

Shanghai Xiangxuan Zhive Co., Lid Property development, RMB20,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
LEIHEXARAA sales and lease AR#20,000,0007T 17 Jonuary 2014
EHERE  HEREE B
“Z-mE-A++A

Greenland [Kunming) Property Co., lid Property development, RMBS517,272,222 the PRC, 55% 55%
('Greenland Kunming') sales and lease AR¥517,272,2221T 17 December 2012
B EE(ER)EXERAT BHERL - HEREE HE
([spEH ) “F-ZFt-RTLA

Greenland (Kunming Wouhua) Property development, RMB528,000,000 e PRC, 55% 55%
Development Co., lid sales and lease AR%528,000,0007 19 December 2012
FnEE(RALE)FERE FHERS #EREE E
BRAT “E-ZFt-AthA

Shanghai Wali Property Co., Lid Property development, RMB6,000,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
TEREBEARAF sales and lease ARE6,000,000,0007 21 February 2014
FHERE HEREE i

—E-ME-A-1+-8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are as follows. [Continued)

25.

Name of subsidiary

FAT4R

Nonning Greenland Hongkai Properly

Co., lid
HEGHEEEXERAT

Haikou Wuyuan Property Co., ltd

BN TIRERERAR

Hainan Tionhongjiye Shiye Co., Lid

['Tianhong Shiye'|
BERIEFERERAR
([RBEE])

Hainan Tionhongi\'ye Investment Co., Ltd

['Tianhong Investent'|
BERLEEREERAT
([RERE))

Nanning Greenland Xinyuan Property

Co., ltd
HEGHEREEERAF

Suzhou Lyjie Property Co., lid
FMEABEARAR

Shanghai Greenland Financial

Information Services Co., Lid

e eRERREERAT

Principal activity

TERH

Properly development,
sales and lease

FHERY  HERAE

Property development,
sales and lease

FHERY  HERAE

Property development,
soles and lease

NxER  HERAE

Property development,
scles and lease

MERE  HEREE

Property development,
sales and lease

NERE  HERAE

Property development,
soles and lease

NER%  HERAE

Financing
BE

Registered
Capital

dfEs

HKD700,000,000
700,000,000 7

RMB200,000,000
AR200,000,0007

RMB100,000,000
AR100,000,0007

RMB180,000,000
AR#180,000,0007T

RMB300,000,000
AR#300,000,0007T

USD2,250,000,000
2,250,000,000% 7t

RMB100,000,000
ARH100,000,0007T

ZE—NEFH

FAE(4)

25.1 RREHRER

T e (8)

Place and
date of
incorporation

st IR B 5

the PRC,

20 May 2014

e
“Z-PERAZTH

the PRC,

26 January 2014

wE
“E-ME-R-tRH

the PRC,

21 December 2009

HE
ZEENETZAZTH

the PRC,.

12 January 2010
e
“E-Z2F-A+ZH

the PRC,

27 November 2014

HE
“E-mEt-AZTtH

the PRC,

22 October 2015

HE
ZE-RETAZTZH

e PRC,

23 January 2015

mE
“F-nf-A-t=A

BWEBZRERAA

AINEAFAAFE

Proportion of

ownership interest and
voting power held by
the Group
FREMARERF
RARLH
2016 2015
Z§-7E "F-1F
100% 100%
100% 100%
50.1% 50.1%
(Note i) (Note i
(Bt &£1) (Fizh)
50.1% 50.1%
(Note i) [Note i|
(Bt &) (Fits)
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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ar ended 31 December 2016
BE—_FT—NFF-_HA=+—HIFE

m
S}

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are as follows. (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

FATEH

Nanchang Shenyang Property Co., Lid
HERRERERAT

Guangxi Greenland Xingtie Property
Co., ltd
BRERAERERAR

Guangx Greenland Xintie Property
Co., lid 'Guangxi Xintie'|

ERSNEHELERAT
([EEEE))

Suzhou lvying Property Co., lid
EMERERERAT

Guangxi Greenland Hengrun
Property Deve\opmenl Co., ltd
ERSHEREFERERAT

Principal activity

TERH

Property development,
sales and lease

WERE - HERHE

Property development,
sales and lease

NRER HEREE

Property development,
sales ond lease

NxER  HEREE

Property development,
soles and lease

WERE  HERHEE

Property development,

sales and lease

WERE  HEREE

25. F A5 (&)

Registered
Capital

ifax

USD25,000,000
25,000,000%

RMB3,000,000
AER3,000,0007

RMB100,000,000
ARR100,000,0007

RMB20,000,000
AR520,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000
AK#100,000,0007

Note i: The Group has the right to appoint a majority of directors

to the board of directors. Hence the Group has the power

over these entities and has the ability to use its power to

aoffect its returns. Therefore, these entities are accounted for as

subsidiaries of the Company.

Note ii: The subsidiary is newly esfablished in 2016.

Note iii: In 2016, the Group disposed its 65.96% equity interest in

Sipo Education to Shanghai Xinhua Faxing Group Limited, for

details please refer to Note 48.

25.1 RREMAARAIMERF R RS

IR o ()

Proportion of
Place and  ownership interest and
date of  voting power held by
incorporation the Group
FREMBHER
MR R B KA
2016 2015
&7 _—T-1f
he PRC, 100% 100%
24 December 2015
HE
“Z-RF+-A-tAA
he PRC, 60% 60%
4 August 2015
e
—Z-n%5N\REA
the PRC, 60% -
29Aprl 2016 (Note i)
e (B i)
ZEEMAZTAR
the PRC, 100% -
13)dy2016  (Notei)

HE (M &tii)
—EF-EtA+=H
the PRC, 65% -
5Moy2016  (Note i)
HE (W &tii)
—Z-¥1A1A

ME AEEAREZEEFENBYHE
Fo Rl AEEHZESERER
O WEENEREENTER
m¥k - HENL - ZEBEEARE
REARBNFRA °

WIEEl © T RRIR =T —NFHKL
BifaEiii R =T —NF - ANEEFA LB

ERTERARARLEREHRE
65. Q6% HE « I MTEEAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T—NFF+-_A=1+—HIFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25.1 Details of the Company’s material subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are as follows. [Continued)

Except for SPG Investment Ltd., all the subsidiaries are

indirectly held.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities af the

end of the year.

25.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interest
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company that have material non-controlling

interests:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests and voting rights
Name of subsidiary place of business held by non-controlling interests
RAE FEREGNERRRD
FATER TRERNY R RAERLD
2016 2015
Ik St “T-1F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFRT ARETT
Greenlond Kunming Kunming
R EH 45% 45%
Tianhong Shiye Hoinon
KAES g 49.9% 49.9%
Tianhong Invesiment Hainan
RARE &R 49.9% 299%

Individually immotericl subsidicries
with nonconfrollng inferests

[ERNER A RN TAR

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Company's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
inferests is sef out below. The summarised financial information

below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ZE-RFFH BBEBZRERAAF

25. F A5 (&)

25.1 RIBEMAARANEAT A AR
T o ()

SPG Investment lid. * FTE FARH
REERE -

BEFR  FRAABRBEEITEMNE

252 EAEXFERERNIERET
ATWFHE
TRIIRARBET A EARFEER
RERAERE T RRIMFS

Profit (loss) allocated Accumulated
to non-controlling inferests non-controlling inferests
FRRERERER
() FHRRER
2016 2015 2016 2015

= SIRN S - T
RMB’000 RMB"000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFR  ARMTR  ARMFE  ARATR

(38,751) (20,839) 256,378 295129

(8,994) (9,906] 194,252 203,246
15,309 14,966 393,336 378,02/
160,475 (172,81¢] 49,930 (117,726]
128,039 (188,595 893,896 758,676

RRAE T HAEASFERERNE
RFRRNHEERRERTIMT -
T BERBR R R REARA]
R SHATH 258
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BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

25. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. FAE ()
25.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have 25.2 AEXFIERERNIERZETF
material non-controlling interest (Continued) ATINIEEIE(E)
Greenland Kunming fek b B2 A
At 31 December 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBETFTT
Current assets MENEEE 4,447,339 6,258,869
Non-current assets IEREEE 16,829 3,589
Current liabilities mEEE 3,794,439 5,206,614
Non-current liabilities EmshaE 100,000 400,000
Equity affributable to owners EA/NCIE DN 5
of the Company 313,351 360,715
Non-confrolling interesfs FEIEARRE RS 256,378 295,129
Year ended 31 December 2016 2015
BE+-A=t+—HLEE —B-RE —E—1F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ETT
Revenue Wk 736,827 355,078
Expenses Hx 62,220 52,884
Loss for the year FEEE (86,113) (46,309)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year R & 2 S 4258 (86,113) [46,309)
Total comprehensive expenses aftributable  ZNAR#EA A2 HEH X
to owners of the Company HBE (47,362) [25,470)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable  FEFE G A 25 FEAG 2 M B 2
to the non-controlling inferests kG (38,751) (20,839)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year ZN4F & 2 E B 4858 (86,113) [46,309)
Net cash inflow (oufflow) from KEREEBNIESTA
operafing acfivifies (i ) 548 428,844 (384,856)
Net cash outflow from investing activities R B EEEAIR 7 HF58 = (117)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from KERMEEHNIRLSCRE)
financing activities MAEEE (368,575) 668,424

Net cash inflow BERNFEE 60,269 283,451



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

25.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

R —AEEH

25. ¥ AE (&)
252 EAEXFERERNIERET

25.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interest (Continued)

Tianhong Shiye

At 31 December

R+=A=+—H

Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity affributable to owners

of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

Revenue
Expenses

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive expenses for the year

Total comprehensive expenses affributable
fo owners of the Company
Total comprehensive expenses affributable

fo the non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive expenses for the year

Net cash (outflow) inflow from

operating activities

Net cash (outflow] inflow

MENEE
FRBEE
irEA=Y T
FRBEFE
EN/NEIE/ 2PN
fE(h L

FEIE R R e

Wgs
X
FERE

REE 2R

ZA/NCIE 2N

G 2 E R #5R
FEER

B EHEFA AR
AEEEHEM AR
KELEEBEDN

BeORE)RANFE

ReORd)RAFHE

ATFWFE(E)

XiLEZ

2016
—F-RF
RMB’000
ARBTR

534,792
17,057
147,290
15,277

195,030
194,252

2016
ZB-RE
RMB’000
ARBTR

34,269
4,673
(18,024)

(18,024)

(9,030)

(8,994)
(18,024)

(31,348)
(31,348)

BWEBZRERAA

2015
—T—RF
RMB'000
ARETT

528,100
17,269
122,211
15,851

204,061
203,246

2015
—T—hF
RMB'000
ARET T

436,746
4,117
(19,851)

(19,851)

(@,945)

(@,2006)
(19,851)

35,373
35,373
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25. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. FAE ()
25.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have 252 R EXFIERERVIEREF
material non-controlling interest (Continued) ATINIEEIE(E)
Tianhong Investment PNt
At 31 December 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFTT
Current assets MEVEE 2,055,604 2,368,675
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,066 17,127
Current liabilities mEaE 1,168,404 1,196,849
Non-current liabilities FERBBEE 123,017 431,385
Equity affributable to owners EA/NSIEZ 2SN
of the Company FE(E S 394,913 379,541
Non-confrolling interesfs FEIEARRE RS 393,336 378,027
Year ended 31 December 2016 2015
BE+-A=1+—HILEE —B—RE —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Revenue Wk 853,444 180,284
Expenses 53 44,233 9,549
Profit for the year FEHA 30,679 29,092
Total comprehensive income for the year — ARFE 2 EURALLEE 30,679 29,992
Total comprehensive income aftributable to AN RI#EA A
owners of the Company e R ER AL 15,370 15,026
Total comprehensive income affributable fo  FE#5 A% #E S
the non-controlling inferests JE(E 2 EWALERE 15,309 14,966
Total comprehensive income for the year AN E 2 E R A B EE 30,679 29,992
Net cash inflow from operating activities R B 4E & EEHIR S RAFEE 356,044 32,978
Net cash outflow from investing activities R EREEEHIR &R FEE (42) -
Net cash outflow from financing activities 2R B B & EEAVIR &7 1 F 58 (200,000) (60,000)

Net cash inflow (outflow) BEmACRL) S5 156,002 (27,022)



ZE-REFH BMEBERERAR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENITS (Continved)
iR e IR AR MY ()
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—ANGF+—A=+—HIFE
26. ASSOCIATE 26.BE AT
2016 2015
—B—RE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
Shanghai Yingkun Investment Limited EEEEREER
Partnership Corporation (BR&%) ([ LigiERE ()
("Shanghai Yingkun’) (i) - -
26.1 Details of associate 26.1 BHEATIHE
Details of each of the Group's associate at the end of the AEBEHERTRREPROFRE
reporfing period are as follows: W

Proportion of

ownership interest

Place of incorporation and voting rights

and principal held by the Group

Name of associate Principal activity place of business at 2016 and 2015

REBRZE—RE

E-T—AFH

BHEELDR

B AT EE FEER R RS & E EEEE R, B R R HELL B

Shanghai Yingkun Investing and consulting Shanghai, the PRC 23%

iEsER RE NG HE e

(i)  Shanghai Yingkun is a limited partnership corporation. [l LbBedEzs—HERagEE -
Shanghai Daokun Investment Management Co., ltd, AEBENTAR LB EBEEE
the subsidiary of the Group, is the general partner of BERARALSEENLBE

Shanghai Yingkun. However, resolution about any
partnership-related events is made in a one seat one
vote approach, and must be approved by more than
half of all partners. The representatives of the limited
pariners have veto power in a commitiee which makes
decisions for the operation of Shanghai Yingkun. Profits
and losses of Shanghai Yingkun are distributed in
accordance with the subscription capital shares of the

partners.

BA o R - EMERAEES
HYRBERIEA— A —FRH7 3 E
Ho WAESBFEEB AL
o R E DERNEEREK
ZBgT BREBARKES
BRKE - DEERNBRRER
ARRHEARBRND DR
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26. ASSOCIATE (Continued) 26.BE AT ()
26.1 Details of associate (Continued) 26.1 Bt A SIFIE(E)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the TXEFIANEB RSB SR RNHEE
Croup's associate is sef out below. FHEE
At 31 December 2016 2015
w+=-—RA=+—H —E—RiE —T A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBFIT
Cost of investment BB 250 100
Share of postacquisition losses DEUEE & 1B (250) (100)
The summarised financial information below represents TXFRENBERMEREERRR
amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared AR 5% B % B 755 e o 2 B S 0 B 755
in accordance with IFRSs. KATREH -
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the AN BB T S B R R Y B 7
Group's associate is set out below. BEEEFIT -
Shanghai Yingkun Way:=37-74
At 31 December 2016 2015
®+=—H=+—H —E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETTT
Current assets BB E 1,772,037 3,189,527
Non-current assefs EMENEE 1,770,000 -
Current liabilities nBEE 3,544,734 3,192,744
Year ended 31 December 2016 2015
HBE+-A=t+—HLEE —E—RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT
Revenue s 35,563 -
Profit (loss) for the year FEEF (EE) 370 (3,317)
Total comprehensive income FEEERA(FX) B
[expenses) for the year 370 (3,317)
As at 31 December 2016, Shanghai Yingkun has net liabilities R-—F—XNE+—_A=+—8 b8
amounting to RMB2,697,000 (2015: RMB 3,217,000). HEFEBERAREK2 6970005 (=
The Group recognised net liabilities of Shanghai Yingkun T—FE: ARKE3,217,0007T) °
amounting to RMB2,697,000 (2015: RMB3,217,000) as a AREFER LSERENFEEBEARK
liability. 2,697,000 (ZE—HF : AR¥

3,217,0007T) BALE °



ZE-RFFH BBEBZRERAAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinved)
REMIERRM T )

For the year ended 31 December 2016

o — g = = Ny | =3
AR T NFIT-A=1—HIFE

27.JOINT VENTURES 27. 886 %

2016 2015
ZB-RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Forever Rich Enterprise Limited Forever Rich Enterprise Limited
("Forever Rich’) ([Forever Rich]) 491,690 206,187
Haikou Chengjian Green lsland BOMEGSSEMETREARAR
Llandscape Engineering Co., ltd (MEBOWRE))
|"Haikou Chengjian’) 49,513 -
541,203 296,187
Defails of the Group's joint ventures at the end of reporting period is as REBRBERRNGEREFBOT
follows:
Place of incorporation and Proportion of ownership interest and
Name of joint venture Principal activity principal place of business voting rights held by the Group
RELREH TEEH AR EEEE A AREBAEED R FRREL S
2016 2015
—B-RE —T-1F
Forever Rich Property development Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 50% 50%
Forever Rich MEERRS BT ERE EM T
Haikou Chengjian (i) landscape engineering Haikou, Hainan Province, the PRC 32.5% -
8 OV E#aRC TH2 PEERE AT
Both of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity Pt s SR ERERENLE RS PR
method in these consolidated financial stafements. RN o
(i) In March 2016, Haikou Chengjian was established by the )] ZZT—REF=8 FTEEHESINRE
Group and other two shareholders. The Group occupied AR S D E - AR E(532.5%
32.5% equity interests. According to the Articles of Association it - REBE O BN AL EIRHA
of Haikou Chengjian, the Group and other shareholders jointly 8 - RPN 52 B 6 A AR BR A R4
control Haikou Chengijian. Therefore, Haikou Chengjian is BOWE  AtBEREONELSE S
recognised as a joint venture. =
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's TXHINAEE RS S EENITBEER
joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information £ - TXEHFBERMERS EEENIR
below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures' financial 15 B A B 75 i o 2R R AR B BA TS SRR P R &

statements prepared in accordance with [FRSs. B o

215



216 GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

27.JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Forever Rich

27. SEBLE(E)
Forever Rich

At 31 December 2016 2015
®+=A=+—H —TB—RE —T—hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREETTT
Cost of investment AR 306,093 306,093
Share of post-acquisition profits (losses) DEUEE RS (BR) 185,597 [9,900)
491,690 206,187
At 31 December 2016 2015
R+=A=+—H —B—RE —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT
Current assets RENEE 2,187,062 1,655,185
Non-current assets IEREEE 80,484 11,920
Current liabilities mEaE 1,284,166 1,074,730
The above amounts of assets and NEEENBESERIENATNSHE
liabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSZEY 217,743 98,466
Year ended 31 December 2016 2015
BE+-A=+—HILEE —B—RE —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
Revenue W25 1,489,339 -
Profit (loss) for the year FEHF (EE) 391,005 (11,897)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) 2HEWA ()45 391,005 (11,897)
The above profit (loss) for the year N EFEEMN(EB)BEATSE
includes the following:
Depreciation and amortisation TE R 301 231
Finance income REE WA 38,331 3,713
Income tax expense Frisfif > 128,818 3,924
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REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F— A F+=A="1—HIFE

27.JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Forever Rich (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the inferest in the joint venture recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

Net assefs of the joint venture
Proportion of the Group's ownership

inferest in the joint venture

Carrying amount of the Group's

interest in the joint venture

Haikou Chengjian

At 31 December
W+=A=+—H

Cost of investment

Share of postacquisition losses

At 31 December
®+=—A=+—H

Current assets

Current liabilities

The above amounts of assets and liabilities

include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

BREMRFEE
AEERNAELENEARE
i Fadaail

REBM G ELEREZRN
FREE

RERA
DA WER 1R R

mBEE
mEEE

ZE-AFEH BMEBERERAT

27. 8ELE(E

Forever Rich(#&)

VA EBA TS B R B BN AR & B TS R HE R EY

BebEERREERLE

2016
—F—RE
RMB’000
ARBTR

983,380

50%

491,690

BORE

NEEENMRBESHEERE

ATEIA

RAeLkAeEEY

2015
—T—hHF
RMB'O00
ARBT T

592,375

50%

296,187

2016
ZB—RF
RMB’000
ARBTR

50,000
(487)

49,513

2016
ZB—RF
RMB’000
ARETR

118,557
57

38,647
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—E—NFFZHA=1+—HIFE

27.JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

27- = Eﬁ%(nt)

Haikou Chengjian (Continued) BOWE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE+-A=t+—HILLEE —T—-RE
RMB’000
ARETT

Loss for the year FEER 1,500

Total comprehensive expenses T HE X EE 1,500

The above loss for the year includes the following: N EFEBEBIENATSHE

Finance income BEKA 56

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the inferest in the joint venture recognised in the

financial statements:

UA LB TS B R 2 BN IS RRFER ) & &
EERREENSEE

2016

—T—-RE

RMB’000

AREFT

Net assets of the joint venture BRETPEFEE 118,500
Proportion of the Group's ownership inferest AEBREGEENERE

in the joint venture e dndtll 32.50%

Adjustment (note| AR (M) 11,000

Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEBNGELERZRN
in the joint venture fREE 49,513

Note: Since the other shareholder did not fully pay the subscribed capital, the
effective proportion of the Group's ownership interest is different from

the above proportion.

FfeE - ARNEMBRRARBE 2N RERE - A
SEEERERNERLAIB RN L
Bl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

Ny =P

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F— A F+=A="1—HIFE

28.

TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 28.FEUYBRSX « HibFEUGRIE & TE
ADVANCE DEPOSITS s
2016 2015
—B—-RF “E-AhF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Receivables due from related parties JEYLRRE A T 5IE
(note 46.3) (FF3E46.3) 3,247,268 1,735,544
Trade receivables due from third parties U = JT Ry FEUR BR X 403,969 209,613
Advance payments fo contractors A EBERIR 1,535,814 570,786
Advance deposits for acquisition of U B + 30 5 AR TR &
land use rights 431,886 311,693
Non-rade receivables HAb e RIE 1,857,713 1,574,806
Other fax prepayments H i TR 401,781 481,151
Allowance for doubtful debts RAR A (69,265) (56,235)
Total At 7,809,166 4,917,358

The receivables due from related parties are non-trade, unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. Non+rade receivable
balances, deposits and advances fo third parties are expected to be
sefiled or recovered within one year. Other tax prepayments mainly
represent prepayment of value-added tax, fax surcharge during the

pre-sale sfage of cerfain properies.
In general, the Group provides no credit term to its customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for
aged analysis) that are past due af the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts
because there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The following is an
aged analysis of frade receivable that are not impaired based on the

sales recognition date at the end of each reporting period.

0-90 days 0-90H
91-180 days Q@1-180H
181-365 days 181-365H

RKEEALTRARIFESEE - EEM -
RRRAREREEE - HMbE YIRS
# - RERANE=THRBERHRR —FA
RS E - AR ERIERBES
T MR ET S M IR

AEE—RIGRFTFPRHEEN -

MA B ER e R W R SR B4R (RRER D AT R T30
RS RS BB E A AN E R R
REEBBHFR - WRNEERELEL
REREE - MABFRBDRR ST AWK
B - LT ARSHREMRRIBHEREZ A
W AR ) FEUR R AR e AT ©

2016 2015
—T—REF —T—h4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREET T

352,512 273,115
586 276
25,006 13,387

378,104 286,778
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e AR R M R ()

i =

For the year ended 31 December 2016

R T ANFF+-—A=1—HIFE

28.TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

ADVANCE DEPOSITS (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

28. FEMGHR =R + H fh FEWRRIE R ]

FHEEER

Balance at beginning of the year

Impairment losses recognised on receivables  FEUGRIBHE R AR EE 18

Balance at end of the year FRER

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the frade receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporfing period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due fo the

fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired frade receivables amounting to RMB25,865,000 (2015:
RMB12,835,000) and impaired non-rade receivables amounting
fo RMB43,400,000 (2015: RMB43,400,000) which have been
placed under liquidation. The impairment recognised represents the
difference between the carrying amount of these trade receivables
and the present value of the expected liquidation proceeds. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Age of impaired trade, non-trade receivables

fHze (&)
RGBS S

2016 2015

—T-RE —T—h%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARET T

56,235 15

13,030 56,220

69,265 56,235

AEBEERUESNAIR@EZER &2
BREYKESREBERREEE R HEEHRE D
RIENEMEEREZE - ERTFEMRE
AMEERE  AUEERRNERES
BR e

RARBEAE T 21T (E B (E 70 & AR XA
R#25865000L (=2 —hH%F : ARK
12,835,0007T) & 2 Bl 518 B HY H fth & WK
TBAR®A3,400,000(ZZ2—01F : AR
#43,400,0007T) « BHENBRIET © FTHE
RHBE R F R YRR RE EEBRS
BFSSFARELHNERE - AEELERL
ZEBHF A M ERR -

E i (B B FE M AR 0 B B fth FE M FR IR BY
ARE

Trade receivable JEHBR FX
Within 365 days 3658A
Over 365 days FaiR365H
Non-rade receivables H b fEURIE
Within 365 days 365HA
Over 365 days FaiR365H
Total &5t

2016 2015
—®—»%  —T-u4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETE

130 -
25,735 12,835
= 43,385
43,400 E
69,265 56,235



ZE-AFEH BMEBERERAT
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REPBRERME @)
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—F-AF+=A=+—ALFE
29.TAX RECOVERABLE 29. T EIHIE
2016 2015
—B—RE —E—h%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBFT
Enterprise income fax EMEH 110,445 233,914
Land appreciation fax T IEER 355,634 63,378
466,079 297,292
30. RESTRICTED CASH 30. ZPR#IIRE
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FRT AREFT
For property construction and development BRI R EERYIZ 256,582 269,227
Deposit for mortgage loans RIBERIRS 427,558 198,196
As pledge for inferestbearing loans and TERET B ERRIRTT
bank acceptance notes AR AR 740,000 145,145
Others HAtb 12,844 ?,050
1,436,984 621,618
31.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1. RINEEFEY

An analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents is set out

below:

RAERREFEMNEHITWOT -

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFxX AREFTT

Cash at bank and cash in hand BITHERERE 5,795,243 5,828,805

Less: restricted cash (note 30) B R B S (BIEE30) (1,436,984) 621,618)

Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIBEEEY 4,358,259 5,207,187
Cash at bank and cash in hand is AR EBEERIRTT

denominated in GEREEE

RMB AREE 4,847,557 5,747,391

United States Dollars (“USD") EV(E =) 113,534 58,246

Hong Kong Dollars ["HKD') B ((#EIT]) 834,152 23,168

5,795,243 5,828,805
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BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

31.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31.IRERIAEEEY(E)

(Continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject fo exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC

government.

As of 31 December 2016, the carry amount of advance from
customers under supervision is RMB371,780,624 (2015:
RMB301,222,000).

ARBYIFEHABESR  KPEELAR
B 7R8 ST o BB R T O BE L AR ) o

R-ZE—AF+-—A=+—10 FEFEK
BEFEREREERSARK3I71,780,6247T
(ZF2—RF : ARK301,222,0007T) °

32.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 32.FEfi#iIE EEHIEEE(E

(LIABILITIES)

(i)  Current taxation in the consolidated statements of
financial position represents:

PRC income tax hEIFTEH

Balance brought forward AT 4E RS

Provision for PRC enterprise income FAPBEPEMSTEE
tax for the year (note 13(i) and (BEE13(0) }247)
note 47)

Under provision in prior years BREFERENR
(note 13i)) (BFEET1310)

PRC income tax paid AP EIFTEH

Balance carried forward iERaEE

PRC land appreciation tax chE] + i e {EF

Balance brought forward AP AEER

Provision for PRC land appreciation  4F Py B 4 1 38 (B 7 B 4
fax for the year (note 13(i)) (F3E13(1)

PRC land appreciation fax paid BT B IS E R

Balance carried forward b

Total CH

&)
) HEUBRRROFHBIFES -

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARETTT

261,764 70,013
683,587 311,717

19,145 12,186
(377,959) (132,152)
586,537 261,764
569,649 690,702
324,322 127,256
(249,086) (248,309
644,885 569,649

1,231,422 831,413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

32.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
(LIABILITIES) (Continued)

32.FEMBLIE REBEEE(R

&) (&)

(i) Deferred tax assets recognised: (i) CHEPELEHESE :
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in BEEGFA BB R IER B RIEN I
the consolidated statements of financial position and the BEPHSRENESHMAT :
movements during the year were as follows:
Temporary Temporary
difference difference
on revenue on land
recognition and appreciation
related cost tax and
of sales other accruals Tax losses Total
Wit R A THHEERN
HERAN EHERR
TRER HibrEtIEE HkE CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIL AREFL ARETT ARETT
A 1 January 2015 R=Z-1a%-A—-A 11,665 146,200 65,864 223,738
Acquisitions through business BREBAGE
combination 28,280 4,004 - 32,284
Additions (reductions| BEEE) 118,351 (7.797) - 110,554
Realisation 25 (26,370 (1,167 - (27.537)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=+-H 131,926 141,249 65,864 339,039
Disposal of subsidiaries LEFAE (4,182 (7.129) (2.921) (14,232)
Addifions i 37017 30,939 11,057 79,013
Realisation -3t (64,236) 48,068) - (112,304)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E+=A=1—H 100,525 116,991 74,000 291,516

R=B-—XE+=A=T—0 &%
0 PR 3 8 R SR R RO R VR LT

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB2,569,672,000 (2015: RMB2,266,312,000) available

fo offset against future profits. Deferred fax assets have been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of RMB296,000,000
[2015: RMB263,456,000) at the applicable income tax
rafes of the respective subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016.
No deferred tax assefs have been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax losses of RMB2,273,672,000 (2015:
RMB2,002,856,000) because management is of the view
that it is not probable that the individual subsidiaries concerned
can generate profits to utilise the tax losses before the tax
losses become expired. The unrecognised tax losses for the
year ended 31 December 2016 will expire in the following
years ending 31 December.

EERBARKE2509,672,0007T (=
T—HF: AR#¥2266312000
) e R=F—ARF+-_HA=1+—8"
RSB IRIRE R FRRER G
MEBBNELERBEESARK
296,000,000 (—F—H%F : AR
#263,456,0007T) - HRNEIRER
REBERF AR AR R EL 4
A LA 35 75 15 48 21 B A1 3 8 B 75 B
B AhYARREBHBEBRARKE
2,273,672,000L(ZFB—HF : AR
#2,002,856,0007T ) HERRIEIE R TH &
E-RBE_ZT—RF+-_HA=1+—
B IEFE R RERT B RGN EER
BET_A=+—HIFEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

32.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 32.fEfi#HilE EEBIEESE(E

(LIABILITIES) (Continued) %) (@)
(i) Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued) (i) CHEPEEHRIEEE : (48)
2016 2015
—T—RE —T—h%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTFT
2016 ZE—RF = 131,900
2017 —E—+F 311,683 311,683
2018 —ZE-N\F 391,210 391,210
2019 —E-NF 454,492 454,492
2020 —E-TF 713,571 /13,571
2021 —E-—F 402,716 -
2,273,672 2,002,856
(iii) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (iii) ERPEERESE :
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in EHEFRA MBI RFER R EN A
the consolidated statements of financial position and the RfRED REREBIT :

movements during the year were as follows:

Revaluation

of investment Fair value  Deferred land
properties adjustments  appreciate tax Total
b=t 7ES AREE BELH
Bff R H{EH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL AREFT ARETT ARETTT
At T January 2015 RZE—RF—HF—H 377,076 152,538 - 529,614
Acquisitions through business — EBEHA HHIKEE
combination - 237584 - 237,584
Additions byl 287,819 - 10,846 208,665
Realisation B (84,020) [37,291) - [121,317)
At 31 December 2015 N-E-—1E
+-A=1t-8H 580,869 352,831 10,846 Q44,546
Disposal of subsidiaries HETFAHE - 6,162 - 6,162
Additions #1n 162,010 - - 162,010
Realisation B (56,812 (64,332 (10,840) (131,990
At 31 December 2016 NZE—RF

+ZA=+-H 686,067 294,661 - 980,728
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Ny =P

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—FE—NF1_A=+—HIFE

32.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

33. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

(LIABILITIES) (Continued)

(iv)

Deferred tax assets recognised

Netoff with deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities recognised

Netoff with deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Current
Secured bank loans (note i)
Unsecured loans
Current portion of non-current
secured bank loans
Current portion of non-current unsecured loans

Current portion of equity pledge loans

Non-current
Secured bank loans (note i)
Equity pledge loan (note ii
Unsecured loans
Less: current portion of non-current
secured bank loans
current portion of non-current unsecured
loans

current portion of equity pledge loans

Net-off of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

ZE—REFR

BWEBZRERAA

32.FEMBLIE REBEEE(R

&) (&)
(iv) IRSHBEEHESERAR :
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx ARET T
ERRECHEEE 291,516 339,039
BRI IE & FH (81,089) (69,312
ELHIERE 210,427 269,727
BREREERIEAE 980,728 Q44,546
BRI R IE & EE K 8H (81,089) 69,312)
EERIEE (& 899,639 875,234
33.:t2E®R
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFx ARET T
510
BEIPRITER (ML) 693,700 409,818
AR R 370,000 200,000
HEMIEITRIAERDN
BPEREE S 1,392,050 1,394,563
EIR R EE RN RNEH S 646,000 519,684
AR IR B A BV ERER 611,870 741,873
3,713,620 3,265,938
RE
BEPRITER(MIFE) 4,219,000 2,794,313
RRAEIE R 2R (M 2L 3,059,351 5,336,872
AR 1,142,170 1,102,218
B BERIRRITRAFERM
BNEREE S (1,392,050) (1,394,563
IR B BIHE D
(646,000) (519,684
[ 8 $E 1R B SR B BN HA S0 2 (611,870) (741,873)
5,770,601 6,577,283

225



226

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

or the year ended 31 December 2016
EE—ANFF A= —HILFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's secured loans were secured

by the following:

[l The Group’s properties with a total carrying amount of
RMB7,856,309,000 (2015: RMB7,843,552,000) (notes
18, 22, 23 and 24);

[i)  Equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

[ii)  As of 31 December 2016, the Group's secured loans were

also secured by pledged time deposits of RMB740,000,000
(2015: RMB145,145,000).

The Group's non-current loans were repayable as follows:

Over 1 year but less than 2 years R —FEMFA
Over 2 vears but less than 5 years BEMFEOFA
Over 5 years HBAFNALE

The effective inferest rate of the year ended 31 December 2016 was

as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
e BRRWE @)

330 n-l-lu\‘éﬂ(n‘ﬁ
RZZE—RF+-A=+—0H XEENE
ISR TS BIERIEA -

(i) AEBBREAAE AR 856,309,0007T
(ZZ—H%F : AR¥7843,552,0007T)
B (FfEE18 ~ 22 ~ 23/%24)

(i) AEBEETFRAAMBRAES

i) R=ZT—X"E+=-A=+—H 4%
ENERFBERITABER T T
RARKE740,000,000(=F—H
F: AR 145,1450007%) fE AR
e

AEBNRPEFERATHEER

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETIT

3,864,456 3,339,950
1,672,145 3,036,333

234,000 201,000
5,770,601 6,577,283

RBE-2—A%+=A=+—AILFEN
HIBFIRIT -

Effective interest rate HIRFIE
Fixed-rate borrowings .Eﬂ SRS
Variable-tate borrowings BREEE

2016 2015
—®—»%  —T-u4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETE

2.70% 2.50%6.94%

3.98%-5.57%

2.88%8.50%
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BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

34.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payables due to related parties (note 46.3)  FEf B3 A 58 (FI3E46.3)

Trade related vl
— Other related parties —HbBEEAL
Non-rade related E At 1~ FRIE
- Dividends payable — AR R
— Other related parties —HbBEAL
Trade payables R ARIR
Other faxes payable Hopth e (< 50 18
Inferest payable eSS,
Dividends payable JERT IR,
Unpaid land cost RZAS L IBBAR

Non-rade payables and accrued expenses  H A fEFSRIBMTEIR E A

Total A%t

The payables due to related parties are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from the time

when the construction services are received from suppliers.

0-90 days 0-Q0H
91-180 days 91-180H
181-365 days 181-365H
365 days - 3 years 365H—3%F

ZE—REFR

2016
—g—5%
RMB’000
ARBTT

10,715

6,805
6,275,911

6,293,431

5,612,084
143,226
180,261

238
620,555
1,427,722

7,984,086
14,277,517

BWEBZRERAA

34. FE{TRRFR R S A FE 4R TE

2015
—T—RF
RMB'000
ARETT

6,059

6,805
5,158,960

5,171,824

4,313,172
23,929
173,290
230
702,174
1,803,399

7,016,194
12,188,018

ENEEALFRAEER 2B NARE
=

SREHEIE -

AT RBEZHEEERREREAED

FERRRFR AR DA -

2016
—F—RE
RMB’000
AREBTFR

5,149,707
24,801
167,304
270,272

5,612,084

2015
—T—hF
RMB'000
AREETIT

3,669,507
510,249
33,350
100,066

4,313,172
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35.

iy s EL R TE )

ended 31 December 2016

. | — B —
Fr—A=1—HIFE

BONDS

On 18 October 2013, the Company issued 4.75% bonds due
2016 with an aggregated nominal value of USD700,000,000 at
a value equal to 99.655% of the face value. The bonds are is listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Bonds carry inferest at the
rate of 4.75% per annum, payable semiannually on 18 April and
18 October in arrears. The nef proceeds, after deducting the direct
issuance costs, amounted to approximately USD692,424,000
lequivalent to RMB4,249,546,000). On 18 October 2016, the

bonds matured and were repaid.

On 23 January 2014, the Company issued 5.50% bonds due
2018 (the "A Bond") with an aggregated nominal value of
RMB1,500,000,000 at a value equal to 99% of the face value.
The A Bond is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The A
Bond carries inferest af the rate of 5.50% per annum, payable semi-
annually on 23 January and 23 July in arrears and will mature on
23 January 2018, unless redeemed earlier. The net proceeds, after

deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to approximately
RMBT,490,465,000.

On 7 August 2014, the Company issued 4.375% bonds due
2017 (the "B Bond"] with an aggregated nominal value of
USD500,000,000 at a value equal to 99.31% of the face value.
The B Bond is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The B Bond
carries interest at the rate of 4.375% per annum, payable semi-
annually on 7 February and 7 August in arrears and will mature on
7 August 2017, unless redeemed earlier. The net proceeds after

deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to approximately

USD492,287,000 (equivalent fo RMB3,035,935,000).

On 28 July 2016, the Company issued 3.875% bonds due 2019 (the
"C Bond") with an aggregated nominal value of USD450,000,000
at a value equal to 99.301% of the face value. The C Bond is listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The C Bond carries interest af
the rate of 3.875% per annum, payable semi-annually on 28 January
and 28 July in arrears and will mature on 28 July 2019, unless
redeemed earlier. The net proceeds affer deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately USD443,986,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,956,815,000).

The A Bond, B Bond and C Bond (the “Bonds”) have the benefit of
a keepwell deed from Greenland Holding Group Company Limited,

the intermediate controlling shareholder of the Company.

35. &%

RZZB—=%+A+N\B ' ARAKRERT
B99.655%MBEZETN —T— /NF2HE
[ {5700,000,000& T 4.75 B &% - &
FNBEBYZA LT - BFRENEL. 758
AR REFOATNARTATNABEFE
FEIRMNE - BHNBEERBTRAROAE
RIBF AR /5692,424,000% T (BHER A
R#54,249,546,0007T) c RZZE—RF+
H+N\B - EF28TEERE -

RZZ—NFE—A=+=0 " AQFKE
FIE{EI%HEERITR —T— \F2IH4R
HEE A K% 1,500,000,0007T 1 5.50 F f&
H([BRESH%]) - FESNBBBRALT -
FEFRFMESSOEFE  RNEF—H
“t=BRtAZT=BBFFHRNE

VR =ZE-NF-A=+=HEH(RIFk
BIRFEM@) o KRR EEEITRAILE T
SHIRFEN /AR ,490,465,0007T

R-Z-—WFNALH  ARAREERE
B3N EEERTR T~ F 3 H
42 TH {8 500,000,000 3 7T #9 4.375 [E & %
([ZR#%])) - ZEFNEBBIM LT °
LEFRERELI/SERE  RBEZ
AtARNALABEFHRHE - LB
R-ZE—tFNALBEHAFRIFEREE
E) o BMBFEERBITRANROAEFRF
A /492,287,000 € T (HHERARE
3,035,935,0007T) ©

RZZ—RNELA=-1+N\B  ARAEER
EEC9. 301 4t EEZETR =2 —NEFE
HA4AE {H450,000,0005 TTH3.875 B &%
(TAEH])  -AEHFREBH R LT -
REHIEEMNEI 875E:E - REE—A
—+tNBEREtAZ+N\BEEFHAME
THR=—E—NFLA=+N\BEHBRIE
BIREER ) o MR AR BRITRAKE AT
BEIEFEEA B443,986,000F T (FHER
AR#2,056,815,0007T) °

FEx  LEFRAES(ESDHEARR
BT ERBRCRAR IR R BB R N AR
RV ERTT R P RIBA A 4R o
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35.BONDS (Continued)

The movements of different components of Bonds are sef out below:

As at 1 January 2015
Inferests and issue cost amortised during the year
Inferest paid during the year

Exchange loss

As af 31 December 2015

Net proceeds from bonds issued in 2016
Inferests and issue cost amortised during the year
Inferest paid during the year

Repayment of bonds

Exchange loss

As at 31 December 2016

At 31 December
®+=—A=+—H

Represented by
- Bonds

— Other payables-accrued inferests

35. &% (4&)
EHTRABLHEBUFILT -

2016

—E—RF

RMB’000

ARETT

R-E—HF—HA—H 8,896,454
FROEHEF S RBITRA 452,964
FEEMFIE (423,897)
IE 5 E518 456,177
RZEBE—RAF+-A=+—H 9,381,698
M-E— NEBRITELFBREFE 2,956,815
FRCEHEF B RBEITHRA 531,937
FEBMAFE (446,709)
BEES (4,706,715)
IE W B 18 471,282
RZB—RF+-A=+—H 8,188,308
2016 2015

—E—REF —T—AHF

RMB’000 RMB'O00

AREFT ARBTIT

M~ 7I)3E B 486K

8,038,774 9,243,928

— H AR R — FERTFILE 149,534 137,770
8,188,308 9,381,698

The Bonds represent the contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the rate of interest determined by the
market instruments of comparable credit sfatus taken into account the
business risk and financial risk of the Company. The effective interest
rate is 4.355%-5.680% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2016.

BHFRENEFRNOERRRERE ©
REERADRINEHRR R BRRRK -
BREEMNEENMSETAEE - 8152
BRET-A=F+—HILFE  BEBFH
E34.355%%5.680% °
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35.BONDS (Continued) 35. &% (&)
The Bonds was repayable as follows: BEHBRIA T FEEE
At 31 December 2016 2015
®R+=A=+—H —T—RE —T—h%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ETFT
Represented by M 7138 B AR
Bonds within one year —F AN ES 3,456,778 4,529,407
Bonds (EE-
After one year but within two years —FREMFR 1,496,432 3,218,901
After two years but within five years MFRBERFR 3,085,564 1,495,620
4,581,996 4,714,521
36.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEME 36. ESRK&tEl
The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed AEBEZEREDATEBNER ZBZFEL
refirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. The BRIKEFIGHEI 2K E - ZETFRAIEER
subsidiaries are required to contribute 20%-22% of payroll costs to ﬁéﬁi&ﬁﬁgﬁﬁE’UQO%-QQ%W?&W?‘E%‘JE‘#%@E
the retirement benefit scheme fo fund the benefits. The only obligation K N AERRT o sRIKETEEIm
of the Group with respect to the refirement benefit scheme is to make T REE B ERIELAETRMER

the specified contributions.

The fofal expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB43,901,000 Ba PR B85 ARK43,901,000
[2015: RMB41,775,000) represents contributions payable to TT(ZE—AF : AR¥A41,775,0007T) T3
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rule of the plans. REBERZEAERAGTREE X EMNZ
As at 31 December 2016, contributions of RMB996,000 (201 5: "%?g SMER - R E—RF+_A=1+—
RMB119,000) due in respect of the year ended 31 December CHEE—Z-RE(ZT-RF)TA
2016 (2015) had not been paid over to the plans. The amounts :‘f'—EEEEE@J‘E%@M\TJ\)\E%QQQOOO
were paid subsequent fo the end of the reporting period. T(ZZE—H1F : AR¥119,000T)MIARZ

NS ZERERRRE RS
fi -
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ZE-RFFH BBEBZRERAAF

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 37. Bxt 3z i+

Share award scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 3 December
2010. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and
reward the contribution of the executives and employees (whether
serving fulltime or parttime) and directors of the Group to the growth
and development of the Group through an award of the shares of the
Company. Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the

Company's 2012 annual report.

On 2 April 2013, the Board of Directors approved to grant
16,103,000 shares of the Company to the eligible participants, of
which 400,000 shares were granted to a director and 2,000,000
shares were granted to four independent non-executive directors
(500,000 shares each) respectively. The shares granted to the
independent non-executive directors were vested immediately. The

vesting date of the remaining granted shares is 31 March 2015.

Movements in the number of shares held for the Share Award

Scheme is as follows:

Outstanding as of 31 December 2014 RZZE—mNF+=-A=+—AH
HARITEE

Purchased (note 38(b)) B E (MIzE38(b)

Exercised 2171

Forfeited 28I

Outstanding as of 31 December 2015 RZZE—RHF+=-A=+—AH
HARITEE

Purchased (note 38(b)) BEEEE (MI:E38(b)

Exercised B2171E

Forfeited ERU

Outstanding as of 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"FF+A=+—AH

(i)  The weighted average fair value of the awarded shares was
calculated based on the market prices of the Company’s

ordinary shares af the respective grant dates.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no expense (2015:
RMB416,000), in relation to share-based payments is charged fo

administrative expenses in profit or loss.

Bt B€ Bt 21

AR -E—TF+ - A= ARMBRIDE
Bhat @l o BRAD A BN B R BBRTA
REMBRN - AEREEAEEOEEA
8 BE(THEMIFB) REEATEE
MR RERAEHAER © 81D 2@ 8l
HERRARA T —FFH -

RZE—=FMAZH SFFHER
EERBHEERE 16,103,000 A A 7]
Bfp - AR 400,000 kK T —RES K
2,000,000/ % Bl F & B eI TE F
(£500,0008%) - MBILIFMITEEREZ
RO ENRSRE - A TR AR Z 558 B H
R-ZE—RAF=A=+—H-

f& 10 BB T B FTRIAR D M E B EBan T ¢

Shares
held for

the Share Awarded

Award Scheme shares
It i€ EhEtEl

FR¥siki SEENA% 1

(thousand) (thousand)

(FR%) (Fh%)

14,308 20,089

/7,478 -

- (19,178)

Q11 @171)

22,697 -

22,697 -

) EEERDOINEFEDABETRR
ARREBRNEEE AT ER

= o
A

HE-_Z—REt+t-_A=t—HILEELE
RIBEEITERE AR MD X MRS (=
T—RE: AR¥416,0007T) °
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38.SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.5 each

Converiible preferred shares of

HKDO.5 each

Total

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At T January

Placing shares

AR

SREHEO ST L AR

SREEO 5B
THRERR

At

LR BEITRAR
R—H—H
ERERK

st

Transfer from Convertible preference shares &% 5 AJ & & L%

Repurchase and logout shares
At 31 December

Converiible preference shares,
issued and fully paid:
At 1 January

Transfer fo ordinary shares
At 31 December

Total at 31 December

P [l Kt At
R+=A=+—A
ERERR - BRITR
BR:
R—A—H
BRZLER
WtZA=t-A
Rt=A=t—RAast

38. &
2016
ZB—RE
No. of
shares Amount
idni S¢E] &8
(thousand) HKD’000
(Fh) TFER
7,000,000 3,500,000
3,000,000 1,500,000
10,000,000 5,000,000
2016
—E-RE
No. of
shares Amount
L dE] &%
(thousand) RMB’000
(Fh) ARETTT
2,793,677 1,132,855
2,793,677 1,132,855
2,793,677 1,132,855

2015
—E-RE

No. of
shares Amount
M Gl
(thousand) HKD'000
(Fi&%) FBT
7,000,000 3,500,000
3,000,000 1,500,000
10,000,000 5,000,000

2015
“Z-0F

No. of
shares Amount
BREE G
(thousand) RMB'000
(Fi&%) ARETT
1,142,291 477,299
228,000 89,956
1,485,530 590,855
(62,144) (25,255)
2,793,677 1,132,855
1,485,530 590,855
(1,485,530 (590,855)
2,793,677 1,132,855
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled fo receive
dividends as declared from time fo fime and are entifled
fo one vote per share at any general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

fo the Company’s residual assets.

Convertible preference shares (“CPS”)

The holders of CPS will not have the right to attend
and vote at a general meeting (except for the winding
up of the Company or for any resolution fo vary or
abrogate the rights or privileges of such holder or
vary the restrictions to which the CPS are subject]. The
conversion period is any fime after issue, provided that
the conversion right will be suspended to the extent
that it would result in the Company failing to comply
with the public float requirement. Each CPS (af the
option of the holder) will be convertible at any time
(and without payment of any additional consideration|
to ordinary shares on a one to one basis. Each CPS
will confer on the holder thereof the right to receive
dividend pari passu with holders of ordinary shares on
the basis of the number of ordinary shares into which
each CPS may be converted and on an as converted
basis. On a distribution of assets on liquidation,
winding up or a dissolution of the Company, the assets
and funds of the Company available for distribution:
(a) will first be paid to the holders of CPS pari passu
among themselves in respect of the aggregate nominal
amounts paid up on the CPS held by them; and (b) the
remaining assefs will be distributed pari passu to the
holders of any class of shares (including the CPS). The
CPS will be transferable without any restriction by the
holders thereof. The CPS will be non-redeemable. No
application will be made for the listing of the CPS on the
Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange. In 20135,
the holders of convertible preference shares converted

1,485,530,000 shares fo ordinary shares.

—g—xEFH

BWEBZRERATF

38. A& (4)
(o) EERCHETRE

(i)

(ii)

EEKR

BB AE AR RURT R EIR
RIBE - WHAREARRRERR
RARE LERREHEF BN E
B AIREKRE - FREE
BRIGH AR AFBREEZFR
SRR -

ATELAE IR ([ TR BT
®’J)

AERETRNR A AR ERD
FERREERNE ERR(ER
ARRBRAA E R ESRE R
FA A Z RN S i S 2T 8
BEBSRRAE 2R ZEMDRE
ZRIRIN) - BIEIREITRE
EAER - EHSERARFE
FETEARRFERERE Bl
BHREREERLE -  FRATHE
BEERORFANEEE) SR
kR (B A EMRIMUE)
B8 — RS TR o
BRSBTS T RSB A
FHEELTERSE ARE 2R
I SHER - BRI G ik
BRI ERMK Z BB EE
STELAREINE T oARE R - B2
NENER - BEAMREEDIKE
E  AREAEDIKNEERE
E (o) E LR AT EIRE R
A AR A TSR ELRNE
AR AR A SR @ ST AR
BAXS - MiEEzRARS
i + R (b]&#R T & E K RE(IER
BB A (B4 AT SR @ T ) O%F
BADIK > MEEZHARSH
7 o AJEIB R Z F5E AEE
A RE ST N SRAEAAIR ) o
AEREERAAEL - ST E
A AT SRR B ST AR A B S T BN A AR
BB SR B LTI ©
R-_ZT—hF  AIEREERR
EAB ] 485,530,000 8%
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

(i) On 16 May 2015, the Company and a placing
agent entered into a placing agreement under general
mandate to place 228,000,000 shares of HK$7.46
per placing ordinary share. The placing was complefed
on 26 May 2015. The new ordinary shares rank pari

passu with the existing ordinary shares in all respect.

(iv] In 2015, the Company repurchased and logout
62,144,000 shares and the aggregated price paid for
such purchases amounted to RMB200,556,000.

No changes in the authorised and issued share capital of the

Company during the year.

Shares held for Share Award Scheme

During year ended 2015, the Share Award Scheme (note
37) acquired 7,487,000 shares of the Company through
purchases on the open market. The total amount paid

to acquire the shares during the year ended 2015 was
RMB37,660,000.

No changes in the shares held for Share Award Scheme of the

Company during the year.

39. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by

the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Merger reserves

The merger reserves represent the difference between the
Company's share of the nominal value of the paid-up capital
of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the

ordinary shares issued by the Company.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the shares repurchased which has been paid out of the

Company's disfributable reserves.

38. k& (&)

(a)

(b)

EERERTIRA(E)

(i) —E—RFRATAE  ARF
£ — A B RIRAR R — ARISERT
VRERH - AREREE TR
f&7 467 7T B2 & 228,000,000
B - REFEER=-T—H
FRAZTRAZTR - FLBR
HER A LRREME A ESAR

FHAL o

(iv] M-Z—RFA  NAFEE KL
FE8H62,144,000 i th + 5t
MEBRE XM BEREE/AR
#200,556,0007T °

AR A R RE BT R
&) o

Rt BE Bt B PTHR AR 43
R-Z—RFR - RHREE (K
HE37)EBEARMIBM - KT
RAF7,487 000D - BE=T
—RFILFERBRAG A HERE
RARM37,660,0007T °

ARFE ARG BRI B TRENR
PEEmEE -

39. Bx i (B & i

(a)

(b)

(c)

Rz yiafE
et EBRANBAXMERESRRDE
FRAVE °

B
BOHREEEAD RS HRE T A A
MARIBAEERARRRITHLR
REENEHE -

R
BAEE IR A D R A DR
X2 BERHEE -
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39.SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

PRC statutory reserves

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the arficles of association of the Company's
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves consist

of:

(i)  General reserve fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the general reserve
fund were made in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries and were

approved by the respective boards of directors.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund can
be used fo cover previous years' losses, if any, and may
be converted info capital in proportion fo equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the balance affer
such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered

capital.

(i) Enterprise expansion fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company's subsidiaries and

were approved by the respective boards of directors.

For the entity concerned, the enterprise expansion fund
can be used for business development purposes and for
working capital purpose. This fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation. Transfers to this fund must
be made before distribution of dividends to the equity
holders.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property reclassified
from owner-occupied to investment properties. For such
reclassifications, the cumulative increase in the fair value of
the property at the dafe of reclassification in excess of any
previous impairment losses is included in the revaluation

reserve.

ZE-RFFH BBEBZRERAAF

39. Iz i B R ikt (48)

(d)

(e)

REAEREE

P AR BB 5 8 08 25 o B E (R D AR
57 A o 45 B 45 91 B 2 R
Rz FARMERMAAE
7 UWEAESGIE - AEHE
i

(| ZEERSLES
AR B A A TE B AR
SIRBEARRAFRAINEREA
AT WREEEESIME

SERMNRRME  EERBRA
B BERE LFEER(M
B) - INAREERS A AR
R BB R - HER BRI
BRSO EMEAR25% ©

(] PEXRES
MIREEFSRE L ERES
TREA AR TR AN SIRMEE
BT WHEAEFRIE -

HEMNDARIME @ BXEERE
TARERHERREEERS °
BRIBRIN  ZEETADIK © A
KRB BENBREZESRTA
R ADIRIE

s
ENREEBERAENSBREREY
ENYMERH - MR FEH DM
o DELAARBERENRDHRAHN
RFHE R R A TR E BRI
ANEfh#E -

285



236

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e BRRWE @)

year ended 31 December 2016
E—NF+ZH=1—HIF

40. PERPETUAL SECURITIES

On 27 July 2016 (the “Issue Date”), the Group issued USD
denominated senior perpetual capital securities ("Perpetual
Securities’) with an aggregate principal amount of
USD120,000,000. The Perpetual Securities confer the holders a
right fo receive distributions at the applicable distribution rate from the

Issue Dafe semi-annually in arrears in United States dollars.
The rate of distribution applicable to the Perpetual Securities shall be:

(i) in respect of the period from, and including, the Issue Date to,
but excluding the 5th anniversary from the Issue Date (the “First
Call Date’), 5.625% per annum; and

[i)  in respect of the periods [a) from, and including, the First Call
Date to, but excluding, the immediately following reset date
and (b) from, and including, each reset date falling after the
First Call Date to, but excluding, the immediately following
reset date, a rafe of interest expressed as a percentage per
annum equal to the sum of (1) 4.50 per cent, (2] treasury
rate; and (3) 5.00 per cent. A reset date is defined as the
First Call Dafe and each day falling on the expiry of every five
calendar years affer the First Call Date. The treasury rate refers
fo the prevailing rate that represents the average for the week
immediately prior to the date on which the reset is calculated
as published by the Board of Governors of the U.S. Federal

Reserve.

The Company may at ifs sole discretion elect to defer any scheduled
distribution to the next scheduled distribution payment dafe by giving
prior written notice. The Company may further defer any arrears
of distribution following the foregoing notice requirement and is
not subject to any limits as to the number of times distributions and
arrears of distribution can be deferred. Unless and until the Company
satisfies in full all outstanding arrears of distribution and any
additional distribution amount, the Company shall not declare or pay
any dividends, distributions or make payment on, and will procure
that no dividend or other payment is made on or redeem, reduce,
cancel, buy-back or acquire for any consideration any share capital

thereof.

40. K R 55 %F

—E-RFLA-TER(EITEM])
RNEBBITAE IR 120,000,000% 7T
MARTTAHERN AR A B AR ES ([ KR E
%) o KABHFBTHRAARN - B%1TH
HERER N DR R FFFHRKEUAETT
ST ©

K AB T D IR R A -

()  FBETAH(EEZA)EEHTAY
FhEEFA((HEEEBEH])) (ES
BEZEHE  BEF5.625% Kk

(i)  Btla)EEEQBEBR(REZE)LEER
BERAHR(IENEEZR) HER
(b)EERER B MRS ER AR (BEZ
BEZEEERAERRETNEREZA)
HEmE - REFR() 4.50% - (2)E
BB ER(3) 5.00%2 456 & 7

ERAHEEREEELDAHR
BEEDNERREAEAEFERE
B&EB - BEESMXREXEB IR
wREFESMAMZEEFTEERH
iR — 282 RITH R -

ARBA2ENBEEREEEELELERNE
& SEATER D IREHZE T —EEET DK
A o RAB AIRIR E @ AMREE —
FRAERIERT D IRIER - BARIE 7 Ik M &5
DIRRBAR » FRIEREZARRIBHER
FRA AR R S 72 IR RAERIRRIN D IR 7R -
BRAIRRRABREMBRAT IR E
RS ~ DIREAEH R - MR &
R AR A5 A B R B S A e
B - B - 5E8E - BRI AEARERE -
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40.

41.

PERPETUAL SECURITIES (Continued)

As the Perpetual Securities only impose contractual obligations on the
Group to repay principal or to pay any distributions under certain
circumstances which are af the Group's discretion, they have in
substance confer the Group an unconditional right to avoid delivering
cash or other financial asset fo seftle confractual obligations, therefore
they do not meet the definition for classification as financial liabilities
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. As a result, the
whole instrument is classified as equity, and distributions if and when

declared are freafed as equity dividends.

The Directors believe that the Perpetual Securities Issue will be
beneficial to the Company since it will allow the Company fo obtain
long-ferm financing from infernational investors and to improve its

capital structure.

The Company applied the net proceeds from the Perpetual Securities

Issue towards refinancing certain of its indebtedness.

The Perpetual Securifies have the benefit of a keepwell deed from
Greenland Holding Group Company Limited, the intermediate

controlling shareholder of the Company.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group conducts its operations in the PRC and accordingly is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These include
risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and
legal environment, influence of national authorities over pricing

regulation and competition in the industry.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from ifs use of financia

instruments:
o market risk (including currency risk and inferest rate risk)
e credit risk

e liquidity risk

40.

41.

ZE-RFFH BMEBERERAT

KA E %5 (4E)
HRKARFEHARBEINESRBERE
TENEAESREE TIHER T HER DK
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EREMEBEEAEITA DB ENERME
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T o Bt - BIATADRAERER @ HiHE
ERAEEIRE ZFESRE
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EREETERETHRE
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of
the above risks, and the Group's objectives, policies and processes

for measuring and managing risk.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group's risk management framework. Management
establishes policies to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, fo sef up appropriate risk limits and confrols, and fo monitor
risks and adherence fo limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly fo reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities. Through training and management standards
and procedures, management aims fo develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand

their roles and obligations.

41.1 Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SRMEE
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTT R
Loans and receivables B EWIE

Financial assets carried at FVTPL

Available for sale investments AHEHERE
Total =18
Financial liabilities SRIE(E
Amortised cost BEA A

Financial liabilities carried at FVPL BEAREEEREENS/IEE

»

1,

Total

BAonBEIENMEENEREE

41. £ T R(&E)

AL FIA WAL SR & ERR -
AEEHETERARMEIE  BERRED
B o

EREEERARRYIEEARENRRE
BRE - EREREYRRER T HANDN
AEEEERARR - WREEE R RR
MIEIE A RR TR ERGIGER -
R EIRHER R R RATE HETERN AR
MERERASERLESHNEL - BEE
BEHEYIMEEREREF  §HERYA
AR RERERNESIRE - FEFEET
MrEREABESNABRET

4.1 &R TRER

2016 2015
—T—RE —T—RHF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREETF T
5,795,243 5,828,805
5,819,915 3,696,728
485,829 -
174,567 174,567
12,275,554 ?,700,100
31,650,243 31,244,203
329,543 -
31,979,786 31,244,203
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €T R(E)

41.2 Foreign currency risk management 41.2 HVEEPREE
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign ARBIAIBHELRAINEG - FIED
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through RARBRINER ZEBBTFEAR
the People's Bank of China or ofher insfitutions authorised to RITSEH MR R TINE B B A
buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted TEHETT - INER SIERNAIE K T H
for the foreign exchange fransactions are the rates of exchange ARRITAIMAE R (= 2R RE
quoted by the People’s Bank of China and are defermined E) e

largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily AEBTERBUEHBELEHAR
through borrowings, and bonds that are denominated in BN EEFTENEE RESFEX
a currency other than RMB of the operations to which they INERRR - ZERSHEEHENEE
relate. The currencies in which these transactions primarily are BB TTRETT °

denominated are HKD and USD.

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated ERMIINEH BN EEEERAE -
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures manages the net REBFRBRAINES LEIEFRAE
exposures to this risk by utilizing forward foreign exchange

contracts.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency RBER - AEBUEEEERE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities af the KA ERHENIMNERREEDT

end of the reporting period are as follows.

Denominal in HKD 2016 2015
LLEITTEHE —E—RE —E—hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARET T
Trade, other receivables and FEURBR N ~ E b B SR IE &
advance deposits SR 88,358 349,526
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEY 834,397 24,749
Trade, other payables and FERTBRER - HMFERFRIB R
advance receipts B I (375,286) (632,412)
Inferesf-beoring loans FFEREMR ('I ,227,970) (2,058,245)

Overall exposure BE (680,501) (2,316,381)
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €T R(E)

41.2 Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Denominal in USD

KETTEHE

Trade, other receivables and FEURBRSR - H M EEIE K&
advance deposits ElNE SR

Cash and cash equivalents Re LREEEY

Bonds &5

Trade, other payables and FERTRRER » Eqth FETFIE &
advance receipts TEMFRIA

|merest-beormg loans FFRER

Overall exposure R

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
strengthening of the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies
to which the Group had exposure at 31 December 2016.
5% is the sensifivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. For a 5% weakening of the RMB
against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable

impact on the profit, and the balances below would be

negative.
Profit or loss Ja NSk ET R
HKD BT
usb ET

41.2 SpEE R PR ETR(4E)
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—AEF
RMB'000 RMB'O00

ARETFT ARETTT

14 7
113,413 62,225
(6,542,342) (7,748,309)
(1,617,195) (119,400)
(2,525,068) (3,778,057)
(10,571,178)  (11,583,534)
SR T

TRETR  EARBLUTAZER
R RFEt+tZA=t+—HERRDN
MERAINETHESHIERT - REB S
BE - AEAEREEABERINE
B PRASBBRELL R - T EEE %
BIER]BERY SN [E R BB RORTAE o fi
ARBEIRRBINERZES% - HENE
BHEENTE  THOERSEREH -

2016 2018
ZB-RF —ZE—hF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARETTT

25,519 86,864
398,212 455,986
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group enters into forward foreign exchange confracts fo
manage the exposure of foreign exchange risk arising from

USD loans and bonds.

The follow table defails the forward foreign currency contracts,

ZE-RFFH BMEBERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
R e ELNETE )

41. ERMTR(E)
41.2 SMEEIRER ()
BHIELH
AEEITEMINES WU ERET
R 5 2 ST SRR -

TRFARA RS BROATRRBI)

outstanding at the end of the reporting period. EEH -
Average Fair value
exchange Foreign Notional assets
Outstanding contracts rate currency value (liabilities)
AREEEE
REBEH e I EHEE (Bf&)
2016 2016 2016 2016

—®-A"FE —B—<E -B-/EF =—B-7F

USD’000 RMB'O00 RMB'000
Fx=nt ARETR AR®BTR

Cash flow HERE

Buy USD HZET

within one year —&FR 6.7527 1,180,000 7,968,215 485,829
Sell USD JBFETT

within one year —ER 6.9300 900,000 6,237,000 (329,543)

41.3 Interest rate risk management

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from inferest-
bearing loans, bonds, cash and cash equivalents and

restricted cash.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash comprise
mainly cash at bank, with an interest rate of 0.35% per
annum as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 0.35% per annum).
Pledged bank deposits and time deposits maturing affer three
months are not held for speculative purposes but are placed to
satisfy conditions for borrowing facilities granted to the Group

and for higher yield refurns than cash at bank.

156,286

41.3 FEREREE
AEENFEEABRESRATLE
2B BHeRHESSEWRIR
HHES o

ReMREFEVEIRIRNEER
RBOFEFR - R-_F-—RFE+_-H
=T —REFMNEROISE(ZZE—H
F : FHEKO0.35E) - EEMRITHEK
R={EA K2R ERFERL IR
BMHE MEATHARITAAS
ERTEERENGE - URRTHE
L RITERR R A EHRE -
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

E—NFFZA=1—HIFFEF

41.3 Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group's variable rate borrowings are exposed fo a risk
of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. The

interest rates and terms of repayment of the inferest-bearing

loans and bonds are disclosed in notes 33 and 35.

The Group manages the net exposure fo inferest rate risks
by maintaining sufficient lines of credit to obtain acceptable
lending costs and by moniforing the exposure to such risks on
an ongoing basis. VWhen appropriafe and at fimes of interest

rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rafe swaps may be used to

assist in the Group’s management of interest rate exposure.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure fo inferest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of the reporting period. For variable rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability

outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding

for the whole year.

[a)  Interest rate profile

The following fable details the inferest rate profile of the

Group's inferestbearing borrowings and bonds by the

end of reporting period.

Fixed rate borrowings
Secured interest bearing loans

Unsecured inferest bearing loans
Bonds

Variable rate borrowings
Secured interest bearing loans

Unsecured interest bearing loans

Tofal borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings as a

percentage of

fotal borrowings

EER =
BEMFEER
BEMGEER
&5

ERIRER
AEMEER
BEMGEER

Ep=ttd

EEMREE
[ER:d

biEERaR

41. £ T R(&E)
4.3 FIRERER(E)

7N 5= B ) A 4 1 =
ZEyWBEeRELHEE
KB F K FI R A E 2 HAPR 4 FR A B o
33/%35 -

SEN SIS )
_I_ 5 4«:3(

AEEBBERTERNEEREAE
fEERARR AR ZKF MR B E
ﬁ*??EZi?J—UﬂﬁX BRRFRRE - &

2 R fin A R BARA SR ED - AT A
1%%%'JT?$HHT5%EJJ$EI IR R

G o
AA

FE B ZZE 5 HT

T B REE ST THAR B IR E BIRIEDT
ATAMERERMETE - L] Z A X
BEME  BEZONEDHERRNER
EMRRERABESREERFHR/R

fEE -

la)  FIEEN
Ti‘%%itﬁ’\\iﬁiﬁﬁﬂi$‘§@m%’+

BEEEREFFXIE)
2016 2015
—F-RE —ZT-nfF
Effective Effective

interest rate RMB'000 inferest rate RMB'000
BRflE ARETR BHAE AREFT
2.70% 693,700 5.33% 792,389
- - 5.40% 33,970
4.85% 8,038,774 5.16% 0,243,928
8,732,474 10,070,287
4,70% 7,278,351 4.62% 7748614
494% 1,512,170 6.27% 1,268,248
8,790,521 9,016,862
17,522,995 19,087,149
50% 53%
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41.3 Interest rate risk management (Continued)

41. £RITR(E)
41.3 FIEEIGEE(E)

(b)  Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been defermined
based on the exposure to interest rates for interest-
bearing loans atf the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the
reporfing period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rafe risk infernally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of

the reasonably possible change in interest rafes.

31 December 2016 —F-7~%¥+-R=1+-H
Voriable rate instruments AEFETA
31 December 2015 —“&-1%+=R=1+-H

Variable rate instruments EFETE

41.4 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers fo the risk that a counterparty will default on ifs
confractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group,
arises principally from the Group's trade and other receivables

and investments.

The Group's management has a credit policy in place and

exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group's credit risk is primarily aftributable to trade,
other receivables. In respect of frade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on each new
customer. The Group's review includes external ratings,
when available, and in some cases bank references. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s liquidity to make payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take info account
information specific fo the custfomer as well as pertaining fo
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Customers are generally required to fransact with the Group on

a prepayment basis.

(b) BEESHT
TREBRE DT TR E RS HR
SEREFRNEREBMETE © BLAT
BHNXAFEMNE  BEZOT
BIERENBEHRREER
BERER2FHRKEE - A
A EEIR A B EHRMN XK
FA 100 BRI R KRR » THE
B EH A A BERO A R E B RO Y

(=
Profit or loss Equity
bElE 5 i
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease increase decrease

BINI00EES HA100EES EMICOEES H2100EES

(80,514) 80514  (80,514) 80,514

(81,287 81,287 (81,287) 81,287

414 EEEREE
HHERBHATHNEBEAKEE
R BEERARBRAREERR - 5
ERBREEREAEENREYERR
HALEUFIRIARIRE ©

AEEERECHEEFERE
W EREERE o

AEENEERRET 2K ERIEIRR
R EA YRR - B BRI H
WA - AEESHE @R
FEBEETEEN G - AEENERH
BEIIBFE(ETRE) ETHER
T2RRT - ZEFHEPREFPX
NEIHKIBNREE & NIRRT
H - YEREFPREEREEPK
EMBREERREZERN - ARE—KR
EREPEARERZ ZREHIARMK
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41.4 Credit risk management (Continued)

41.5

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characterisfics of each customer. The default risk of
the indusfry and country in which cusfomers operate also has
influences on credit risk, but to a lesser extent. At 31 December
2016, the Group's concentration of credif risk as 79% (2015:
28%) of the total trade receivables was due from the largest

counterparty.

The maximum exposure fo credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the stafement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in note 43, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure fo credit risk arising from trade, other receivables and

advance deposits are set out in nofe 28.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are placed with
a group of banks and financial instituions which management
considers have good credit ratings. Investments are normally
only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock
exchange and management does not expect any investment

counterparty to fail fo meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's policy is
fo regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
banks fo meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short—, medium — and long — term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching

the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

41. €T H(E)
414 SERREE(E)

41.5

AEENEERREIZXETPHNE
EBERAFE  BEPLETERER
MENRBHEEERRTEALE
BERERN - R-_E-—XRF+_H
=t—B AEEHEURFEEE
ENEERBEPER/OWN T —H
F:28%) » IR EARE FEMAK
I8 o

EREERRRUBHARNKALSEH
BEMREE - 3230 Bk E AR 8 5
1 o bR T MIRE43FTE AR S B 9 BF
BHER  AEELEREETAEGE
R BEAKEXIARRBEARERER

(G
AA

o

BRAANSEEELN KRR - EME
WRIE LA R IR N R & REE R
HA B BEHNFE28 -

RAeRREFEMARZRIREF
R—HEEEBRR/EERFEENR
MIRTTREREE - REHR—KIE
RERRABHRZIREHREE
7 BEERHACAREHES 2
TEITHERE -

mENEE PR EE

mEER R SRS EER YA BEE
TEMBEHHNRR - AEEEKE
RERERERDPESHERETE
REZHOHIBER  BREFRTRNES
R RRITESRANEITORE
BE  UENAEEEHARREHN
RBEEHK

mEERREENREEEERES
g HERVABENRBERREIE
TR UEEAKENE & 28
EeRnBMERER - AREEB
R AREE  RITBEREREE
BE ARBEEERAIRERRE
mE  MEKEREERABNIH
BERETER - AEERSERR -
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
41.5 Liquidity risk management (Continued)

41.5.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group's remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The fables

have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash

flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on

which the Group can be required fo pay.

31 December 2016 ZERETZAZTA

Trade ond other poyobles B RA (MR
excluding oher fox payobles (T EEE ERFA)

Voriable inferest rate loons— AIEFIRER

Fived inferest rate loans EEHEER

Bonds &5

Financiol quarontees issved: Bt RRIBIEER :

Maximum amount quaranieed  HEERE

31 December 2015 ZE-RETIAZT-A
Trade ond other poyobles  EREFRA (MR
W ﬁﬁﬁﬁr fi /EIE\

excluding ofher fox payables

Voriable interest rate loans

Fived interest rfe loons I)ﬂ‘]? %
Bonds 5

ongrem payable KRR
Financiol quarontees issued: B RRIBTRER :

REERE

Maximum amount guaranieed

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate
ity
i 51k

b

b

4.74%
2.70%
4,85%

4.85%
3.34%
5.16%
2.26%

Within

1 year or
on demand
—Fhg
REX
RMBI00O
ARBTT

13,864,019
3,171,402

712411
3,592,311

7,274,193
28,614,336

12,064,203
2,551,705
549,607
4,985,980
6,000

4513174
24,670,669

4] ﬁlﬁﬂlﬁ'( n‘ﬁ)

4].5 Illbgﬁmr'—qﬂ(

4151 TEIERFIE ﬂﬁ?ﬁ/ﬁ
TRFRAS B A& KR
RMIFTE SR B ER TR KEE
REREHBER - TRIVRASE
I—JQE%'?—,%H RE A P A HIR A
% RESBRAEEMNRBRRS

MEEE °

Within Within

2years  Syears
butover  but over Over Carrying
Tyear  2years  5years Total  amount

MERE  REMHE if

—-§E WENE Ik &it fRafE
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBI00O
ARBFT  ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETR
270,272 - - 14,134,291 14,134,291
4,133,753 1,883,748 330479 9,519,382 8,790,521
- - - T12411 693,700
1,662,214 3,242,614 - 8,497,139 8,038,774
- - - 7274193 -
6,006,239 5126362 330,479 40,137,416 31,657,286
100,066 - - 127642690 12,164,269
3203118 3347767 2453053 11615643 9,016,862
331,810 - - 881417 826359
3A71,348 1,541,250 - 9998578 9,243928
6,000 18,000 12,000 42,000 32,494
- - - 4513174 -
7172342 4907017 2,465,053 39,215,081 30,458,379
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41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. &R T A (4E)

41.5 Liquidity risk management (Continued)
41.5.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
The amounts included above for financial guarantee
confracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be forced to seftle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that such an amount will not be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the

counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

41.6 Fair value measurements
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial

liabilities

41.6.1 Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that is
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
A certain financial asset is measured af fair value af
the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined,
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised based
on the degree fo which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

415 FErMEEEIE(E)
4151 B R FIE E R 5 (4B)

LR BERE NS RIIERER
HFEMIFHARE - ARER
BA B L PR 2 BN E R
RRTHE - RENREHROE
H - AEERSEERLHTE
WERERE TN o AW - 1t
BftE IR EF EMEREFR
TR ERRANEATMES - Mz
HARTIBORN ZHERA R H T
BURANEREKFEREE
BB o

41.6 AREEETE
B ST R A E B A E 218
SHEERSBMABENAABENE

4161 FEBULAZ I EEZ LA TIE

Bt BRI MEEN L EE
REREHR  FRATHEE
BANEBERE - TREHNE
B DERZEEREERSR
BEAABENETE - ARR
BEARBEFERABIRALE
EHREMI BN AR EEFE
MR BEER
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BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €T R(E)

41.6 Fair value measurements (Continued) 41.6 ARBIETE(E)
41.6.1 Fair valve of the Group’s financial asset that is 4161 FEBULZ M EEZ L IE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) EFf B LHEER L2 IEE
(#&)
Fair values Fair value  Valuation fechniques
Financial assets as at 31 December hierarchy  and key inputs
SHEE RtZR=+-BHAREE MEERD  GESTREERANE
2016 2015
It e ik
Forsign curency sfiucured forword PEERLLEENENE Asset - NA level 2 Discounted cash flow.
confracts clossified os financiol BHSREEMNEE  RMBASS,829,000 18R Z-E  Future cash flows are estimated bosed on
assets carried ot FVTPL note 21) RlRman () BE- forward exchange rafes (from observable
AFR#485,829,0007% forward exchange rates af the end of the
reporing perod] and controcted forward rofes
Liability - discounied of a rote fat reflects e credt sk
RMB329,543,000 of various counferportes
gf&-
AR#329,543,000% FRERIE

FRALRENRERMIFES (RaH
AEATERNERNIES) RafED
EX(G ARTERIRRSRYTEL

KGR«

41.6.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial 162U HF U R A EEGT BN ZHE
liabilities that are not measured at fair value EREHMEEILLEE
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors BRI RPIRLS - EFRREE
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets IERRAPTERN CREE R
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated TRIBERREESE D EEE
financial statements approximate their fair values. e

2015
—T-RF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
fRE{E AREE FHEE DRfEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETFR ARETT ARETT
Bonds &5 8,038,774 7,993,453 9,243,928 9,366,737
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F+—A=1+—HIFE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BiE —F—NFA

41. £ T R(&E)

41.6 Fair value measurements (Continued)

41.6.3 Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point

in time and based on relevant market information

and information about the financial instrument.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve

uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and

therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes

in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair value for each class of financial

instruments:

(1).

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade,
other receivables and advance deposits and

frade, other payables and advance receipts.

The carrying values approximate fair value

because of the short maturities of these instruments.

(2).  Interestbearing loans
The carrying amounts of interest-bearing loans
approximate their fair value based on the
borrowing rate currently available for interest-
bearing loans with similar terms and maturity.

(3).  Bonds
The fair values of bonds are estimated according
fo their quoted price in active markets.

[4).  Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference fo fees charged in arms’
length transaction for similar services, when such

information is obtainable.

41.6 AREETEE)

41.6.3

RABERT

DA EEGFEE AR ERE
RiZEEM S ER R ERZE R
TEMERMEL - BRZE G
SHAE FEEE - BRI
RE=EMEE NIZE R HE - 54
RE—E T2 % - EAERR
MEE) - JRIEEHEFELE
REE -

EESBRIEM T AR EER
R TIIERRR :

(1. ReMREEFEY XRB
HIRE - EUERTR - Bt
EY IR R FAMNES - fE
RN - BN RIAR
TEYGROR -

HRZETAGERYRA
A BUREEEAAE
{EARAT

(2). FEEXR
RIRIR B AT R B (5K K
2|8 B RE R B ERE
fEEMN = - SHRERMNER
EERAREERL

(3). &%
EFAABEIRBEER
Jh BT SR R(E M RS

(4). EBFEHER
ERHMBERNAAE
BE2RIEAFRAIFA
AR5 AT Y ER ) B S 1)
TE (ANBEERS UL ZEEHL) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41.6 Fair value measurements (Continued)
41.6.3 Estimation of fair values (Continued)
(5).  Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estimated
cash flows, when applicable, are based on the
government yield curve af the reporting date plus

an adequate credit spread, and were as follows:

Interestbearing loans HABEEX

42, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entfities in the Group
will be able fo continue as going concerns while maximising the
refurn to sfakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

year.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net gearing ratio (tofal inferest-bearing
loans and bonds less cash and cash equivalents (including restricted
cash) over fotal equity). Therefore, the Group defined debts as

interestbearing loans and bonds.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements.

The Group's risk management committee reviews the capital structure
of the Group on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
committee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with

each class of capital.

41. ERMTR(E)
41.6 ARBEETE(R)
4163 ARMEEE (E)
5. MEEEARBEZFIE
ANBRRES RS R E
(8 ) AR IR B 25 B
TGRSy

EMEREEREENH
T
2016 2015
Z¥-REF —F-hF
2.7%-5.68% 2.5%8.50%

42, EXEE
AR EE R E AR AR E FNA T
BEREBRELEEGE  ANEBNG
SERETE - ARRAESAEE - A%
B SR W SR AR T o

RIBITERE - AEBEABBHLRFEGH
BERKEFRBRERERREFEY
(BEXBHIRES)ERIAEREE) ERE
EERNRBELE - At - NEBFAEER
Rt BEFRRIES

AR B EZSNERHE I B AR IRTEPTARR
AEENEREREZESSLFHAKEN

BARBETES - ZESFRBEY &
ZEESRAREERIESHEBENER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

#hz=

-5 =—

42.

43.

T NEF = f=+—HILFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The gearing ratio af end of the reporting period was as follows.

Debts &8

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E 8%
Net debts FEE

Equity T

Net debt o equity ratio SEETA(E R R

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at the reporting date, the Group has issued the following

guarantees:

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for certain
purchasers of property units and provided financial guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. The outstanding
guarantees amounted to RMB7,274,193,000 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB4,513,174,000). Such guarantees terminate
upon the earlier of [i] the issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within six months after
the buyer takes possession of the relevant properties; and (i) the

satisfaction of the mortgaged loan by the buyer of the properties.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors consider the possibility of default by
the parties involved fo be remote. Accordingly, no value has been

recognised in the statement of financial position as af 31 December

2016 (2015: Nil).

42, SXEE(4E)

R EIRRERLL RN ©
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AEF
RMB'000 RMB'O00
ARETFT ARETT
17,522,995 19,087,149
(5,795,243) (5,828,805)
11,727,752 13,258,344
9,723,694 7,688,108
121% 172%

43. I T5ER

RIRERH - REBEH A TER

AEBCRIOMEEMNE HRHIZEE
R WHZERETNERTEREMBEE
FR-R-ZB-—RE+-A=+—H EX
HEERAARE7,274,193,0007 (=F
—hF : AR¥4,513,174,0007T) ° %%
BREATRPHRAL : (1) BB E0ERR
BRE(—REETHBERYMERLR AR
MEHDE © R(iIERETTEERIBENE -

ARBEERR  AREUBEREONE
RERFNOAABERE  MEERSEH
RIHITEQEEERN - Bt - WER—-F
—ANF+Z A=+ AN R D ER
FAEE(ZZ—AF : §)
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BE—F—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

44, OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 44, FEHE =
44.1 The Group as lessee 44.1 AREEBRHEAN
44.1.1 leasing arrangements 4.1 HEZH
Operating leases relate to leases of office with lease LM EEARERFANBRA
terms within 5 years. The Group does not have an EHERM - REEWEERRE
opfion fo purchase the leased office at the expiry of the RABHEREREARENNHA
lease periods. =e
44.1.2 Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 4412 T IS E T ERIE
2016 2015
k- b 3 —T—AhF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBETT
Not later than 1 year —F R 10,384 6,536
Later than 1 year and —FUENAFUAR
not later than 5 years 18,518 14,353
Total &t 28,902 20,889
44.2 The Group as lessor 442 EEEEBHBEAN
44.2.1 Lleasing arrangements 142 ] HEZH
Operating leases relate fo the investment properties and KEHERARNFHE T
completed properties held for sale owned by the Group HASEEEENREMERDZE
with lease ferms of between 5 to 10 years, with an B EMEBR - HEERER
option to extend. All operating lease contracts contain EH - FTAKREHESNIEA
markef review clauses in the event that the lessee TSR - TEARFHATTERE
exercises its opfion fo renew. The lessee does not have EBREERTRARER - ATAL
an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the EEERENERERSEAY

lease period. ¥
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BE-—F A+ =A=t—AILEE

44.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)
44.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)

44.2.2 Non-cancellable operating lease receivables

Not later than 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and —FLAFRAFUARN
not longer than 5 years

Later than 5 years HEAF

Total CEl

All of the Group's investment properties are held for
rental purposes. The lease terms ranged from 1 year fo

5 vyears are with fixed-renfal contracts.

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
RMB41,609,000 (2015: RMB60,227,000) was
recognised as rental income in respect of investment

properties in profit or loss.

45.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Property development activities VIR RS
— Confracted but not provided for — ERIKVEREE

44. FEHERH(E)

42 FREEAHBAE)
422 T B E BN R

2016 2015
—T-RE —T—hF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
21,211 61,766
64,221 200,199
28,634 211,769
114,066 473,734

AEEMBREMFERARBFEL
BAZE - RN FIF255F
REERE AL °

BE-F-AEt-A=+-
LS - ERBANEES
HRANHESUABARSE
41,609,0007t(=ZF—hH%F :
AR#60,227,0007T) °

45. EXKiE
2016 2015
—B-RE —ET-RF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

6,571,193 5,566,083
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

iy
EE—

46.

E—NF+ZHA=+—HIFE

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As Greenland Holdings, the holding company of the Company, is

controlled by the PRC government, the directors consider that the
Company is ultimately controlled by the PRC government and the
Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the PRC govermnment. Apart from the transactions with Greenland
holdings and its subsidiaries, and other related parties as disclosed
in Note 46, the Group also conducts business with other government
related entities in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, these transactions are considered
as individually and collectively insignificant to the operation of the
Group. The direcfors consider those government-related enfities are
independent third parties so far as the Group's business transactions

with them are concemned.

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this nofe. Defails
of transactions between the Group and other related parties are

disclosed below.

ZE-RFFH BMEBERERAT

46.FHEANTX S

R AR BB FEAR A Bl AR 042 AR B B IR
26 - FBEER SR A& AT B HUT
EHl - MAKBEQEMENKERERER
PEIBATATES - KEEGIRBESATE
NHERIELE - REGMIER LREF AT
AR 4O RBENEMBEEALETR S
S ALEERBEFBIZP M EEMBRT
HRABREERBER - ARRIEZRA * %
ERX 5 AR RERHEARENLEN S LT
WRABRN - BEEFRA  BAEEEZETR
FHERERZEANEBRSME @ ZFHRF
HRAERABYE=T] °

ARRRTFAR(DAATNBEAL) 2
MEREZS  EREAEEREE Y&
A SR - A S B B A R A £ 2 P
RS HERELT -
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BE_T—NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE
46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
46.1 Related party disclosure
During the year, transactions with the following parties were

considered as related-party fransactions:

Name of Party
BREAALEH

Greenland Holdings
RRHOAERR

Mr. Wang Weixian
FTRERLE

Shanghai Greenland Taiyang Property
Co., limited ("Greenland Taiyang’)
PR BEEBR AR ([ 4t ERE |)

Shanghai Greenland Construction Engineering
Co., lid. ["Greenland Engineering’)

bR ETRARIR([HBIR))

Greenland Hong Kong Investment Group Limited
FIEBREEEFRAT

Shanghai Greenland Construction
[Group) Co., lid ["Greenland Construction’)
EigaritER (R E) AR AR ([ itk |)

Shanghai Senmao landscape Co, . Lid.
("Greenland Senmao’)

b REEMAR QR ([#HR% )

Vite White International Limited ("VWIL")
HRIEER AR AR ([ Y518 ])

46.FAEAN TR 5 (&)

46.1 BREAN LR

FRELNTALTETHNRZRREE

ALERS :

Relationship
Bz

Ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company

AR B RAIERIER

Honorary Chairman of the Company; Substantial
shareholder of the Company
AARZRELE  ARRTEBIR

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
ARSI T AR
A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IR I T AR

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
FH AR AR Il 0 T2 7]

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR I T AT
A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
ARSI T AR

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AT R By F 2 B
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BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
46.1 Related party disclosure (Continued)

Name of Party
FRAALERE

Super Talent Resources Limited ("Super Talent’)

BEERAEAREE )

China Resources land Co., lid (“China Resources”)

ERENARAT ([ EBES)

China Resources Land (Xuzhou) Development
Co., lid ("China Resources Xuzhou')

FHEH RN BRAR AR ([ZEREHRM )

China Resources Land Nanjing Development
Co., lid ("China Resources Nanjing’)
EREMERBERBER AR ([EEER])

Greenland (Group) Taiyuan Property Co., Lid
BIMEBAREXER AR

Greenland Financial Investment Holdings Group., Lid

B ERIREEREEAR AR

Nanchang Greenland Shenbo Property Co.,Lid
MEREERARAR

Nanchang Greenland Shenfei Property Co.,lid
MERRERAR AR

Nanchang Greenland Shenxiang Property Co. ,Lid
A ANEEAR AR

46.FEANTRZ (&)

46.1 BEAN LR ()

Relationship

AR

A non-confrolling equity holder of Xuzhou Mingzhi
RN SRR B FEIEAR AT B A

Ultimate controlling shareholder of Super Talent

TR B RASFEAR AR

A subsidiary controlled by China Resources
HEEEHIEHN T QA

A subsidiary controlled by China Resources
HEBEHMITHN T AT

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IEBAE IR F 2 R

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IEBAE IR F 2 R

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IEBAE SR F 2 R

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IEBAE IR F 2 R

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IEBAE SR F 2 R
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46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
46.1 Related party disclosure (Continued)

Name of Party
AREAALET

Nanchang Greenland Shenxin Property Co.,Lid
AERMEPTEXERAR

Great China Properties Holdings Limited
AR EMEZERBRR AR

Xu Fu Co. Limited ("Xu Fu")
BEARAR(EE])

CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ["CIFI")
g (RE) AR AR ([NEHE])

Shanghai Yingkun
labic2 it

China Resources Land (Suzhou) Development
Co., lid ("China Resources Suzhou’)

FHE M (BN FE AR AR ([ M )

Tianjin Xuda Real Estate Information Consuliancy Limited
["Tianjin Xuda’)

REBEFWERESHAERAB((RBEE])

Forever rich

Forever Rich

Shanxi Greenland Deyi Property Co.,lid
IIPaAR IS — B FR A A

46.FAENTR 5 (4E)

46.1 BEAN LR (ER)

Relationship
FAR

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AT GE By F 2 B

A non-controlling equity holder of Success Yield Group
Limited

PRIBEEE AR AR MFFERABHER B A

A non-controlling equity holder of Xu Bao BVI
JBEBVIEV IR AR A A

Ultimate controlling shareholder of Xu Fu

JBE B BRA IR

An associate of the Group

N SEN YN

A subsidiary controlled by China Resources
R E RSN T AR

A subsidiary of CIF|

TBEHF AR

A joinf venture of the Group
AEERMAERE

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AT RGE By F 2 B
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46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
46.1 Related party disclosure (Continued)

46.FEANTRZ (&)

46.1 BEAN LR ()

Name of Party
FRAALERE

Shanghai Greenland (Group) Jiangxi Shenjiang Property
Co., lid ["Jiangxi Shenjiang’)
gt EE TR TEEERAR ([IERI))

Shanghai Xinhua Faxing Group Limited
PERERTEEARAR

Shanghai Greenland Kanghe Property Co., ltd
BRI EEBR AT

Guangxi Real Estate (Group] Co., Limited
EriE (SE) AR AR

Nanchang Zhuoyue Property Development Co., ltd
MERHFEIENEERAR

Shanghai Xinjiang Property Co., Limited
PERTEXERAF

Shanghai Gaojing Property Co., Limited
PESEEXERAF

Greenland Financial Overseas Investment Group Co. ltd.

Greenland Financial Overseas Investment Group Co. Lid.

Relationship

AR

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR AT BGE BB A 7

A non-confrolling equity holder of Sipo
BERNIHER AR ER A A

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR IAZ BGE B F A 7

A non-controlling equity holder of Guangxi Xintie
ETa B R AR R B A

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR AT BGE B F A 7

A non-confrolling equity holder of Shanghai Xing
DT H IR E A

A non-confrolling equity holder of Shanghai Xingi
DR H IR E A

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
AR AT BE B A 7
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46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
46.2 Transactions

Receipt of construction services TR 223 A 75
Greenland Construction ERi R
Greenland Engineering Grih TR
Greenland Senmao KRHARIX

Entrusted loans ZitER

Provide entrusted loan REBEEZFTER
China Resources EHEM
Shanghai Yingkun g5EE
Tianjin Xuda KERE

Receipt of entrusted loan WHEFEER
China Resources Suzhou = ERN
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei SRERRES

Property Co., ltd BRAF

Repayment of entrusted loan from BEZTEER
Tianjin Xuda REBE

Disposal of Subsidiaries HEFATR
Shanghai Xinhua Faxing B EEITRE

Group limited BRAT

46.FAEANTR 5 (&)

46.2 3% 5

2016
—T-RE
RMB’000
ARETR

841,145
548,755
176,098

1,565,998

380,230

380,230

356,270

170,000
526,279

347,987

2015
—ET—hF
RMB’'000
ARETFT

417,825
286,692
27,204

731,721

100,000
391,000

491,000

165,900

200,000
365,900

391,000
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e BTSRRI E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F AFt=f=t— AR
46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46.FAEANTRZS(4E)
(Continued)
46.3 Balances 46.3 &gR
2016 2015
—T—RE —E—TF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARBT T
Other financial assets (note 21) EheahEE (MiE21)
Shanghai Yingkun Babicticpecl - 100,000
China Resource FEHEH 380,230 -
380,230 100,000
Receivables due from related parties  fEUREEE A T 70IE (B5E28)
(note 28)
Advance payments fo related parties  FE BEiE A+ 7008
Greenland Engineering 4RI TR 288,697 9,793
Greenland Senmao KRHARIX 6,516 4,748
Greenland Construction F R 21,680 285,216
Non-rade balances due from FEUREEE A T E M pEUL
related parties EEREESS
Greenland Hong Kong HMBEBREEEH
Invesiment Group Limited BEAT - 75,400
China Resources FEHFH 75,000 245,000
Shanghai Greenland s nER (R E)
Construction (Group) Co., Lid AR AR 5,694 -
Greenland Taiyang 45 H 2205 992 992
Great China Properties A E IR
Holdings Limited BEAT 69,280 64,886
Shanghai Greenland FESENERE
Kanghe Property Co., Lid BRFA] 10 -
Forever Rich Forever Rich 21,719 20,331
Greenland Senmao AR AR 30 -
Greenland (Group) Taiyuan e ARER
Property Co., lid BRAF 243,472 -
Shanxi Greenland Deyi P4 E — B 2%
Property Co.,ltd BRAT 39 -
Greenland Construction AREER - 6,119
Greenland Financial Overseas Greenland Financial Overseas
Investment Group Co.,Lid. Investment Group Co., lid. 693,700 -
Guangxi Real Estate EPabnE (£ H)
[Group) Co., Limited BRATA 209,396 -
Shanghai Yingkun EsaR - 75,118
VWIL MR 2,484 2,326
Mr. Wang Weixian and the ITERELEREEELE
companies controlled by EHIE AT
Mr. Wang Weixian 1 1
CIFI JB¥E 1,608,558 Q45,614

1,735,544
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46.FAEANTRZ(E)

(Continued
46.3 Balances (Continued) 46.3 HER(48)
2016 2015
—B-RE —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETT
Entrusted loans ZEER
China Resources Suzhou ZEEEM 522,170 165,900
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei 2 AREE
Property Co.,lid BRAT] 370,000 200,000
892,170 365,900
Payables due o related parties FETRAE A T FIE(MIFE34)
(note 34)
Trade balances due to related parties B B8 A TR BR &S £
Greenland Senmao KM AR 10,715 6,059
Non-rade balances due to JERTRRE A T H At fE 1T
related parties FRIBLEER
Mr. Wang Weixian and the TREAELRTEESE
companies controlled by 2 lopNG|
Mr. Wang Weixian
- dividends payable — AR R 6,805 6,805
— other payables —H i e 38 5,332 5,332
Nanchang Greenland F AR E 3
Shenbo Property Co.,ltd BRAA] 20,000 -
Nanchang Greenland AEMRIBRAER
Shenxiang Property Co.,Lid BRAT] 160,000 -
Nanchang Greenland B EARI R B 3
Shenxin Property Co., lid BRAE] 237,000 -
Jiangxi Shenjiang STPHERST 150,000 -
Greenland Financial Investment LRt IS B IR R E
Holdings Group., ltd BRAF] 739,850 -
China Resources Xuzhou ZEEIRM 140 -
China Resources Nanjing B [eap 318 -
Nanchang Zhuoyue Property 8 2 E A
Development Co., ld BIRAR] 200,000 -
Guangxi Real Estate (Group) ErahE ()
Co., limited BRAA] 83,090 -
Greenland Hong Kong FMEBEBREEE
Investment Group Limited BIRAR] 949,928 7,933
Super Talent Resources Limited BEERAR AR 632,419 592,310
Greenland Senmao 4 TR 1,050 1,000
Nanchang Greenland AEARIBRRER
Shenfei Property Co.,lid BRAF] 50,000 -
Shanghai Yingkun iEsER - 2,268,900
Greenland Global R RIS EBR AT
Investment Limited 306,384 -
Great China Properties R EMEZERBR QA
Holdings Limited 69,326 64,930
Greenland Construction LRI IRRR 50 200
Xu Fu BE 978,545 915,998
CIFI fBE 950,447 55,325
Shanghai Xinjiang Property Co., PEFIEE
Limited BRAR] 44,240 48,240
Shanghai Gaojing Property Co., FEEIRE?
Limited BRAF] 11,060 12,060
Greenland Holdings “x 3R A% 686,732 1,186,732

6,293,431 5,171,824
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REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

46.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46.FfEATI5(E)
(Continued)
46.4 Compensation of key management personnel 46.4 FAREIE N\ BN

Remuneration for key management personnel, including RIS E IR A B H B IE AT 147 5K
B S T AR R E S H H B AR KT R
15 RE SN T A& HMiES &

B - RSN

amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in nofe
14 and five of the highest payment fo employees as disclosed

in note 15, was as follows:

2016 2015

—F-RE —E—FEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBFIT

Salaries and other emoluments T& R E b 5B 11,917 12,537
47.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 47 . RS

During the year, the Group entered into a sale agreement to
dispose of its 65.96% equity interest in Shanghai Sipo Education
Development Co., Limited ("Sipo”) that carried out of all of the
Group's education operations (‘Education Operation’|. The
disposal was completed on 4 March 2016, on which date the
Croup lost control of Sipo. The Group's Education Operations are

freated as discontinued operations.

The combined results of the discontinued operations included in the
profit for the year are set out below. The comparative profit and cash
flows from discontinued operations have been re-presented fo include

those operations classified as discontinued in the current year.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

Revenue e

Cost of sales THERAK
Administrative expenses THER

Finance income B WA

Finance expenses BEKK

(Loss) profit before tax BRBRT(E1E) &
Attributable income tax expense FEAR PSR 2
Gains on disposal of Education Operations  HH&E#E %75 2 W2k
Attributable income tax expense FEAR PRAS R X

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3¢ B 4% 4% 4 3£ 75 9 4 8 )

FR - ARBEFHEEBHELEEER LER
BHEERERAF([BE])#65.96%k
# BREAEKEARENZHHBER
(IHEEH]) - ZBHEER T RF=
AMAZER  MASERE BREZHBIEH
I - ARBHHEEBRIERILREE
BRI ©

FINFRE G FRIERERBH A FEH
FIENT » RE K IEEE R EORE M KR
EREBCEFZIINBRIBRAFERL

2016 2015
—B—-RF —ET—A0F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETIT

14,921 114,005
(10,711) (10,739)
(5,198) (81,102
139

(5) (2,088)

(993) 20,215

= (4,8206]

(993) 15,389

246,569 -
(65,513) -
1811056 -
180,063 15,389



262  GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
eV BHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—T—NF+—A=1—HIFE

47.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 47 . RIIGEEEFE(E)

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016 2015

BE+-A=t+—HiLEEE —E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Cash flows from discontinued RERIEEEBENRSTEE

operations

Net cash outflows from operating activities A& & EBNHIR & F 58 (14,626) (30,7106)

Net cash outflows from investing activities EEENIR SR F5E (44,207) [7,960)

Net cash inflows from financing activities REEBIIE &R AR 41,640 15,107

Net cash outflows WE M F5E (17,193) [23,569)

48.DISPOSAL OF EDUCATION OPERATIONS 48. HEHFXH

RIB—RF=ZANA AEEHEEEL
EAKERAHEEBNTE -

On 4 March 2016, the Group disposed of Sipo which carried out
its entire educating operation.

48.1 Consideration received

48.1 EW(E

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE+=-A=+—HLLEE —E—RF
RMB'000
ARETT
Total consideration received Bl E 347,987

48.2 EREEHENBERB RSN

48.2 Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control

was lost

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE+-_A=+—HILLEE —E—REF
RMB'000
ARETT

Current assets MENEE

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEED 68,783

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits — JEURBRZR « EAbFEUGRIE R IEIE® 45,580

Inventories =& 2,783

Non-current assets FREEE

Property, plant and equipment Y% - B kB 239,747

land use rights i A 49,110

Deferred tax assefs RIENIBE E 20,394

Current liabilities mENEfE

Payables eI (208,483)

Inferestbearing loans within one year —EREFEINET BB (33,970)

Non-current liabilities EREBERE

Inferestbearing loan STEER (41,640)

longterm payables REAEIT R (32,471)

Net assets disposed of BHEZFEE 109,833



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

48.DISPOSAL OF EDUCATION OPERATIONS

(Continued)
48.3 Gain on disposal

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

Consideration received
Net assets disposed of
Receivables disposed of

Non-confrolling interests

Gain on disposal

ZE-RFFH BMEBERERAT

48. HEHFEL (&)
48.3 HEW ==

2016

=

RMB'000

ARBFT

SGE 347,987
BiE 2 FEE (109,833)
B i 2 AR (27,676)
SRR 36,091
HE WS 246,569

The gain on disposal is included in the profit for the year from

discontinued operations (see note 47).

48.4 Net cash inflow on disposal

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HIEE

Consideration received in

cash and cash equivalents

less: cash and cash equivalent balances

disposed of

49. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

HEKERIIARE R IR EETHNF
Mg A (RHEE47)

48.4 HEMR LSRN FE

2016
—B—RF
RMB'000
ARETR

NR 2 MRS EEYTANDWRE

347,987

B CHEZREMESEEMES

(68,783)
279,204

49. FHHESH

(1) On 12 January 2017, the Group entered into the equity
transfer agreement with Wuxi Metro Group Co., Lid (the

"Seller’), pursuant fo which the Group agreed fo purchase
from the Seller the 90% interest in the Wuxi Guangcheng

Metro Above-Station Property Development Co., Ltd (the

"Target Company’) together with the Shareholder's Loan

for a total transaction amount of approximately RMB2,340

million. Upon completion, the Target Company will become

an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

(2)  On 26 January 2017, the Group distributed the dividend of
Perpetual Securities issued on 27 July 2016. The amount is

USD3,375,000.

N —ZF—tF—HA+-B AEEEE
HEEEARAR((EHFRTT
BrEEZE R - Ei - ARERER
BHRBESEMKOE FEEXER
RA([BEAT ) 0%k Bz R ik
REFR  RZPEVEBHNBARK
2,340,000,0007T » Rk @ BiF
RABKA/AEENBEIFEZEFR
") e

2) MZT—tF—HA=+"H x5E
M_T—ANEFLtA-+EBABITHX
ABHFDIERRE - ©5%/53,375000
EJTT o
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i =

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=—F—NFT=A=1—HIFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

ASSETS

Investment in subsidiaries
Total non-current assets

Trade, other receivables and
advance deposits
Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Perpetual securities

Accumulated losses

Total equity atfributable to
equity holders of the Company

LIABILITIES
Bonds

Total non-current liabilities

Interestbearing loans
Trade and other payables

Bonds within one year
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

50. ATRAFBIRRFK
2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
AREBTT
13
FRENEE 13,958,444
IERENVE ELREE 13,958,444
FEMER SR - EAh FEUGRIB R
BRE 758,703
HihSmEE 141,654
BEeRBREEED 46,335
MEVEELRTE 946,692
BERE 14,905,136
BERRGHE
N 1,132,855
&1 m(E 3,416,546
&t 309,670
KAFEH 787,823
ZETEE (315,587)
RATRAERE A
FE(R S 4R %R 5,331,307
=15
&5 4,581,996
SEnBaERR 4,581,996
FTEER 1,207,200
FEATBRFR R E Ath FE A5 3RIA 327,855
—FREHHES 3,456,778
e B ERTE 4,991,833
aEREE 9,573,829
R EEEE 14,905,136

2015
—T—hHF
RMB'000
ARETT

13,362,412
13,362,412

520,477

175
520,652
13,883,064

1,132,855
3,416,546
309,670

(517,888)
4,341,183

4,714,521

4,714,521

297,953
4,529,407

4,827,360
9,541,881
13,883,064
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REPBRERME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—T—NF+-—A=+—HIFFE

50.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Share

capital

12

At1 January 2015 -§-1%-A-H 1,132,855
Transter offully vested shares for BRRO%EH SN

Shore Award Scheme SEGERD -

Placing shores issued BETRERD -

Regurchase and logo shares BORGHERD -

Equiy seffed shorebosed fomsaclions — FREEEMRHZARS -

Profitfor the year ERER -

At 31 December 2015 A-§-EE+-A=t+-8 1,132,835

lsue of perpetuol securfies BAEs -

Profitfor the year £ -

At 31 December 2016 R§-~EtzR=t-8 1,132,855

Capital

Share  redemption

premium

R
RMBO0O
ARETT

2,362,986

9,237)
1,238,098
(175,301)

3.416,546

3,416,546

reserve
Lt [
e
RMBO00
AEETT

1,231

Note (i): The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by the shares of

the subsidiaries acquired over nominal value of the shares issued by

the Company in exchange under the Reorganisation was transferred

to the contributed surplus account in the Company's financial

statements.

51. COMPARATIVES

The comparative figures in the consolidated financial statements have

been reclassified as disclosed in 2016.

ZE—REFR

BWEBZRERAA

50. A BHIRRR (&)

Reserves

i

Contributed

Employee
share-
based

Perpetual  Accumulated

securities

KAiEH
RMB000
ARETT

787,823

787,823

losses

Rithi
RMB00O
ARBTR

(602,132

84,244
(517,688

20001
(315,587)

Total

it
RMBOOO
ARSF7

3,235,468

41,742
1,238,098
(175,301)
416
84,244

4341183

787,823
202,301

5,331,307

PR F AR 2 e FEEBEAR
AR EERETURBMZERNEEZZ
BHEBREANRMBHRENEABSRE

surplus compensation

ek

it o

RMB000 RMB00O

ARET  ARETR
[note i
()

308,439 32,089

- 32,505

- 416

308,439 -

308,439 -

B RE() -
51. bEBHF

FAMBREFBLBRFER-F— A
FREEST AN -
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
LEMBEREE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ZeERREMEEFEER
Year ended 31 December 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
EEt-A=t+-HLLEE “B-5E —ZT-nf —E-ME —E-=F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFL AREFTL AREFT

Revenue s 16,919,188 5,687,953 2,840,025 5,447 768 1,766,535
Cost of sales EERA (14,091,196) 4,647,388 (2,060,909) [4,001,353) (1,361,577
Gross profit £7 2,827,992 1,040,565 779116 1,446 415 404,958
Other gains and losses HEi e MEE 197,969 176,430 11,808 63,515 17,691
Selling and marketing costs HEERTSHERA (415,567) (318,911 (265,450) (87,532) (94,615)
Adminisirative expenses TRER (499,687) (428,641) (427,585) (329,707 (316,483
Other operating expenses Hipems (844,073) (887,192) (12,697) (344,454) (571,114)
Net gain (loss| on disposal of HEFRARE e

equily interest in subsidiaries (BR)FE 228 590 [500) 214,354 134,499
Results from operating activities ~ RESEEHEE 1,266,862 (417,159) 84,692 962,591 (425,064]
Finance income BEWA 70,574 58,047 82,980 99,057 99,003
Finance expenses BEKA (135,088) (199,114 (186,180 (415,331) (277,226
Fair value changes on financial derivatives T4 BT AN L BES - - - 112,812 852
Net finance expenses BERAFE (64,514) (140,167) (103,200 (203,462 (177,371)
Share of profits (loss) of associates LA DT RF (ER) 370 (1,007) 94 (114,096) (102,252)
Share of profit {loss) of joint veniures AL EEN(ER) 195,015 4 12,726) (48,175) (32,579)
Revaluation gain (loss) on invesiment BEYEERNE(BR)

properties 687,638 1,115,249 522,212 (80,539) (65,490)
Profit (loss) before income tax RSB AR (8518) 2,085,371 556,920 501,072 516,319 (802,756)
Income fax expense FERAY (1,024,852) (540,664 (436,951 (483,169 (185,604
Profit for the year from RERBECE LB

continuing operations EiF 1,060,519 16,256 64,121 33,150 (©88,360)
Discontinued operations RIETBER
Profit for the year from discontinued PREESINd=F 350

operations EREFI 180,063 15,389 - - -
Profit and total comprehensive EERNR2ERAEE

income for the year 1,240,582 31,645 64,121 33,150 (988,360
Attributable to: VAT AL :
Owners of the Company LNG]E =P 1,112,543 220,240 107,690 34,513 (©38,248)
Non-confrolling interests iR 128,039 (188,595) (43,569 (1,363 (50,112
Earnings (loss) per share BREN(BR)
Basic earnings per share (RVB) BREABF(AREL) 0.39 0.08 0.04 0.02 (0.92)
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) SREERNARET) NATER 0.08 0.04 0.02 (0.92)



SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Confinued)

REMBERE #)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEEMBRRE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HL&EE

Assets

Non-current assels

Property, plant and equipment
Infangible assets

land use rights

Other financial assefs
Investment properties
Properties under development
Invesiments in associates
Interests in joint ventures
longferm receivable

Deferred fax assefs
Total non-current assets

Current assefs

Properies under development

Completed propetties held for sale

Other investments

Trade, other receivables and advance
deposits

longferm receivable with one year

Other financial assefs

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and Liabilities
Capital and Reserves
Share capifal

Share premium

Reserves

Perpeiual securiies

Retained eamings

Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BE
FRBAE
VER T E
EVEE

b 3550
EtEREE
EVES
BRBIE
NG
AELRER
REEAGE
BRERREE
FRBEEEH
REEE
BRTOE
BERFENE
A

TR - AfRRTER

BifEe

—E BB KA

AfeRaE

ERHAL

B4 RRLEEN

BABHIFELNAE

RERELH

ARG

RURAR

AXREE

B

Bi(E

e

KA

R

FATRENES
i

R

R

2016
—B-5E
RMB’000
ARETR

1,282,241
1,341
24,608
174,567
8,216,000
15,082,454

541,203

210,427
25,532,841

3,928,278
9,707 441

8,275,245

866,059
1,436,984
4,358,259

28,572,266
54,105,107

1,132,855
3,416,546
851,214
787,823
2,641,360

8,829,798
893,896
9,723,694

2015
—T-1%
RMB'000
AREFTL

1,546,906
1,386
74,738
174,567
7,246,000
15,587,580

296,187

209,727
25,197,091

8,716,805
4,885,603

5,214,650

143,000
621,618
5,207,187

24,788,863
49,085,954

1,132,855
3,416,546
829,466

1,550,565

6,929,432
758,676
7,688,108

R —AEEH

2014
—T-mF
RMB'000
ARETT

1,619,850
1,431
76,924
2,800
5,722,000
17,599,647
3,603
938,022
596,006
185,915

26,746,288

4,489,993
1,727,423

2,760,960
125,561

156,693
5,032,763

14,293,393
41,039,681

1,068,154
2,362,986
834,203

1,353,595

5,618,938
371,648
5,990,586

BHEEERERAT
2013 2012
—ET=F 3
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFL
022,979 059,388
1,476 1,521
74,953 76,826
2,800 35,432
1,719,000 1,758,000
6,832,762 4,062,629
3,509 080,325
677111 702,556
673,627 746,590
212,882 240,571
11,121,099 9,563,838
2,205,091 2,380,515
2,651,528 2,694,340
- 165,436
3,064,698 2,230,835
125,561 175,007
749,693 832,697
022,037 816,836
- 4,193,626
10,618,608 13,489 202
21,739,707 23,053,130
1,068,154 106,591
2,362 986 2,069,086
833,173 790,566
1,355,871 1,312,056
5,620,184 4,278,299
86,889 31,273
5,707,073 4,309,572
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HEMBERBRE #)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

FEMBRRR(R)

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans
Longerm payable
Financial derivatives
Bonds

Deferred tox liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilifies

Interest bearing loans

Other financial liabilties

Trade, other payables and advance
receipls

Tox payable

Bonds within one year

Longterm poyob|e within one year

Total liabilities associated with

assets classified os held for sale
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less current liabilities

aff
FRBAE
iHEER
REENR
iTEERIA
&5
EXHERE

FADAESH

RERE

HERK

A2RER

BB ABHEAR
B E

IR

—~FRBIEES

—FASIBHERRNR

REFBHFAENEE
BBmAELE

REREEE

BRE

RERARAE

(B AP

BEERRBER

2016
s
RMB’000
ARBTR

5,770,601

4,581,996
899,639

11,252,236

3,713,620
329,543

24,397,814
1,231,422
3,456,778

33,129,177
44,381,413
54,105,107
(8,556,911)
20,975,930

2015
—T-hF
RMB'000
AREFT

6,577,283
26,494

4,714,521
875,234

12,193,532

3,265,938

21,471,556
831,413
4,529,407
6,000

30,104,314
42,297 846
49,085,954
(5,315,451)
19,881,640

2014
T
RMB'000
ARBTTL

4,454,928
30,437

8,763,401
491,791

13,740,557

1,227,105

19,314,718
760,715

6,000

21,308,538
35,049,095
41,039,681

(7,015,145
19,731,143

2013
“Z2-=F
RMB'000
ARETTT

1,441,839
33,935
890
4,224,594
359,537

6,059,905

1,725,007

7,325,317
916,405

6,000

0972729
16,032,634
21,739,707

645,879
11,766,978

2012
—E-CF
RMB'000
AREFTL

1,730,822
37,067

1,233,600
278,935

3,281,314

3,873,190

7,207,334
1,187,142

6,000

3,188,578
15,462,244
18,743,558
23,053,130
(1,972,952)

7,590,886
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